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Corporate Information
NEIE R

CORPORATE PROFILE

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
("the Company”) is a leisure wooden product enterprise in the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC") with over 20 years of
experience in production and sales of leisure household products
and timber houses and their related parts and structures. The
Company has established its sales network through distributors as
well as its self-operated retail stores network, and has launched a
series of leisure wooden products to promote a leisure and natural
lifestyle. The Company was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in 2012.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Ms. Xie Qingmei (Chairman)*
Mr. Wu Zheyan (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Wu Dongping

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Hin Chi
Prof. Jin Zhongwei
Prof. Su Wengiang

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Chairman)
Prof. Su Wengiang
Prof. Jin Zhongwei

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Prof. Jin Zhongwei (Chairman)
Prof. Su Wengiang
Mr. Lam Hin Chi

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Prof. Jin Zhongwei (Chairman)
Prof. Su Wengiang
Mr. Lam Hin Chi

* Ms. Xie was appointed as the Chairman on 23 May 2016.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016

NGy

RRAEMERERAR(ARE]) APEARK
B (T B ) —RKEAARMEE - REEKH
ERBHERM - ANEREBBESEREFTE
BAB0FER - ARFAEEBNHEARBEEE
EEBGERHHERE - Wikth —FIMREAR
A ERERARAANEETR - ARFANR=F
——FERBMARSMARAR (B £

-

M o

EEg
HITES
BIEEL L (EE)*
REEL A (TTHAH)

FRTEF
REF g

BIFRITES
EEBLE
SBAHE
BRI

BT REE
BB E(ER)
X BRI
SBAHE

FMERS
SEAYE (TR
BB
EWBLL

REZEE
SEAUE(ER)
BB
BB

* HEEIR-_E-—ARNFRA-T=AEEERER -



Corporate Information ontinuea
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Chairman)
Prof. Su Wengiang
Prof. Jin Zhongwei

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yu Hok Sum, Fcrpa ACis ACS

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Wu Zheyan
Mr. Yu Hok Sum

AUDITORS

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISOR

Eversheds

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China, Zhangping Branch
China Construction Bank, Zhangping Branch
Bank of China, Zhangping Branch

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.0. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

unit 1610

The Metropolis Tower
10 Metropolis Drive
Hunghom

Hong Kong

EREEEES
EBBE (ER)
BB

& B AR

DNEWE

FREREA - FCPAACIS ACS

REAXR
[EEKE
KBRS

23 4l
BRI EREGHAMERFERAR
CES ]

SRR
gl R

FEERRIT
R EIRITET 21T
R RIRITE T 21T
RERITET X7

AR EE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.0O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

BREITEERBE

B

AT
HEE105%
HeaXE
1610 %

RN ERERAT
S i



Corporate Information ontinuea
NEVE R

HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

Fushan Industrial District
Zhangping, Fujian, the PRC

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.0. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen'’s Road East

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.merrygardenholdings.com

STOCK CODE
1237
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Financial Summary

-
B 2
(In RMB’000 unless otherwise stated) (S &I UAREFILIR)
Year ended 31 December
Profitability data and ratios BBERILE BE+_-_A=1+—HLFEE
2016 2015
ZE-RE¥ ZE—RF
Revenue WA 442,328 639,999
Timber houses and their related parts RNE R EABRA R4 KB
and structures 243,406 440,005
Leisure household products REREER
Outdoor and indoor furniture ZERIMRBER 28,442 50,960
Recreational products WEVEE 18,045 22,726
Landscape garden products BESEER 67,285 31,267
Pet-home designs BYEEmM 12,640 7,176
Trading of timber MBS 60,005 65,092
Renewable energy products BERRE® 12,505 22,773
Gross profit EF 47,822 122,457
Gross profit margin S 3P 10.8% 19.1%
Net (loss)/profit F(E18) 5 F (22,295) 43,802
Net profit margin R ) 2 -5.0% 6.8%
(Loss)/earnings per share (RMB) G (ER) BIF(ARK) (0.0087) 0.0283
At At
31 December 31 December
Financial position data and ratios MBI RIBERILE 2016 2015
ot 7‘<$ —F— ﬁi
+ZRA=+— +—A=1+—
Non-current assets FRBEE 740,752 663,519
Current assets BB E 882,530 961,148
Current liabilities DEE=RI 418,778 377,544
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 75,787 111,613
Equity attributable to equity shareholders #z#H AEEE KR 1,128,717 1,135,510
Current ratio (Note 1) RENEL R (KaE 1) 2.1:1 2.51
Quick ratio (Note 2) RENLL X (Hfa12) 1.3:1 171
Inventory turnover days (Note 3) (days) FEEEXE(ME3)(R) 303 224
Trade receivables turnover days & 5 W IE BE R
(Note 4) (days) (HtzE4)(R) 115 96
Turnover days on prepayment for R EHEA SRR E R (A7 5)(R)
raw materials (Note 5) (days) 86 55
Total borrowings to total assets (Note ¢) (& E4azatE &L= (f1316) 25.5% 25.5%
Net borrowings to total equity (Note 7) EE FREMRERL X (M) 8.2% 7.2%

PRAENBRRERAT | 5
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Financial Summary contines
B T L

(In RMB’000 unless otherwise stated) (&5 BHTI) + AAREFITINR)

Year ended 31 December

Operational data BEHE BET+T_-_BA=1+—HLEE
2016 2015
ZE-RE¥ —T-RF

Staff costs 8IKA 38,761 41,967

Capital expenditures BARMXZ 89,167 174,515

Research and development costs TR 16,384 22,332

Effect tax rate (Note 8) ERRTE (f1:£8) -7.8% 18.1%

Notes: Mtat -

1. Current ratio is the ratio of current assets to current liabilities. 1. RELEARDEELTHAB/OLE -

2. Quick ratio is calculated by dividing current assets (excluding inventories) by 2. RELEZRDEE (TEEFE)RARDABTE -
current liabilities.

3. Inventory turnover days is calculated by dividing average inventories by cost of 3. GEASRBIRTHEERIATERARBIRIA365 KET
inventories and multiplying the resulting value by 365 days. "o

4. Trade receivables turnover days is calculated by dividing average trade 4. B9 REUHIERBRBIZTHE 5 BUGIE (T e
receivables (excluding VAT) by turnover and multiplying the resulting value by EH) BRIAE S RE B RIA 365 RETH ©
365 days.

5. Turnover days on prepayment for raw materials is calculated by dividing average 5. R R B B B R BUR T RMETE A SRR ATF &R
prepayment for raw materials by cost of inventories (excluding staff costs, A(FBIEE TR - T8 KB AR) BFEA365 K5
depreciation and research and development costs) and multiplying the resulting -
value by 365 days.

6. Total borrowings to total assets is calculated by dividing the total of bank loans 6. EEARELEELZRRTERRABEEBERIN
and interest-bearing borrowings by total assets. BEETH -

7. Net borrowings to total equity is calculated by dividing the total of bank loans and 7. BEFREAER L EIRRITER LT SEEHEE - 1
interest-bearing borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents and pledged BRReRREEBYRDERETR  BRABERAE -
deposits by total equity.

8. Effective tax rate is calculated as income tax divided by (loss)/profit before 8. BB ER ARSI R ABRBIAT (F518), % FITE -

taxation.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016



Financial Summary continueo)
B T L

(In RMB’000 unless otherwise stated) (S &I UAREFILIR)

A summary of the results and the assets, liabilities and equity of the
Group for the last five financial years is depicted below:

AEBESIAEMBRFEZREREE  BER
RESE IR

RESULTS 4
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
=B-R"E —T-nf —T-NF —T-=Ff —FT--F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETT ARETT ARBTIT ARETR
Revenue WA 442,328 639,999 701,231 475,051 421,171
Cost of sales SHEM A (394,506) (517,542) (522,818) (323,317) (272,461)
Gross profit EF| 47,822 122,457 178,413 151,734 148,710
Other revenue Hiplg A 29,308 32,908 17,888 23,070 11,761
Other net (loss)/gain Hitn (F518), e F 5 (21,877) (7,030) 2,172 48,683 (780)
Selling and distribution expenses  $4& &4 445 (20,219) (22,671) (21,714) (13,818) (10,146)
Administrative expenses THAX (46,546) (55,554) (56,279) (46,979) (47,169)
(Loss)/profit from operations S (B18),/ = A (11,512) 70,110 120,480 162,690 102,376
Share of (losses)/profits of DMEBE AT (1),
associates ekl (129) 20 - - -
Finance costs AR A (9,037) (16,627) (11,326) (5,463) (5,620)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BREA(EBR), % (20,678) 53,503 109,154 157,227 96,756
Income tax expenses Frisfif (1,617) (9,701) (18,344) (32,806) (16,665)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE)&F (22,295) 43,802 90,810 124,421 80,091
(Loss)/earnings per share Sk (ER)/BH
— Basic and diluted —ERREE
(RMB) (ARE) (0.01) 0.03 0.08 0.12 0.09
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BE - BERES
As at 31 December
®B+=-R=+—H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
IE-RE —T-HF —ETNmF =—T—= —E-CF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFRE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Total Assets BEEE 1,623,282 1,624,667 1,281,732 807,058 535,773
Total Liabilities BfERaE 494,565 489,157 484,390 329,886 173,532
Total Equity AT 1,128,717 1,135,510 797,342 477,172 362,241

HREMERBRDA | 7
ZEREFR



Chairman’s Statement
F EHE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“the Board”) of directors (“the Directors”) of
the Company, | am pleased to present you the results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2016 (“the Year").

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the Year, the revenue of the Group amounted to RMB442
million, representing a 31% decrease as compared with the year
ended 31 December 2015. Loss attributable to shareholders during
the Year amounted to RMB22.3 million, which was a result of the
macro-economic downturn and a significant decrease of revenue of
the Group together with an increased production cost. The Board
recommended not to declare any dividend for the Year.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The world shows a diverse but challenging economic picture during
the Year. Europe has maintained continuous growth in the property
market and the economy. The property market of United States of
America (“the US") remained steady. As for China, confronting the
downward pressure on its economy, slowdown in market demand
resulting the trading of timber and sales in the PRC decreased
significantly. During the Year, the Group'’s revenue from the Europe
market has a rapid growth of 45% to RMB44.0 million attributed to
the solid sales of the leisure household products in the Europe, while
the revenue from the Chinese market decreased sharply by 70.5% to
RMB88.0 million. This was mainly attributable to the economic
slowdown in China. The North America market was relatively stable
and revenue slightly decreased 5.5% to RMB273.8 million. The Group
successfully develop new business in Australia. The revenue from
the Australia market is RMB20.3 million.

On 2 June 2016, the Company changed the English name of the
Company from “Merry Garden Holdings Limited” to “China
Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings
Limited” and the Chinese name of the Company from "SRR B
ARAA" to "hRAEMIZERAR AR In consideration of the best
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole, the
Company believes that the change of company name will better
reflect the Group's business development, its leading technology in
the industry and its dedication to the expansion of the
environmentally friendly and renewable bioenergy field.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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C ha | rman ’S Statement (continvea

As "Merry Garden” is still the major trade name in the Group, the
Group keeps the logo and website address unchanged.

PROSPECTS

The pace of interest rates rise remained slow in 2016. However, the
market generally expects that the interest rate rises relatively faster
in 2017 than that in 2016 and 2015, this may imply that the US
economy is more stable than the previous years and higher interest
rates and higher inflation typically cool demand in the housing
sector. The China’s economy seems to have a sign of stable, hoping
that the demand will gradually recover in China and greater demand
for the Group's products in the Asia-Pacific region will be seen. The
Group will endeavor to capture all opportunities presented by the
emerging markets.

During the Year, the Group successfully developed new business in
sales of timber houses and their related parts and structure and
trading of timber in new geographical areas such as Australia and
Korea. This could help the Company to develop a more diversified
customer base. The Group will continue to seek for new business
opportunity.

Meanwhile, standing on the well establishment of the Group’s self-
owned “Merry Garden” brand and the impeccable strategy for the
Group in the development of renewable energy products, the Group
looks forward to making further breakthroughs and expanding our
market shares internationally.

The development during the Year has provided a solid foundation for
the Group's further growth in the coming years.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere thanks for
the support and trust from our shareholders and business partners. |
would also like to thank our employees for your efforts and
contributions to the Group over the Year.

Xie Qingmei
Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE AT

BUSINESS REVIEW E AC1) -
Our business eSS ES S

Timber houses and related Outdoor and indoor furniture

parts and structures
NE RABRE D+ R+

Recreational products Landscape garden products

PRI ERNIMRBER EERER

Pet-home designs Trading of timber Renewable energy products

EYEER AMES BAERRER

Mode of sales 1. OEM/ODM B B o
2. Self-owned brand “Merry Garden” 646 i [EEXRE |

-

wEHR 3. Trading &5

Customers & =8

End-users (through Retailers / Distributors Trading companies
self-owned retail Home Improvement and other
outlets and online sales) Centres manufacturers
#m{E FAE e/ DI BHRAR
(BBBEEEREEHE) RIBEHE HibAER

10 | China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis ontinea

EREBHRED I

BUSINESS REVIEW
Segment review

During the Year, the performance of our business segments are as
follows:

E e
gaR=iEl) =
REFRE - BEQEN B2 RBNT -

Segment revenue % to total segment
derived from external revenue derived from  Reportable segment
customers Change external customers (loss)/profit (Note 1)
LEEMPERZ DES Sk
FEIMBERZSBBA -] #oBBAESL (&H)/ &% (7 -)
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
- e ZB-RE —T-nf IZB-R"E _—T-1F
RMB'000 RMVB'000 % % %  RMB'000 RMVB'000
ARBTRT ARETRT ERa) B otk ARWTFR ARETET
Manufacturing and sales EERBEALR
of wooden products 421,761 605,982 -30.4% 95.4% 94.7% (31,866) 25,720
Retail business TEXH 7,930 11,044 -28.2% 1.8% 1.7% (2,459) (2,069)
Projects of outdoor wooden ~ BAMKELRIEE
products 132 200 -34.0% 0.0% 0.0% (162) (173)
Manufacturing and sales of EEREE
renewable energy products BERRER 12,505 22,773 -45.1% 2.8% 3.6% 1,249 8,183
442,328 639,999 100.0%  1000%  (33,238) 3101

During the Year, the Group continued to consolidate its core
business into the following segments: manufacturing and sales of
wooden products, retail business and projects relating to outdoor
wooden products. The Group’s relatively new business in the
manufacturing and sales of renewable energy products has
successfully continued operation for the third year since its
commencement in 2014. The revenue derived from each of the four
business segments during the Year were RMB421,761,000,
RMB7,930,000, RMB132,000 and RMB12,505,000 (2015:
RMB605,982,000, RMB 11,044,000, RMB200,000 and RMB22,773,000),
representing 95.4%, 1.8%, 0.0% and 2.8% of the total revenue derived
(2015: 94.7%, 1.7%, 0.0% and 3.6%) respectively.

Note 1. Reported segment (loss)/profit has excluded the after tax effect of government

subsidies.

REE  AEMEEBEROEBRESBUTS
B EEREERER TEEBKUARELIN
REGBAZIEE - AEERNEERBEERER
REMAENBEEENELE T —UFMBE
BUARIEFFHELE=F - NFE - MEXKS
HEBEENHRADRIAARKEA421,761,0007T
AR #7,930,0007T « AR#132,0007T kAR
12,505,000t (= F — A F : AR #605,982,000
7T~ AR¥11,044,0007C + AR 200,000 7T KA
R ¥22,773,0007T ) © 5 Bl Ak FT R & & M A
95.4% > 1.8% ~ 0.0% }28%°( — T — f 4 :
94.7% ~ 1.7% ~ 0.0% 5% 3.6%) °

fit—: AI2B/AMWUSE),EFIE MR 2 BHEPE -

HRAEYERBRD A

:"57/\5144:‘}&
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Management Discussion and Analysis continea

BEEmED T

Manufacturing and sales of wooden products remains the Group's
largest business. However, the revenue derived from such business
decreased by 30.4% which was attributable to the slowdown in the
emerging economies and increased competition in the domestic and
overseas timber house and structure markets. Also, a drop in selling
price of the products met by an increase in processing and
production cost to improve product competitiveness caused by stiff
competition led to a significant decrease in the gross profit margin.
This turns from profit to a loss of RMB31.9 million in 2016. (2015:
RMB25.7 million profit). However, in light of the recent recovery of
the economies of US and Europe, the Group will monitor the
performance of each market and hope to stabilize the overall
revenue of the Company.

The Group's self-owned brand is engaged in the retail of leisure
household products. Since its establishment in 2010, its sales
network has grown to include major cities in more than 10 provinces
in the PRC with over 50 self-operated stores and distribution outlets.
The Group aims to improve the operation by improving its cost
controls.

As mentioned above, the Group has continued its renewable energy
business for a third successful year. This aspect of the business
involves the recycling of residue, such as leftover sawdust from the
production of our wooden products, into biomass pellet fuel. The
biomass pellet fuel and its production process, are fully compliant
with the national development directions on new energies in the
PRC.

The Group's renewable energy business recorded a decrease in
revenue of 45.1% to RMB12.5 million and a decrease in profit of
84.7% to RMB1.2 million (2015: revenue of RMB22.8 million and profit
of RMB8.2 million) during the Year. Despite the drop in revenue and
profit, the Group will continue to develop the renewable energy
business.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis ontinea
£ E% n_'r Eﬁi/_\Tﬁ(ﬁ)

Market review T35 Bl E8

During the Year, the distribution of revenue from our global markets ~ RAEE @ HFK B2 HHHB 2 WA HOT -
are as follows:

/The PRC
' hE
20%

Asia Pacific

lusive of the PRC) :
{ TAE : Australia
TEERE) UM

4% 4%

Revenue % to total revenue
A HHEBEATSE

2016 2015 2016 2015

—E—RE —T—hF —E—RE —T—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000 % %

AR®TT ARBFIT BAL B

The PRC F 88,019 298,207 20% 47%

North America Jb =M 273,842 289,756 62% 45%

Europe BN 44,017 30,367 10% 5%
Asia Pacific YN

(Exclusive of the PRC) (TEFERE) 16,160 21,669 4% 3%

Australia S 20,290 - 4% 0%

442,328 639,999 100% 100%

hREYERAERA R
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Management Discussion and Analysis continea

BEEmED T

The Group has strategically positioned itself “to align with the trend
of Chinese tourism and leisure market and to capitalize on the
recovery of the US and European property markets”. The Group's
aim is to take advantage of the opportunities in the market and to
develop the Group’s business at a faster pace whilst complying with
all relevant laws, rules and regulations.

During the Year, revenue from the PRC market decreased sharply by
70.5% to RMB88.0 million (2015: RMB298.2 million), representing 20%
(2015: 47%) of the total revenue. This was mainly attributable to the
economic slowdown in the PRC. In 2016, the growth of the PRC's
investments in fixed assets further decelerated. The Group expects
that the sluggish economy in the PRC will persist in 2017. In order to
maintain its competitiveness in the PRC market, the Group will
continue to strengthen its products portfolio.

According to the US Department of Commerce, the new housing
increased by approximately 6% to 14 million units in the 2016. Due to
the economic stability in the US and the decline in the PRC market,
the North America became the largest market of the Group. Although
the revenue from the North America market slightly declined by 5.5%
to RMB273.8 million (2015: RMB289.8 million), the revenue
contributes 62% (2015: 45%) to the Group's total revenue. The Group
expects that, with the further recovery of the US economy, the Group
will be able to capture further opportunities and business so as to
help stabilize the Group’s total revenue.

During the Year, the Group's revenue from the Europe market
increased by 45% to RMB44.0 million (2015: RMB30.4 million).
Germany became the largest market of the Group in Europe.
According to the data from the Federal Statistics Office of Germany,
the construction of a total of 375,400 dwellings was permitted in
Germany in 2016, which is about 22% increase compared to the
same period in 2015. The Group expects to capture further
opportunities and business as a result of the acceleration in
construction of new housing this year.
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During the Year, the Group successfully developed new business in
sales of timber houses and their related parts and structure and
trading of timber in new geographical areas such as Australia and
Korea. This could help the Company to develop a more diversified
customer base. The Group will continue to seek for new business
opportunity.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and gross profit margin by product
category

REE  REBRINEORBERHERERE
MR B RAM B 52 ER - RN R
BE - EEHPARREREPHENZ T

REBREBDEDHRAH -

g JE1)

VAN

WARENER(REMDIEE
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)

Revenue % to total revenue Gross margin
KA ERBRAESRL Bk

2016 2015 Change 2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-R"E —T-3% 28 ZEB-XE —Z-1F ZB-R"E —T-1%
RMB'000 RMB'000 % % % % %
AEBTRT ARETR BAL Ol BAL AL Bl

Timber houses and their REREB@EHH
related parts and structures L 243,406 440,005 -44.7% 55.0% 68.7% 10.3% 17.4%

Leisure household products — hEGHEESR

Outdoor and indoor fumitures  ZRIMFEES 28,442 50,960 -44.2% 6.4% 8.0% 13.0% 29.8%
Recreational products BHEER 18,045 22,726 -20.6% 4.1% 3.6% 7.1% 26.7%
Landscape garden products EEBER 67,285 31,267 115.2% 15.2% 4.9% 18.3% 13.3%
Pet-home designs ENEEM 12,640 7176 76.1% 2.9% 1.1% 18.5% 32.5%
Trading of timber AMES 60,005 65,092 -7.8% 13.6% 10.1% 1.3% 9.8%
Renewable energy products BERRER 12,505 22,773 -45.1% 2.8% 3.6% 19.2% 52.2%
Total #it 442,328 63999 -309%  100.0%  1000%  10.8% 19.1%

Sales of timber houses and their related parts and structures
remained the largest income stream of the Group by product
category in 2016. Revenue from such category decreased by 44.7%
to RMB243.4 million, representing 55.0% (2015: 68.7%) of total sales

for the Year, mainly due to the decline of domestic sales.
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During the Year, there was an overall decrease in trade within the
timber market which provides an explanation to the decrease in
revenue recorded by the Group. Despite the uncertain and slowly
recovering global economy, the Group intends to balance the growth
with stability in the foreseeable future.

Other revenue

During the Year, our other revenue decreased to RMB29.3 million
(2015: RMB32.9 million) mainly due to the decrease in government
subsidies amounting to RMB23.0 million (2015: RMB26.5 million).

Other net loss

The Group recorded other net loss of RMB21.9 million for the Year
(2015: RMB7.0 million). The losses were primarily due to the
exchange loss, impairment of goodwill and written-off of inventories.

Selling and distribution expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses incurred during the Year were
RMB20.2 million (2015: RMB22.7 million). This slight decrease was
mainly due to the decrease in revenue.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses incurred during the Year decreased to
RMB46.5 million (2015: RMB55.6 million), which was a result of
stringent in cost control.

Finance costs

Our finance costs decreased to RMB9.0 million during the Year (2015:
RMB16.6 million), and this was attributable to the active management
to the fund.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Income tax expense

Our income tax decreases significantly to RMB1.6 million (2015:
RMB9.7 million), primarily due to the decrease in profit before
taxation of subsidiaries recorded during the Year.

(Loss)/profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing factors, loss for the Year is RMB22.3
million (2015: profit of RMB43.8 million). Loss for the Year excluding
the after tax effect of government subsidies is RMB41.8 million (2015:
profit of RMB21.4 million).

Dividend

The Board does not recommended a final dividend for the Year
(2015: Nil).

Liquidity and capital resources

The Group principally meets its working capital and other liquidity
requirements through operating cash flows and proceeds from bank
borrowings. The Group anticipates that it can sufficiently meet
funding needs for working capital and capital expenditure. As at 31
December 2016, the Group had current assets of RMB882.5 million
(31 December 2015: RMB961.1 million), of which bank deposits and
cash (including pledged deposits) were RMB321.2 million (31
December 2015: RMB332.2 million). To better manage our funds, the
Group's cash is generally deposited with banks and denominated
mostly in RMB and USD. As at 31 December 2016, total available
banking facilities of the Group amounted to RMB532.0 million (31
December 2015: RMB652.9 million), banking facilities utilized as at 31
December 2016 were RMB396.4 million (31 December 2015:
RMB396.9 million) and these were denominated in RMB, EURO and
USD. All of the Group’s banking facilities were subject to the
fulfilment of certain covenants, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. Details of the covenants are
set out in note 24(c) to the financial statement.
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As at 31 December 2016, the ratio of total borrowings to total assets
and net borrowings to total equity of the Group were 25.5% and 8.2%
respectively (31 December 2015: 25.5% and 7.2% respectively),
current ratio and quick ratio were 2.1:1 and 1.3:1 respectively (31
December 2015: 2.5:1 and 1.7:1 respectively).

Pledge of assets

At 31 December 2016, the Group pledged its plant and machinery,
lease prepayments and buildings held for own use and accounts
receivable with net book value of RMB229.4 million (31 December
2015: RMB213.1 million) and deposits with banks of RMB147.2 million
(31 December 2015: RMB135.3 million) mainly for the purpose of
securing bank loans and financial derivative contracts issued by
banks to the Group.

Capital expenditure

During the Year, the Group's total expenditure in respect of property,
plant and equipment and non-current prepayments for acquisitions
of property, plant and equipment amounted to RMB89.2 million
(2015: RMB174.5 million).

Capital commitment and contingent liabilities

Save as disclosed in note 29(a) of the consolidated financial
statements, there were no significant capital commitments for the
Group. There were no significant contingent liabilities for the Group
as at 31 December 2016.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR ACQUISITION OF CAPITAL
ASSETS

During the Year, there were no significant investments, material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries by the Company. The Group
currently has no plan to make any substantial investments in or
acquisitions of capital assets, but will continue to seek out potential
investment or acquisition opportunities according to the Group's
development needs.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY RISKS

The Group's sales are mainly denominated in USD and RMB while
our cost of sales and operating expenses are mainly denominated in
RMB. Therefore, the Group's profit margin would be affected if RMB
appreciates against USD as the Group may not be able to reflect the
appreciation in selling prices to overseas customers that were
determined in USD. In response to this, the Group manages
fluctuations in the exchange rate of RMB against USD by entering
into foreign currency forward contracts mainly denominated in USD
and RMB with banks when sales contracts were entered with
overseas customers. As at 31 December 2016, the Group has net
outstanding USD denominated forward foreign currency contracts of
USD37.9 million (31 December 2015: USD51.9 million). All the
contracts are to be settled within one year.

With the increasing level of our overseas purchases, the Group also
manages foreign exchange risk by matching the cash inflow from our
export sales denominated in USD with the cash outflow from our
import of timber denominated in USD.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL
OFFERING, PLACING AND SUBSCRIPTION

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 6 July 2012. Net proceeds from the global offering
were approximately HK$144.3 million (after deducting the
underwriting commission and relevant expenses).

On 26 June 2014, the Company issued 200,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.80 per share by way of placing (the
“June 2014 Placement”). On 7 October 2014, the Company issued
165,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.93 per
share by way of placing (the “October 2014 Placement”). On 5 August
2015, the Company issued 272,600,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each at HK$0.55 per share by way of placing (the “August
2015 Subscription”). On 21 December 2015, the Company issued
857,945,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.20 per
share by way of Open Offer (the “December 2015 Open Offer”). The
net proceeds from the issue of new shares under the June 2014
Placement, October 2014 Placement, August 2015 Subscription,
December 2015 Open Offer after deducting related transaction costs,
were HK$155.0 million, HK$148.0 million, HK$149.7 million, HK$170.0
million respectively.
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As at 31 December 2016, all the unutilised proceeds were deposited
in licensed banks in Hong Kong and the PRC. A breakdown of the use
of net proceeds is set forth in the table below:

E/\\_
N—=

—RNFTZA=1+—8 BEXRBAMRE

RIECFEREEMPEZMRT - EHKIE

FRZERBREIHN TR

Merger and
acquisition
The financing of small to
of the medium sized Increasing
acquisition of companies, and
automated Establishing other timber ~ Own-brand  enhancing
production Establishing  ownbrand  processing  promotion our research
machinery new self-operated plants,  and other and General
and  production store and/orother  marketing development working
equipment facilities network  resources events  activities capital Total
AHEKE
BEAE(L RPHLE E
EEME R oA BERN  EARDE
RifE RIF  BEEME  MIER/  REMTE FAFH -#
e CERE  REEMR  GAMEE ERED HRED EEge 1]
HKS'milion — HKS'milion ~ HK$'millon  HKS'milion  HKS'milion  HKS'milion  HKS'milion  HKS'millon
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
From global offering RHRRAE
Amount of net proceeds METERE N/A ns 98 79 1.1 98 139 3
TR
Percentage to total net proceeds (EFETEEFREA L N/A 2.0% 276% 19.3% 77% 68% 9.6% 100.0%
NER
Utlised amount as at RZF-AE+Zf=1-A N/A 138 398 279 M1 98 139 1443
31 December 2016 @Jﬁ NER
Unutiised amount as at - /\EJr A=1-8 N/A - - - - - - -
31 Decermber 2016 ﬁﬁ NER
From June 2014 Placement % E-S-l%ﬂ Eg
Amount of net proceeds FEHETR N/A 1250 /A N/A /A N/A 300 1550
NER ER TR ER TER
Percentage to total net proceeds (REEEFREA L N/A 806% N/A N/A NA N/A 19.4% 1000%
Gl Il il Gl ol
Utlised amount as at RZE-~E+ZA=1-A N/A 1250 N/A N/A /A N/A 300 1550
31 December 2016 RO NER R il TER MR
Unutiised amount as ot O : = WA - VA WA /A WA - -
31 December 2016 AORLE Byl il TER il ol
From October 2014 Placement RE-S-DEHRES
Amount of net proceeds FERETR N/A 730 N/A 500 N/A N/A 50 1180
el Il il il
Percentage to total net proceeds HEFELFEANY N/A 9% N/A 38% N/A N/A 16.%% 100.0%
NER NER ER TR
Utlised amount as at RZF-~ETZA=1-8 N/A 730 /A 73 /A N/A 50 1253
31 December 2016 BHRLE NER NER NER TR
Unutilised amount as at RoE-AE+ZAZ+-R N/A - N/A 07 N/A N/A - n7
31 December 2016 ik NER NER NER NER
From August 2015 Subscription FE-S-15)\BK
Amount of net proceeds 5B N/A 749 N/A N/A N/A N/A 748 1197
~ NER NER TR ER TR
Percentage to total net proceeds (EAERBRFER AL N/A 500% N/A N/A NA N/A 500% 100%
NER R TR ER ki
Utifised amount as at RZZ-"E+-f=1-A N/A 749 NA N/A NA N/A 748 1097
31 December 2016 ik NER R TR AER TR
Unutiised amount s at R= T—/\H A=t-8 N/A - N/A N/A /A N/A - -
31 December 2016 AEHE NER ER ER ER TR
From December 2015 Open Offer % E_s-i$+_ﬂ AHBE
Amount of net proceeds FEEFR 1190 N/A /A N/A /A 170 310 1700
TR R TR ER
Percentage to total net proceeds (BB LTEEAY 700% N/A N/A N/A N/A 10.0% 200% 100%
TR NER TR TER
Utlised amount as at RZE—AETZA=+-H 782 N/A N/A N/A N/A 170 30 1292
31 December 2016 EJ ik Lyl TR TR TR
Unutilised amount as at T-RNETZA=t-A 4038 N/A NA N/A N/A - - 08
31 December 2016 @J 2] TR R TR ER
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, we employed a total of 547 (2015: 690) full
time employees, mainly in the PRC and Hong Kong which included
management staff, product designers, technicians, salespersons and
workers. The Group's total expenses on the remuneration of
employees for the Year were RMB38.8 million (2015: RMB42.0
million), representing 8.8% (2015 6.6%) of the revenue of the Group.
The Group has been consistently increasing production process
automation, strengthening the training of staff with an emphasis on
high-technique processing with a mission on the continuous
development and enhancing of competitiveness. The Group offered
highly competitive salary packages, as well as discretionary bonuses
and contribution to social insurance to its employees.

The Group’s emolument policies are formulated based on the
performance of individual employee which will be reviewed
periodically. Apart from the provident fund scheme (operation in
accordance with the provisions of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for Hong Kong employees) or social insurance
(including retirement pension insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, injury insurance and maternity insurance
for the PRC employees), discretionary bonuses are also awarded to
employees and directors according to the assessment of individual
performance. Since the adoption of the share option scheme on 15
June 2012 and up to 31 December 2016, no options have been
granted.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 24 January 2017, the Company entered into the subscription
agreement with the subscribers pursuant to which the subscribers
have conditionally agreed to subscribe for and the Company has
conditionally agreed to allot and issue a total of 514,500,000
subscription shares of HK$0.01 each at the subscription price of
HK$0.13 per subscription share. Completion took place on 10
February 2017 in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
subscription agreement.

Pursuant to the subscription agreement, on 10 February 2017,
514,500,000 subscription shares, representing approximately 16.66%
of the issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the
allotment and issue of the subscription shares as at 10 February
2017, were allotted and issued to not less than 6 and not more than
10 independent subscribers at the subscription price of HK$0.13 per
subscription share. Hong Kong Run De Holdings Limited, at
Completion held 13.92% of the enlarged issued share capital of the
Company and hence became a substantial shareholder and
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connected person of the Company. The closing price of the shares
on 24 January 2016, being the date on which the terms of the
subscription were fixed, was HK$0.142.

The directors consider that the subscription represents opportunities
to raise additional funding for the Group’s business operation and it
will also strengthen the financial position for the Group’s business
developments and broaden the shareholders base of the Company.
In addition, the directors consider that the subscription is preferred
method of fund raising as compared with other equity fund raising
exercises based on the time and costs involved.

The gross proceeds of the subscription is approximately
HK$66,885,000. The net proceed from the subscription is
approximately HK$66,695,000.The Company intends to retain the net
proceeds for research and development expenditure to enhance
research and product competitiveness of the Group and as general
working capital of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, the Group has no material events after the
reporting period.
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The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. The Board believes that a high standard of corporate
governance will provide a framework for the Company to formulate
its business strategies and policies, and manage and lower the
associated risks through effective internal control procedures. It will
also enhance the transparency of the Company and strengthen the
accountability to its shareholders and creditors.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (“the Code") contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”) and certain
recommended best practices. The Company has complied with all
the applicable code provisions in the Code throughout the Year
except for the deviations disclosed under the sections headed “The
Board” and “Accountability and Audit” in this report.

THE BOARD

The Board oversees the management of the business and affairs of
the Company. The Directors are accountable for making decisions
objectively in the best interest of the shareholders as a whole.

The Board is responsible for making decisions on all major aspects of
the Company’s affairs, including the approval and monitoring of key
policy matters, overall strategies, business plans and annual budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, material transactions,
major capital expenditure, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

The Board may delegate aspects of its management and
administration functions to the management. In particular, the day-
to-day management of the Company is delegated to the chief
executive officer of the Group, Mr. Wu Zheyan, and his management
team.

Mr. Wu Dongping is the father of Mr. Wu Zheyan. Save and except
this, there is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material relevant relationship) between Board members and
between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

The Company has throughout the Year met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting or related financial management expertise.
At all times during the Year, the independent non-executive Directors
represent at least one-third of the Board.
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The Board is expected to meet regularly and at least four times a
year. The Directors have full access to the information of the Group
and independent professional advice at all times whenever deemed
necessary by the Directors.

With respect to regular meetings of the Board, the Directors will be
given written notice of the meeting at least 14 days in advance and
an agenda with supporting Board papers no less than three days
prior to the meeting. For other meetings, the Directors are given as
much notice as is reasonable and practicable in the circumstances.

Details of directors’ attendance at Board meetings, Committee
meetings and 2015 Annual General Meeting held during the year are
set out in the following table:

EFQAEHRTER  ABFELBTHR -
EXNERER/VENBER THEZHESA
SEENRBUEEER -

&

REFENTHERME  EFHNERAE
MVREFEZNEEEN  IREFM TR
AREGHEEIAEREFEX - HEMEREM
5 EREGZERATERERYEATHE
e

THRIRERERAEELERFREH &5
FEEREE —T- DEAREAFABME

1

Meeting attendance/number of meetings

BHLRRY ERY
2015 Risk
Annual Audit Remuneration  Nomination Management
General Board  Committee  Committee ~ Committee  Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
~E-1% E¥e EiZRe FHzZRe ReZZAE RREEZAE
Name of Directors ESen 3 Sk | {1 ] L1 ] | | e |
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. Wang Jinglun (Chairman) IEERE(ZE) N/A ik N/A N/A N/A N/A
(resigned on 23 May 2016) (R-Z-~ERA-TZRED) TER TER R R Oyl
. Xie Qingmel (Chairman) HEELL(ZE) 10 14/14 N/A N/A N/A N/A
(apointed as Charman on 23May 201)  (R=Z—r~ERA-1+=1 TER TR Wil Wil
BZfEAER)
Mr. Wu Zheyan (Chief Executive Officer) 8B E44 (k#4) 10 14114 N/A N/A N/A N/A
TiER Wil Wil Wil
Mr. Wu Qingshan REWRE N/A 3/ N/A N/A N/A N/A
(resigned on 2 April 2016) (RZT-AFRAZARHE) il itz Wil Wil Wil
Non-executive Director FUTES
Mr. Wu Dongping RATEE 01 13/14 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Wyl Wil Wil Wil
Independent non-executive BIFUGES
Directors
Mr. Lam Hin Chi ERGLE n 14114 22 44 22 22
Prof. Jin Zhongwei SERUR 0n 14/14 22 44 22 22
Prof. SuWengiang EYEE 01 14114 22 44 22 22
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Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the Code, the Board meetings
should be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals. The Board only held two regular meetings during the Year
to approve the interim and annual results in 2016 whilst other
matters of the Board were dealt with by written resolutions or ad hoc
Board meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board has carried out its duties and responsibilities as set out in
code provision D.3 in the Code, including the development of policies
and practices on corporate governance, monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, reviewing the compliance with the Code, disclosure in
this report and legal and regulatory requirements of the Group.

THE CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Mr. Wang Jingjun resigned as chairman of the Board on 23 May 2016
and Ms. Xie Qingmei, an executive director of the Company, has
been appointed as the chairman of the Board with effect from 23
May 2016

Mr. Wu Zheyan is the chief executive officer of the Company. Further
details are disclosed in the section headed “The Board” of this
report.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ INDEPENDENCE

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of two executive
Directors and four non-executive Directors. Three of the non-
executive Directors are independent. Further details of the
composition of the Board are disclosed in the section headed “The
Board” of this report.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors are expected to participate in the
activities of the Board, particularly in the establishment of a selection
process to ensure a mix of competent directors and officers;
adoption of a system of internal checks and balances; scrutiny of the
Company's performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and
objectives; and ensuring that the exercise of Board authority is within
the powers conferred to the Board under its articles of association
(the "Articles”) and applicable laws, rules and regulations.

ate GOVG rnance Report contined
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors are highly skilled
professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience in the
fields of accounting, finance and business. Their skills, expertise and
number in the Board ensure that strong independent views and
judgement are brought in the Board's deliberations and that such
views and judgement carry weight in the Board’s decision-making
process. Their presence and participation also enable the Board to
maintain high standards of compliance in financial and other
mandatory reporting requirements, and provide adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the
Company and the Company.

Each independent non-executive Director gives the Company an
annual confirmation of his independence. The Company considers
such Directors to be independent under the guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Each Director, upon reasonable request, is given access to
independent professional advice in circumstances he may deem
appropriate and necessary for the discharge of his duties to the
Company, at the expense of the Company.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND ROTATION
OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 15
June 2015, which may be terminated by not less than three months'
notice in writing served by either party on the other. Each of the non-
executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors
have been appointed for a term of three years commencing from 15
June 2015. None of the Directors has entered into a service contract
with any member of the Group (excluding contracts expiring or
determinable by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation)).

Pursuant to the Articles, at each annual general meeting one-third of
the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years. A retiring
Director shall be eligible for re-election.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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According to the Articles and in the opinion of the Board, Ms. Xie
Qingmei, Mr. Lam Hin Chi and Prof. Jin Zhongwei shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. All of the above retiring
Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
same meeting.

Where vacancies arise at the Board, candidates will be proposed and
put forward to the Board by the Nomination Committee (as defined
below) as set out below under the section headed “Nomination
Committee” of this report.

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Remuneration for executive Directors and senior management is
determined in accordance with performance, professional
experiences and the prevailing market practices. The remuneration
of non-executive Directors is subject to regular assessment by the
Remuneration Committee (as defined below).

TRAINING, INDUCTION AND CONTINUING
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment so as
to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Company should be responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and
duties of the Directors.

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the relevant
code provision. The Company had received from each of the
Directors the record of training the Directors received.

ate GOVG rnance Report contined
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. After making
specific enquiry to all the Directors, the Company confirms that all
the Directors have complied with the standards as stipulated in the
Model Code throughout the Year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up four Board committees, namely, the audit
committee, the remuneration committee, the nomination committee
and the risk management committee (collectively the “Board
Committees”), for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei and Prof. Su
Wengiang. Mr. Lam Hin Chi is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee shall assist the
Board in fulfilling its corporate governance and overseeing
responsibilities in relation to financial reporting, risk management
and internal control systems and internal and external audit
functions. The Audit Committee is further authorised by the Board to
investigate any activity within its terms of reference, and is tasked
with recommending to the Board appropriate actions emanating
from such investigations. The Audit Committee has unrestricted
access to personnel, records, internal and external auditors, risk
assessment and assurance and senior management, as may be
appropriate in the discharge of its functions.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee discharged its responsibilities

by:

making recommendations to the Board on the reappointment
of the external auditor and approval of the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor;

monitoring the external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standard, and discussing with the external auditor
the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations;

implementing the Company’s policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services,

reviewing, and monitoring the integrity of, the financial
statements of the Company and the Company’s interim report
to ensure that the information presents a true and balanced
assessment of the Company's financial position;

reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems to ensure that management has
discharged its duty to have effective systems,

reviewing the Company's financial and accounting policies and
practices;

reviewing the external auditor's management letter, material
queries raised by the external auditor to the management, if
any, in respect of the accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and the management'’s response to such
queries; and

reporting to the Board on the matters set out in the Code on
the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is authorised by the Board to obtain external
legal or other independent professional advice and to secure the
attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and expertise if it
considers necessary in the performance of its functions. The Audit
Committee is provided with sufficient resources by the Company to
discharge its duties. The Audit Committee’s specific terms of
reference are available on request to any shareholder of the
Company and are posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website, www.merrygardenholdings.com.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee together with management
has reviewed the Code, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed the Group's internal control
and financial reporting matters, including a review of the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the interim results
for the six months ended 30 June 2016, with recommendation to the
Board for approval. The Audit Committee has also recommended to
the Board that, subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, BDO Limited be re-appointed as the external
auditors of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises all independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei and
Prof. Su Wengiang. Prof. Jin Zhongwei is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The major duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

(@ to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b)  to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

(c)  to make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

(d) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

(e) to review and approve management’s remuneration proposals
by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

(fy  to review and approve compensation payable to the executive
Directors and senior management for any 10ss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;
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to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

@

—
>
=

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee’s specific terms of reference are
available on request to any shareholder of the Company and are
posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website,
www.merrygardenholdings.com.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the
remuneration policy and structure of the executive Directors and
senior management of the Company, and offered advice on the
same to the Board. The Remuneration Committee also resolved to
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive directors and senior management.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises all independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei and
Prof. Su Wengiang. Prof. Jin Zzhongwei is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The major duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(@ to review the structure, size and composition of the Board
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nhominated for directorships;

(c) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive
officer of the Group.
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Where vacancy on the Board exists, the Nomination Committee will
carry out a selection process by making reference to the skills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and time
commitments of the proposed candidates, the Company’s needs
and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations, and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of
candidates for directorship.

The Nomination Committee’s specific terms of reference are
available on request to any shareholder of the Company and are
posted on the Stock Exchange's website and the Company’s website,
www.merrygardenholdings.com.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board, conducted performance evaluations to
assess whether the non-executive Directors have spent enough time
in fulfilling their duties, assessed the independence of independent
non-executive Directors, and had been keeping under review the
leadership needs of the organisation, both executive and non-
executive, with a view to ensuring the continued ability of the
organisation to compete effectively in the marketplace. The
Nomination Committee has also adopted the following diversity
policy on the Board:

We embrace and encourage our employees’ differences in age,
color, disability, ethnicity, family or marital status, gender identity or
expression, language, national origin, physical and mental ability,
political affiliation, race, religion, sexual orientation, socio-economic
status, veteran status, and other characteristics that make our
directors unique.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee comprises all independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei and
Prof. Su Wengiang. Mr. Lam Hin Chi is the chairman of the Risk
Management Committee.
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The major duties of the Risk Management Committee are as follows:

@)

to review the Group risk, capital and liquidity management
framework, the Group's risk appetite, its risk policies and
standards, and supporting risk limits, including the parameters
used and the methodology adopted, and the processes used
for identifying and assessing risks;

to review material risk exposures of the Group, including
market, credit, insurance, operational, liquidity, and economic
and regulatory capital risks against the Group’s risk
measurement methodologies and management actions to
monitor and control such exposures;

to review the standard for accurate and timely monitoring of
large exposures and certain risk types of critical importance,
and the Group's capability to identify and manage new risk
types,

to receive reports and recommendations from management
on the Group's attitude to and tolerance of risk, including
financial and non-financial risks;

to oversee the Group's processes and policies for determining
risk tolerance and review management’s measurement and
effectiveness of, and compliance with, approved Group risk
tolerance levels and policies and standards, and the resultant
action in respect of policy breaches;

to review the risks inherent in strategic transactions and
business plans and provide the Board with input on the risk/
reward trade offs implicit within those plans; and

to review the Group's capability to identify and manage new
risk types, and the Group’s stress tests to ensure they are
rigorous and the Group responds adequately to the results.

The Risk Management Committee’s specific terms of reference are
available on request to any shareholder of the Company and are
posted on the Stock Exchange's website and the Company’s website,
www.merrygardenholdings.com.

During the Year, the Risk Management Committee has evaluated and
assessed the effectiveness and adequacy of the Terms of Reference
of the Risk Management Committee.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Company to ensure that these
financial statements give a true and fair presentation in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards.

The statement by the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is
set out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 66 to 72.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Pursuant to Code provision C.1.2, the Management should provide
all members of the board with monthly updates giving a balanced
and understandable assessment of the issuer’s performance,
position and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the board as a
whole and each director to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08
and Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has deviated from C.1.2 in that while the management
has updated most of the Directors on a monthly basis about the
business operation and performance of the Company, not all the
Directors received such updates as the monthly updates were
conducted on-site at the Group’s factory in China. Members of the
Board who did not attend such on-site meetings did not receive the
updates. However, the management would provide detailed updates
to all the Directors on a half-yearly and yearly basis. In the event
there are any significant updates to be provided, the management
will update all the Directors as early as practicable for discussion and
resolution. The Company also has in place a system for every
Director to make enquiries with the senior management about the
business operation of the Group and to give suggestions or feedback
in the event such Director is not able attend the monthly on-site
updates session.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the independent
auditor’s independence, objectivity and effectiveness of the audit
process. It receives each year letter from the independent auditor
confirming their independence and objectivity and holds meetings
with representatives of the independent auditor to consider the
scope of its audit, approve its fees, and the scope and
appropriateness of non-audit services, if any, to be provided by it.
The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and retention of the independent auditor.

The remuneration paid or payable to the independent auditor of the
Company for audit services for the Year were approximately
HK$1,200,000.

The remuneration paid or payable to the independent auditor of the
Company for non-audit services for the Year were nil.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. Yu Hok Sum, is a full-
time employee of the Group. According to rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules, Mr. Yu Hok Sum has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training for the Year. Please refer to his biographical
details as set out on page 65 of this annual report.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There are no significant changes in the Articles and the
memorandum of association of the Company during the Year.

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles, members holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company,
to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Ccompany.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the Year, the Board complied with the Code provisions on risk
management and internal control as set out in the Code. The Board
has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems for the Group. The
systems are designed to manage the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or 0ss.

The management of the Company has established a set of
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of
operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding assets
against unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial
information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the
likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

The Board has overseen the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A year end review of
the effectiveness of the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ risk
management and internal control systems has been conducted
annually and the systems are considered to be effective and
adequate. The Company also has an internal audit function to carry
out the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the systems, and has procedures in place to keep
information confidential and manage actual or potential conflicts of
interest. Stringent internal structures have been designed to prevent
the misuse of inside information and avoid conflicts of interest.

SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD AND
PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS' MEETINGS

Shareholders or investors can contact the Company in the following
ways to make enquiry or to provide suggestions:

Contact Person: Mr. Yu Hok Sum, Company Secretary
Tel: (852) 3904 1867
Postal Address: Unit 1610, The Metropolis Tower,
10 Metropolis Drive, Hunghom, Hong Kong

To put forward proposals at a general meeting, the shareholders
should submit a written notice of those proposals with detailed
contact information to the company secretary of the Company at the
Company’s principal place of business stated above.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R - g MEVAEmE

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

This is the ESG report of the Group, reporting on its Environmental,
Social, and Governance (the “ESG") performance, with the disclosure
reference made to the ESG Reporting Guide as described in Appendix
27 of the Listing Rules and guidance set out by The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

1.

Environment

On environmental protection, the Company has implemented
“Sound system, cherish resources, treat the earth well,
sustainable development” policy since the introduction of
ISO14001 environmental management system in July 2014,
which requires the compliance of environmental laws and
regulations of the nation and industry as well as industry
standards, norms and local regulations; using environmental
materials, making full use of resources to improve its
utilization; continuously reducing the generation of solid
wastes, controlling hazardous wastes, noise, sewage
emissions; energy and resources conservation; improving the
environmental awareness and operational skills of all staff, to
achieve continuous improvement of environmental
performance. Meanwhile, to strengthen our staff's
environmental protection awareness and for the better
implementation of our environmental policy, we have set up
corresponding environmental objectives and indicators,
adopted practical environmental management measures,
clarified the environmental responsibility with various
departments and promoted to the relevant parties environmental
policy of the Company.

The Group provides waste knowledge to the public through
bulletin board, corporate communications and dispatches the
same to our staff to raise the environment protection
consciousness. In order to effectively control and reduce the
generation of harmful and hazardous wastes, the Company
has taken following specific measures:

1. All departments and employees that generate solid
wastes should take measures to collect and store solid
wastes;
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Each department carries out a clear identification of the
container or designated location used to collect solid
waste;

The waste fluorescent tubes, waste batteries and other
hazardous wastes generated by each department, after
reaching a certain level of storage amount and being
collected and registered by each department, will be sent
to the administrative center to manage and store in a
dedicated trash by designated person for unified disposal
by a qualified contractor;

Scraps and sawdust generated from the wood processing
process, after being collected, will be used as boiler fuel
and to produce biomass energy; boiler slag, precipitator
dust and liquid residue of dust removal, after being
collected, should be used as modified soil fertilizer to
resale,

Waste paint bucket and spray section for the adsorption
of waste wood chips of waste paint and other hazardous
wastes, shall not be mixed with other solid wastes, and
must be stored in hazardous wastes reservoir pool
constructed strictly in accordance with the relevant
requirements under the “Pollution Control Standards for
Hazardous Wastes Storage” GB18597-2001. The disposal,
collection, temporary storage and management of
hazardous solid wastes should be implemented
according to relevant provisions of “Hazardous
Chemicals Management Regulations” and "“Precursor
Chemicals Management Regulations” and all such
hazardous wastes should be entrusted to Xiamen Oasis
Environmental Stock Company Limited* (& PI4kMIRIRE
7 B BR A 7)) for disposal,

Recyclable solid wastes should be classified for centralized
storage and recycling upon reaching a certain amount;

Daily non-recyclable production and household garbage
should be collected by the qualified contractor for
processing;

Enter into the environmental protection notice with
relevant parties on a regular basis.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Through a series of control measures, the Group's
environmental protection work was highly recognized by
environmental protection, forestry and other relevant
departments.

The Group attached great importance to the overall condition
of energy consumption, and has established and fulfilled the
“energy management regulations” to clarify the norms of
energy utilization and responsibilities of various departments,
and set up monitoring groups to monitor and check the energy
usage of production system and non-production system. A
sound energy-saving incentive and restraint mechanism and
energy-saving funds have been set up to award groups and
individuals achieving outstanding results in the energy-saving
management, energy-saving invention and creation, energy-
saving, potential excavation and consumption reduction. There
are currently three teams and two individuals who have
received this award.

Water Resources:

The Group’s water consumption mainly includes the domestic
water and boiler water. To further save and recycle of water
resources, the Company actively advocated group employees
to establish the concept of water conservation. Regarding the
domestic sewage treatment, the Group has built a domestic
sewage treatment system, and treated domestic sewage can
be discharged after reaching the standard for discharge for
irrigation. In addition, a large number of slogans relating to
water conservation have been posted on wash basins,
commaodes and kitchen sinks to fulfilling “turning off the faucet
while leaving”.

With respect to boiler water, the boiler steam condensate
recovery system put into construction by the Company could
not only save fuel, but also effectively improve circulating use
of water to reduce water waste. Sewage emissions are mainly
ammonia nitrogen, chemical oxygen demand and suspended
solids, the total emission of which amounted to 583 kg in 2016.
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Exhaust Emission:

In order to maintain the air quality of the workplace and
safeguard the health of employees, all the central processing
plants of the Group are equipped with a central dust removal
system to effectively reduce dust concentration, noise level
and exhaust emission. Establishing closed spray device has
protected staff from exposing to exhaust and ensure the safety
of the working environment.

In addition, the cabins that the Group sold were equipped with
the state-of-the-art and first-class silicon-based thin film
photovoltaic power generation system. Each dealings of
wooden house can save an annual generating capacity of
1,392kwh, standard coal of 557kg, carbon dioxide of 1,388kg
and sulfur dioxide of 41kg.

The total production electricity consumption in 2016 was 10.6
gigawatt hours.

Waste Recycling:

In line with the concept of energy conservation, the Group has
been actively committed to the integrated transformation of
energy-saving system, to promote low-carbon recycle and
pollution reduction in environmental protection facilities. After
the operation of the biomass wood pellet fuel production line
with an annual output of 50,000 tons, wood residue and other
wastes generated from the wood processing will be made full
use of to make wood pellet fuel, making an integrated
utilization rate of 100%. The total production and sales of
biomass wood particles amounted to 14,639 tons and 14,652
tons respectively in 2016. Biomass pellet fuel, which does not
contain sulfur phosphorus, will not corrode the boiler and can
extend the service life of the boiler, from which the enterprise
will benefit. It will neither lead to acid rain, nor will it pollute the
atmosphere or the environment.

During the Year, the Group complied with all relevant laws and
regulations relating to emissions.
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Society
Stakeholders Contact

The Group’s business contacts with global shareholders,
customers, employees, suppliers, business partners and local
communities were based on the responsibility to the
community. The Group has formulated policies and practices
on a range of topics such as human rights, anti-discrimination,
social responsibility and environmental management,
demonstrating its commitment to social responsibility.

Product Responsibility

During the Year, the Group complied with the Law of the
People’s Republic of China in relation to product quality. The
Group's “Merry Garden 2B ZXE " brand’s anti-corrosive wood
was accredited as “Fujian Users Satisfaction Product”, “Anti-
corrosion Wood Engineering Application Demonstration
Enterprise” and “Fujian Top Brand Product in 2014" and other
honorary titles. Its product obtained sustainable praise from
consumers. Our employees must strictly abide by the Group's
anti-corruption policies to maintain the Group’s reputation.

To ensure that customers are offered with the highest quality
products, the Group has developed a set of strict quality
control system, covering supplier selection, material testing,
production process control, product factory inspection, third-
party inspection and certification, after-sales service, product
quality tracking and other processes. The management system
of “survival with records, flow traceability, information
accessibility and quality retroactivity”, the quality inspection
mechanism of first inspection, self-inspection, line inspection,
cross inspection and final inspection, the abnormal reporting
and correction system and the regular quality analysis
mechanism for export products have been set up and
implemented. Publicity and promotion meetings, training
sessions, site-meetings and seminars were organized on a
regular basis to organize staff to learn relevant laws,
regulations and rules, building the concept that “quality is the
life of a company, who is the first responsible person for the
quality”, and developing a professional team comprising 25
quality management staff through strict product quality training
assessment, thereby enhancing our staff's main responsibilities
for quality and safety and quality control awareness.
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Products are made from woods which are from all over the
world and certified by the FSC and PEFC forest management
systems. Both are provided by qualified suppliers and should
be accompanied by a certificate issued by the supplier and
require a sample inspection record for traceability. Such
materials should be sent to CNAS approved laboratory at least
once a year to test the content of heavy metals (such as lead,
cadmium, mercury and chromium), free formaldehyde and
other toxic and hazardous substances. All the wood used for
the production have accepted epidemic prevention treatment
and each batch of finished product subject to approval by the
quality control department, while samples selected at random
should be sent to the inspection room for testing before
delivery.

During the Year, the Group complied with all relevant laws and
regulations relating to health and safety, advertising, labeling
and privacy matters relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.

supply Chain Management

In the selection of suppliers, the Group shall, after checking the
relevant qualifications, conduct a on-spot inspection and divide
the suppliers into three classes, namely: A-class, B-class and
C-class three classes according to their production scale,
production capacity, production environment, staffing, safety
management organization, quality control system and other
indicators. Purchasing department regularly organizes the
production department, the department of administration and
other relevant departments to conduct an integrated
assessment on the safety management and performance and
product after-sales service of qualified suppliers to choose the
fittest ones. For a small number of suppliers with high security
requirements, dedicated staff can be arranged to conduct on-
site assessment if necessary.
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Human Resources Investment

The Group complies with and also requires its suppliers to
comply with the guiding principles of ILO Declaration on
Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work and the United
Nations Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights,
which include freedom of association, collective bargaining,
the elimination of the use of child labor, the abolition of all
types of forced or compelled labor or workplace discrimination
and other relevant principles. During the Year, the Group
abided by national labour laws and regulations including but
not limited to the prohibition of employment of child and
forced labour.

Recruitment:

The Group has developed a comprehensive and well-
established human resources management system, which
clearly stipulates our requirements and operational norms on
interviews, evaluation, background checks and admission
notice in the recruitment process of staff. With respect to the
training, there are not only trainings on pre-job corporate
systems and on-job requirements, but also special trainings for
on-job management skills improvement and business skills
enhancement.

Salary and Benefits:

The Group attracted many talented people to serve the
Company with its perfect remuneration and a lucrative and
flexible welfare system. All employees of the Group have more
than two promotion or salary promotion opportunities each
year by virtue of their monthly assessment results. In addition,
all managers can receive more than 2 times the year-end
bonus by virtue of the annual assessment results. In addition,
the Group provided house purchase subsidy, car subsidies, oil
subsidies, phone subsidies and subsidies for meals for
excellent management and technical staff, and more than 85%
of the management staff are enjoying this treatment.

It is the Group’s norms and targeted talents development
policy of “selection, cultivation and retention” that attracted
many outstanding people to serve the Company and cultivated
a large number of splendid talents and leadership.
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Training and Development:

To enable all our employees to further enhance their
management skills and expertise, the Group has conducted
and organized various types of training activities targeted to
different technical and managerial positions.

The Group launched a comprehensive training and
development program, i.e. the “bring in and walk out” plan for
employees in 2016 with two terms a year and each for about
30-50 people. Candidates selected by the head and vice
president of each department for current training session can
officially join the “Sunshine Group Training Camp” after passing
the interview. During the training period, the training instructor
will tailor an integrated occupational improvement program
according to each student’s own situation. Students who
passed the training, would further enhance his/her creativity
and professional skills, and generate greater benefit for the
Group. Besides, the Company has also organized targeted
business skills training based on the actual job requirements,
such as the IP management system training, Fsc management
system training, occupational health management system-
internal auditor training and national forestry standardization
training, enabling the staff to give full play effect.

In addition, the Group has formed a harmonious atmosphere of
“the excellent training the greener, the experienced training
the old and unity and cooperation” based on the actual
production and staff skills to speed up the standardization and
specialization of staff skills, while opening up an aisle for skilled
talents to stand out, thereby enhancing the overall brand
image of “Merry Garden” and holding the “King Wood
Sophisticated Technology” competition once a quarter, thus
creating a group of highly-skilled craftsmen, promoting the
Company's new leap forward development.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group is committed to providing employees with a healthy and
safe working environment and protecting the social environment. The
Company has always put our employee’s occupational health and
safety and environmental protection in the first place, and firmly
believe that the excellent environment, health and safety performance
will bring sustainable growth for the Company. We have set following
goals:

1. to create a healthy and safe working environment and further
control the occurrence of occupational hazards;

2. all exhaust, sewage and waste residues meet respective
standard of discharge.

The Group attaches great importance to the protection of work
environment of the staff and the social environment. In respect to
providing employees with a healthy and safe environment, the
Company has developed a sound occupational health and safety
management system, including issuing compliance labor insurance
products on a monthly basis and requiring relevant personnel to
wear the specified respirators, earplugs, goggles and other
protection supplies with reference to relevant laws and regulations.
In addition, the Company has launched corresponding reward and
punishment mechanism, and established supervision branch to
check and supervise. The company also invested in the construction
of the central dust removal system, to avoid the secondary pollution
and noise pollution caused by the dust, creating the cleanest
operating environment.

The Group has actively taken the following measures to ensure the
occupational health and safety of employees:

1. to provide staff with a seven-day pre-job safety training and
on-job special safety production operations training from time
to time;
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2. to organize the corporate compulsory fire brigade to purchase
professional fire emergency rescue facilities, including fire
engines, automatic sprinkler systems, automatic alarm system
and other fire facilities and equipment; to hold fire evacuation
exercises twice a year to provide all employees safety
awareness and conduct monthly fire training targeted to key
fire positions;

3. to further implement staff physical examination and supervise
and urge staff to wear protective equipment as required;

4. to use prevention and anti-occupational injury device in the
production process: by using active protective devices, fixed
protective device or a variety of protective devices;

5. tostrengthen troubleshooting, implementation and rectification
of production safety accident, fulfilling business owners’
obligations to protect employees’ health and safety;

6. to arrange shuttle bus for staff and purchase accident
insurance to ensure the traffic safety of staff;

7. to stick eye-catching reflective stripe on overalls to ensure the
traffic safety at night;

8. staff canteens designate main ingredients brand or suppliers
and conduct assessment and acceptance on suppliers on a
regular basis;

The Group’s accidental injury rate has further reduced and no
occupational hazards occurred during 2016 financial year.

During the Year, the Group complied with all relevant labor laws and
regulations in providing a healthy and safe working environment for
its employees.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group has been committed to establishing and continuing to
improve the internal control system to prevent corruption and fraud.
The Company's audit committee and management must not tolerate
corruption and fraud. Honesty, impartiality, transparency and
accountability are all reflected in the Group's policies and operating
procedures.
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Meanwhile, the Group expresses its firm stance on anti-corruption
and fraud to its employees, and also incorporates appropriate
requirements within the contract of the third party suppliers to clarify
the Group's requirements. The Group’s internal audit department will
conduct an independent audit to promote the overall mechanism to
be more effective and perfect. Internal exchanges will be organized
on a regular basis to disseminate relevant knowledge, skills and
experience.

The Group strengthens the anti-corruption supervision, while
ensuring the daily supervision of the pipeline. The Group has
established a fair and honest report platform to encourage real-
name reporting of all corruption and theft behaviors in the course of
production and operation. The public Wechat account, telephone
and office automation systems on the platform enabled grass-roots
staff to communicate with the management in a faster and effective
way and an incentive system has set up to award effective
informants.

In conclusion, the Group's firm stance on anti-corruption and fraud is
an important part of the overall corporate governance and fully
protects our shareholders’ assets and interests.

During the Year, there were no incidents of corruption in the Group.

During the Year, the Group complied with all relevant laws and
regulations relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

CONTRIBUTION TO THE COMMUNITY

The Group has been actively participating in the charity and social
welfare undertakings. The Group endowed RMB300,000 per year
since the establishment of the "King Wood Education Fund” in
Zhangping Charity Federation in 2008. Since 2010, the Group has
donated more than RMBé million for social welfare undertakings and
comforting garrisons. Over the years, we have been funding schools
to build teaching facilities and donating piano, computer and other
teaching equipment, supporting underdeveloped countryside for
road construction and donating education funds, and have absorbed
a large number of poor workers. In 2016, the Group donated a total
of RMB833,000.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHS

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group'’s business and its outlook are set out in
the sections of Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion
and Analysis. Certain financial key performance indicators are
provided in the section of Financial Summary. Particulars of
important evert affecting the Company that have occurred since the
end of the Year are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Company.

The Group complies with the requirements under the Companies
Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the "SFQ”) for the disclosure of information and corporate
governance. The Group also complies with the requirements of
Employment Ordinance and ordinances relating to occupational
safety for the interest of employees of the Group.

The Group respects the environment and is committed to minimizing
its carbon footprint as a socially responsible enterprise. Carbon
footprint is defined as the total amount of direct and indirect
emissions of Green House Gases (GHGS) expressed in terms of the
equivalent amount of Carbon Dioxide of (CO,) emission. Non-
hazardous wastes produced from the Group mainly consist of used
paper such as office papers and marketing materials. To minimize
the impact on carbon footprint and the environment, the Group
implements the following practices to use paper efficiently:

Duplex printing is set as the default mode for most network
printers;

o Employees are reminded to practice photocopying wisely;
o Employees are encouraged to use both sides of paper;
o Paper is separated from other waste for easier recycling; and

o Boxes and trays are placed beside photocopiers as containers
to collect single-sided paper for reuse purpose.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Electricity consumption is identified as having an adverse impact on
the environment and natural resources. A typical commercial
building uses more energy for lighting than for other electric
equipment. The Group is determined to reduce energy consumption
and implement conservation practices to reduce the effect of carbon
footprint. Air conditioning and light zone arrangements reduce
unnecessary electricity usage; employees enforce good practices in
maintenance of lighting and electric equipment to ensure they are
kept in good and proper condition to maximize efficiency.

Key Risk Factors

The following lists out the key risks and uncertainties facing the
Group.

Impact of Local and International Regulations

The business operation of the Group is also subject to government
policy, relevant regulations and guidelines established by the
regulatory authorities. Failure to comply with the rules and
requirements may lead to penalties, amendments or suspension of
the business operation by the authorities. The Group closely
monitors changes in government policies, regulations and markets
as well as conducting studies to assess the impact of such changes.
As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has
complied with all related laws and regulations in all material aspects
which may have significant impact on the Group during the Year.

Third-Party Risks

The Group has been relying on third-party service providers in parts
of business to improve performance and efficiency of the Group.
While gaining the benefits from external service providers, the
management realizes that such operational dependency may pose a
threat of vulnerability to unexpected poor or lapses in service
including reputation damage, business disruption and monetary
losses. To address such uncertainties, the Group engages only
reputed third-party providers and closely monitors their
performance.
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Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognizes the accomplishment of the employees by
providing comprehensive benefit packages career development
opportunities and internal training appropriate to individual needs.
The Group provides a healthy and safe workplace for all employees.
No strikes and cases of fatality due to workplace accidents occurred
during the Year.

The Group encompasses working relationships with suppliers to
meet our customers’ needs in an effective and efficient manner. The
departments work closely to make sure the tendering and
procurement process is conducted in an open, fair and just manner.
The Group’s requirements and standards are also well-
communicated to suppliers before the commencement of a project.

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers through
various means and channels, including usage of market research to
understand customer trends and needs and regular analyze on
customer feedback. The Group also conducts comprehensive tests
and checks to ensure that only quality products and services are
offered to the customers.

RESULTS & DIVIDENDS

Results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or l0ss on page 73. Other movements in reserves
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 77.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the Year (2015: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 7 of this
annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in note 28(c) to the financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s aggregate amounts of
reserves available for distribution were approximately
RMB670,814,000 (2015: RMB631,622,000), of which nil (2015: Nil) has
been proposed as a final dividend for the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company was
incorporated.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment are set out in note 11
to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS AND DEBENTURES

Details of the Group’s bank loans and debentures are set out in
notes 24 and 26 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the Group's five largest customers accounted for
approximately 49.1% (2015: 33.5%) of the Group's total revenue and
the Group's largest customer for the year accounted for
approximately 15.3% (2015: 9.9%) of the Group’s total revenue. The
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 55.4%
(2015: 39.0%) of the Group's total purchases, while the largest
supplier for the year accounted for approximately 16.1% (2015:
14.6%) of the Group's total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates or any of the shareholders of the
Company who owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital has any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers
or suppliers.
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 547 (2015: 690) employees
in total. The table below shows a breakdown of the Group’s
employees by their responsibilities:

(=

RZB—RFTZA=1+—8 AEEH*EF547
ZREEB(CZE—HF 1 6904) c TRAKBEZ
DEAREEESHM

2016

—E—-REF

Management, Finance & Administration IR - B RITIR 33
Sales & Marketing HER L 23
Design, Research & Development AR A AR 69
Production HE 365
Quality Control o B 57
Total BET 547

Total staff costs for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB38,761,000 (2015: RMB41,967,000) and the details are set out in
note 6(b) to the financial statements. Remuneration for employees is
based upon their qualification, experience, job nature, performance
and market condition.

The Group has established various welfare plans including the provision
of pension funds, medical insurance, unemployment insurance and
other relevant insurance for employees who are employed by the
Group pursuant to the rules and regulations of the PRC and the existing
policy requirements of the local government. The Group also maintains
the employee short-term health insurance and unforeseen injury
insurance. In addition, the Group provides staff quarters to its
employees.

Directors and qualified employees of the Company may be granted
share options to subscribe for shares in the Company in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme (as defined
below).
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DIRECTORS
Throughout the Year, the composition of the Board was as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Jingjun (resigned on 23 May 2016)*
Ms. Xie Qingmei

Mr. Wu Zheyan

Mr. Wu Qingshan (resigned on 2 April 2016)*

Non-executive Director
Mr. Wu Dongping

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Hin Chi
Prof. Jin Zhongwei
Prof. Su Wengiang

A description of the Directors is set out in the section headed “Board of

Directors and senior management” in this annual report.

*On 2 April 2016, Mr. Wu Qingshan resigned as an executive Director to

devote more time to his family and to attend to his personal affairs.

*0n 23 May 2016, Mr. Wang Jingjun resigned as an executive Director
and chairman of the Board in order to devote more time to his other

business commitments.

Indemnity of Directors
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The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers liability AATAAEERBELCHHENESTLBE ST
insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the 1Rk K& BN E = M 25 0B & B E 163 B Al A8 K
Directors is currently in force and was in force throughout the year. RERER -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of part XV of the SFO) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to divisions 7 and 8 of part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he is taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which will be required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein or
which will be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules, will be as follows:

Interest in shares

ESRERTHRAERKR®D - HE
R RESFHERERKE

RIB-—RET-A=+—H0 BFHALRAEH
BIOTRABEARB REBABEE(EERLE S
REEGRGIEXVED) e ftn - ARG REZT
BERBEEZRAEROIFEXVEET RESDH
AHEARE RO R AR (BIERE
EHR LB ERIINEBEXEBRE(ERE RS
BHERLORR) - SIRIEE R BB R 5E 352
WRRRD A LGP & FC M sl AR 1 7 4R RUF £%10
F# EMBETAESTETEFIZNERETHA
HEARNR RS SORRIT

Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares interest (%)
RN

EEls S Rt Kir®H B (%)
Mr. Wu Zheyan Interest in controlled corporation/ 449,647,412 17.47%
REEXE Long position (Note)

SEtlEENER e (M)

Beneficial owner/Long position 11,002,940 0.43%

BERBEEA TR
Ms. Xie Qingmei Beneficial owner/Long position 9,633,380 0.37%
SEEL L BERBEEA TR

Note: Mr. Wu Zheyan is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Green Seas
Capital Limited, his wholly-owned company.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company had interests or in short positions in the shares,
underlying shares of equity derivatives or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation defined under the SFO
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to divisions 7 and 8 of part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which he is taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which will be required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein or which will be required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as at 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director or the Controlling Shareholders (as defined below) of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during or at the end of the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or their respective close associates has any
competing interests which need to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
8.10 of the Listing Rules.

BRLEdEEEN R_F—RNF+_A=+—
B BEERARFSRITRAEMERARRFH
A AEEEAE (3% R85 RS RE)) /A -
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B P m SOk R (BRRIERE 7 R E &
A RIRXE SR EFRR R A DS A
B) - ARBTG5 352 IR RS A %
Pt E e MR £ iR AP &% 10 Pral_E T 3217
ANEFETESFXHNRETRAMERNRA R
BTV SR SRR ©
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2016, the following persons (other than a director
or chief executive of the Company), who had interests or short
positions in the shares or the underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, were as follows:

Interest in shares

FERRRAQTRG RBEKRD
MERRAR

RoB—XE+=A=+—R THALCGEH
FRRADTBRITHA B) RAR TR 54
RIS S A R IR R R RO XV E B 2 R
EIDWEXATRENEBINE - RREE
5 T HY #1155 336 /AR AT B R A
RSN -

Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding

Name Capacity/Nature of interest shares interest (%)

SRR BN
&8 e Sip ERKE Bir8H B9 (%)
Green Seas Capital Limited Beneficial owner/Long position (Note 1) 449,647,412 17.47%

BRBEAN 1R (K1)
Notes:

1. The entire issued share capital of Green Seas Capital Limited is legally and
beneficially owned by Mr. Wu Zheyan, who is deemed to be interested in the
shares held by Green Seas Capital Limited.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any person,
other than the Directors whose interests are set out in the section
"Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures” above, who had an
interest or short positions in the shares or underlying shares that
were required to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or recorded pursuant to Section 336 of Part
XV of the SFO as of 31 December 2016.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution passed by all the shareholders on 15 June
2012, the Company has conditionally adopted the share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of recognising
and acknowledging the contributions the eligible participants had or
may have made to the Group. The Board may, at its discretion, grant
options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to the Directors
(including executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors), the directors of the
Company’s subsidiaries and employees of the Group and any other
persons (including consultants or advisers) whom the Board
considers, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group. The Directors were authorised to grant
options to subscribe for shares of the Company and to allot, issue
and deal with the ordinary shares pursuant to the exercise of options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and to take all such steps
as may be necessary and/or desirable to implement and give effect
to the Share Option Scheme. The maximum number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and under any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares in
issue immediately following completion of the Global Offering (as
defined in the Company’s prospectus dated 25 June 2012), being
100,000,000 shares, excluding any shares that may be issued under
the options which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme (or any other share option schemes of the
Company), unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting and/or such other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time.

BRETE
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Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, the number of shares that may be granted to an
eligible participant under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including both exercised and
outstanding options) shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue of
the Company within any 12-month period. Any grant of options to a
Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company or any of their respective associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) is required to be approved by our
independent non-executive Directors. Unless otherwise approved by
the shareholders of the Company in general meeting and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules, the number
of shares that may be granted to a substantial shareholder or any
independent non-executive Director or their respective associates
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
shall not exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue, having an aggregate
value in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised, and the period during which an option may be
exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion,
however, no options shall be exercised 10 years after they have
been granted. The subscription price of a share in respect of a
particular option shall be not less than the highest of (a) the official
closing price of the shares on the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange; (b) the average official closing price of the shares on the
daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal
value of a share. The Share Option Scheme shall take effect from the
date it is adopted and shall remain effective within a period of 10
years from that date.

From the date that the Share Option Scheme became effective and
unconditional and up to the date of this annual report, no share
options were granted under the Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of ordinary
shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
100,000,000, representing 3.89% of the issued shares of the
Company.
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Save as the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the Year was
the Company, its subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or and other body corporate.

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in this report, no
equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares, or that require the Company to enter into any
agreement that will or may result in the Company issuing shares,
here entered into by the Company during the Year or subsisted at
the end of the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchase, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules requires that at least 25% of an
issuer’s total issued share capital must at all times be held by the
public. Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has maintained sufficiency of public float at all times during the Year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, there is no transaction of the Group constituted
non-exempt continuing connected transactions (“Continuing
Connected Transactions”) for the Company under the Listing Rules
(2015: Sales to Zzhangping Jiupengxi Ecological Tourism Development
Company Limited were RMB3,554,000).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in the
normal course of business are provided under note 30 to the
financial statements, and none of which constitutes a discloseable
connected transaction as defined under the Listing Rules.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The Company entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of
Non-Competition”) with Mr. Wu Zheyan and Green Seas Capital
Limited (collectively referred to as the “Controlling Shareholders”) on
15 June 2012 so as to better safeguard the Group from any potential
competition and to formalise the principles for the management of
potential conflicts between them and to enhance our corporate
governance in connection with the listing of the Company’s shares
on the Stock Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed compliance
by the Controlling Shareholders and confirm that based on
confirmations and information provided by each of the Controlling
Shareholders, they were in compliance with the Deed of Non-
Competition during the Year.

The independent non-executive Directors were not required to
review any matter in relation to compliance and enforcement of the
Deed of Non-Competition during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No management contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of any business of
the Group were entered into or existed during the Year.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group supported a wide variety of charitable
activities in Hong Kong and the PRC. Donations of approximately
HK$972,000 (RMB833,000) were made by the Group to various
charitable organisations.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware that any holders of securities of the
Company are entitled to any tax relief or exemption by reason of
their holding of such securities.
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AUDITOR = ELEm

KPMG resigned as auditors of the Company on 16 November 2016 EEEEHEERR T~ E+—A+/xH

and BDO Limited has been appointed as the auditor of the Company — BHEARRQ RIAZEET - BBV IEES ST ESAR

on 8 December 2016. ERATRZZE-—R"ET-_ANBEEZERAAR
N A B ELAD

BDO Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for FEVEESZ@MEERMERA B EERME -
re-appointment. A resolution for the reappointment of BDO Limited  W&& &R AEEERET - BREESVEES
as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming &:HEIEKRER AT ARR TEHMMARESE

annual general meeting. HREERRAFRE LRZ -
On behalf of the Board RREFE

Xie Qingmei FE

Chairman WiEx

Hong Kong, 24 March 2017 HE —E—tEF=A=1WNH
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Biographies of each member of the board of directors and senior
management team of the Company during the Year and/or as at the
date of this report are set out below:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wu Zheyan (Mr. Wu), aged 37, is an executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. Wu was appointed as a
Director on 17 October 2011. He joined Fujian Zhangping Kimura
Forestry Products Co. Ltd (“Zhangping Kimura”) as a workshop
director since 1997 and obtained knowledge and experiences in the
timber products industry including the production process, research
and development works and the invention process of new timber
products. Mr. Wu became the general manager in May 2000 and the
director and legal representative of Zhangping Kimura in January
2006.

Mr. Wu graduated from Sichuan University in June 2009 with a
Diploma in business administration (Distance education). Mr. Wu is
the visiting professor of Central South University of Forestry and
Technology and Fujian Agriculture and Forestry University. Mr. WU is
a son of Mr. Wu Dongping.

Xie Qingmei (Ms. Xie), aged 49, was appointed as an executive
Director on 15 June 2012 and as the Chairman on 23 May 2016. Ms.
Xie is primarily responsible for procurement matters in respect of the
Group. She has over 14 years of experience in corporate
management and procurement. Ms. Xie joined the Group in 1999,
and she has been a deputy general manager of Zhangping Kimura
since 2001 and a director of Zhangping Kimura since 2006. Ms. Xie
was in charge of the sales department of Zhangping Kimura as well
as supervising procurement from June 1999 to December 2000, and
has been running the procurement department of Zhangping Kimura
since 2003.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Wu Dongping, aged 62, is a non-executive Director of the
Company since 15 June 2012 and is also the founder of our Group.
Mr. Wu Dongping was the chief engineer of Zhangping Kimura from
February 2006 to November 2010. Before the founding of the Group,
Mr. Wu Dongping was the chairman and the general manager of
Zhangping Kimura from December 1995 to January 2006 and the
director of Zhangping Textile Machinery Factory in Fujian (f&2%& /& F
T#ERESAIR) from December 1992 to November 1995, respectively.
Mr. Wu Dongping has been a member of the Technical Committee of
Structural Use of Wood under the National Committee of
Standardisation Technology of Timber (2B ARMIZRE(LEME B & 45
BAARMOEMZE ). He was elected as a member of The 4th
Preservation Committee of Wood Industry Institute, Chinese Society
of Wood Industry (R EIMBEAM TED SAMARMRERESED
fEZ &2) in April 2007 and was elected to the position of vice
president of the China Wood Preservation Industry Association (4
RIRET EWE) in October 2011. Mr. Wu Dongping has over 20
years of experience in the fields of wood processing, preservation
and timber structures. Mr. Wu Dongping has participated in, on
behalf of our Group, the drafting of two PRC national and forestry
industry standards, and has been involved in the reviewing of PRC
national and forestry industry standards.

Mr. Wu Dongping is the father of Mr. Wu.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lam Hin Chi (Mr. Lam), aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since 15 June
2012. Mr. Lam is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, and associates member of The Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants, The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, respectively. Mr. Lam graduated from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Professional Diploma in
Management Accountancy and a Bachelor of Arts degree (Honours)
in Accountancy. Mr. Lam has over 28 years of experience in finance,
audit and accounting. Mr. Lam was a senior personnel of a number
of companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lam is currently an independent non-executive director of VST
Holdings Limited (stock code: 856), which is listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange.
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Professor Jin Zhongwei (Professor Jin), aged 79, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
since 15 June 2012. He is an expert in wood preservation with over
39 years of experience in wood preservation. Professor Jin graduated
from Nanjing Forestry College in 1961 and majored in forestry
products chemical processing. He studied wood preservation and
modification technologies in the United States as a government-
appointed scholar from 1981 to 1983, and was a visiting scholar at
Oregon State University and Mississippi State University from 1994 to
1995 respectively.

Professor Su Wengqiang (Professor Su), aged 61, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
since 15 June 2012. Professor Su has more than 33 years of
experience in the research of forestry and timber products. Professor
Su was awarded as Model Member of the Communist Party (5%
EES) from 2006 to 2007, and was appointed as various positions in
timber industry, e.g., council member of Standing Committee of the
Heilongjiang Province Chemistry Society (BEeiT &t T2 €RES) (in
December 2004), committee member of Wood Science Institute of
the Chinese Society of Forestry (FEMEEAMRIEDE) (in April
2010), member of Board of Experts of Standardisation Committee of
China Timber and Wood Products Distribution Association Wood
Preservation Committee (R EIAM BRI ZRBHE M BHEEEZE
SEZRIEEZ S E) (in December 2009), member of Board of Experts
Committee of Standardisation Committee of China Wood
Preservation Industry Association (PEIAMRE T EHEEREES)
(in October 2011), committee member of the Wood Preservation
Research Committee of the Wood Science Institute of the Chinese
Society of Forestry (FEIMESAMEE S @AM REREZEZEE) (in
April 2007) and editor of editorial committee of Biomass Chemical
Engineering published by Institute of Chemical Industry of Forest
Products (FEIMERIZHEGMENE T ERRN CEDELET
) ) (in December 2010). Professor Su graduated from Northeast
Forestry University in July 1982, major in professional chemical
processing of forestry products (#RE{L 21 T T2 ), and obtained
a Doctorate Degree in December 2008.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chen Tianfu (Mr. Chen), aged 51, is the chief financial officer of
our Group. Since joining our Group in 2009, Mr. Chen has been
responsible for our Group's accounting and financial management
affairs. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chen was in charge of the
financial departments of Jiangxi Sanhua Real Estate Co. Ltd. (TFa=
FEEEERAT) and Fujian Dufeng Sugar Factory (1824 € IE R
respectively. Mr. Chen has over 21 years of experience in corporate
financial management and possesses the qualifications of an
accountant in the PRC. Mr. Chen graduated from Fujian Quanzhou
Supply and Sales School (f&i2%& R ML) in 1986 majoring in
financial accounting with a secondary vocational school diploma.

Yu Hok Sum (Mr. Yu), aged 33, joined our Group in October 2015,
is the group financial controller and company secretary of the Group.
Mr. Yu is responsible for our Group’s accounting and financial
management. Mr Yu has over 10 years of experience in finance,
accounting and auditing. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Yu had
worked for one of the big four international accounting firms and an
international valuation consultancy company. Mr. Yu holds a Master
of Corporate Governance degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, an fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B Az BB R

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA ENVIRONMENTAL
TECHNOLOGY AND BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on
pages 73 to 180, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

FARELEE

REBESNHEXHE  BEREZFAR/ETEFEZ
RABRRNGEMBERETREZNER - BF
EERGEEMBEREMMMLERERRREIE
FH MIAEsEEFREFERER -

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
RRERER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EFEERDPNAEERRERER

Impairment assessment of goodwill

HEREFE

The Group had goodwill amounting to RMB4,300,000
relating to its cash generating units (the “CGU") under the
operation of research, production and sale of intelligent
home electronic equipment which arises from a group of
subsidiaries acquired in 2015.

Management has performed an impairment test on
goodwill in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policies. Management has concluded that there is an
impairment of RMB4,300,000 in respect of the goodwill.
This conclusion was based on fair value less costs to
disposal calculations as the recoverable amount.

We have identified impairment assessment of goodwill as
a key audit matter because of its significance to the
consolidated financial statements and the fair value
calculations involved significant management judgement.
(Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements
and the Group’s critical accounting estimates and
assumptions in relation to the impairment of goodwill set
out in notes 2g)
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THREELFELAFESALREA4300,0007T  J3HE =
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BUBHERNBEER A HEHE SR EEBEAHE - (77
2R B RERM 15 R 28TE BEEEREEH
EfEL A EZ ST AT R ERR)

Our response:

— Evaluating the independent valuer’'s competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

— Conducting in-depth discussions with management
and the independent valuer about the assumption
used in the fair value calculations and assessing the
appropriateness of the significant assumptions and
critical judgement areas which affect the fair value
calculations; and

— Engaging other external valuation specialist to assist
us in evaluating and assessing the appropriateness
of the key assumptions used in the fair value
calculations.
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Key Audit Matter
RBERER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
ESEERPNNEERSERER

Recoverability of trade receivables

B 55 FE iy gk TE A AT [B] 4%

Some customers having higher outstanding days than the
Group’s average trade receivables aging date, increasing
their inherent exposure to credit risk. As outlined in note
20b, there were trade receivables as at 31 December
2016 more than 365 days past due.

The inherent subjectivity involved in the management
making judgements in relation to credit risk exposures.
The collectability of the Group’s trade receivables and the
valuation of the allowance for impairment of trade
receivables is a key audit matter due to the significant
management judgment involved. (Refer to note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements and the Group's critical
accounting estimates and assumptions in relation to the
impairment of trade receivables set out in notes 2m(i))

ETEFHER BEBEFHESEWNFERE AHERMY
KREEXE - A EFIEEER - 20HTaE 20080 - 7=
E—RNFH+_A=+—HAFEZELSIEEE365 B

EEERGEERREHABSEEEEIEE - BEEEES
FEMRIER P BT B B B WG IRR B R e AR E
%EE RESPREREEBHE - (F2EFSMBFHRE
fif &t 20 K ff s 2m() - B 56 B 5t B 53 /Y SR IR A1) R (B
HHEZSEHHE RIRR)
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Our response:

— Enquiring management’s knowledge of any
recognised bad debts and assessing the
appropriateness of the provision of impairment
recognised with evidence;

— Testing the aging of the trade receivables and
assessing the recoverability of long outstanding
trade receivable balances by comparing
management’s views of recoverability of amounts
outstanding to historical patterns of collection; and

—  Checking to the subsequent settlement of the trade
receivables after year end.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Group’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wan Che Bun
Practising Certificate No. PO5804

Hong Kong, 24 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or LoSS
e EmR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—Z— X F+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A REZIR)

2016 2015
—E—RE I S
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
KiaF AR®TT AR#EFT
Revenue kA 4 442,328 639,999
Cost of sales HERA (394,506) (517,542)
Gross profit E£F 47,822 122,457
Other revenue EHAUgA 5(a) 29,308 32,908
Other net loss HAib i8558 5(b) (21,877) (7,030)
Selling and distribution expenses SHE kDA (20,219) (22,671)
Administrative expenses TR (46,546) (55,554)
(Loss)/profit from operations B2 (BE) 8 (11,512) 70,110
Finance costs BE Bk AR 6(a) (9,037) (16,627)
Share of (losses)/profits of associates DIEEEE AT (BE), % (129) 20
(Loss)/profit before taxation EEIRET (E518) 2% 6 (20,678) 53,503
Income tax expense FrefiM = 7(a) (1,617) (9,701)
(Loss)/profit for the year FER(E5E) BT (22,295) 43,802
(Loss)/earnings per share Sk (E58) 2
Basic and diluted (RMB) EARR#EE(AREIT) 10 (0.0087) 0.0283

The notes on pages 80 to 180 form part of these consolidated  #80E £ 5 180 B WM i AR LA B SRR —
financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity &% » JERTARQ AR A AR S E(F REF
shareholders of the company attributable to the profit for the year — B9EEIEE M 28(b)

are set out in note 28(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FeEBEmMEMEE WS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZT— X F+_A=+—HIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (A REZIR)

2016 2015
—E—RE —ZT-RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TT AERBTT
(Loss)/profit for the year F£R(GR) B (22,295) 43,802
other comprehensive income FREM2EKRS
for the year, net of tax (MERME)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to HE A EE SR Bm &
profit or 10ss: mIEA
Exchange differences on translation of financial BERINEBMIERRELN
statements of foreign operations PE 3 ZRE 15,502 3,806
Total comprehensive income for the year FRh2EKSH#E (6,793) 47,608

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR IR

At 31 December 2016 RZZE— R FE+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi) (A REZIR)

2016 2015
ZE-RE e
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
HiaE AR®TRT AR#EFT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENREE 11 548,043 466,501
Lease prepayments FETETK 12 98,096 100,032
Non-current prepayments for acquisitions W% - BE & B & W
of property, plant and equipment FERNERTERT R 13 64,167 70,952
Interests in associates N /N oL 14 23,355 13,970
Goodwill 5k 15 - 4,300
Other financial assets Hih&mEE 16 2,495 2,495
Deferred tax assets BEERIBEE 18 4,596 5,269
740,752 663,519
Current assets mEEE
Inventories FE 19 319,500 336,409
Current portion of lease prepayments HEBNREENERH D 12 1,966 1,966
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H b p ik 8 20 239,886 290,525
Pledged deposits BEEER 21 147,192 135,347
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY 22(a) 173,986 196,901
882,530 961,148
Current liabilities Bid bR
Trade and other payables B 5 & E e EIE 23 33,329 28,178
Bank loans RITER 24 340,072 322,459
Debentures &% 26 17,890 -
Current portion of deferred income R AR BNARER 25 1,163 1,163
Current taxation BNER%H IR 26,324 25,744
418,778 377,544
Net current assets REVEERE 463,752 583,604
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position continea
GA R R

At 31 December 2016 R=E— X F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A REZIR)

2016 2015
—E—-RE S S
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
HiaE AR®TRT AR#EFT
Total assets less current liabilities #RERABRAK LA . 1,247,123
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Bank loans RITER 24 56,290 74,460
Debentures &% 26 - 16,756
Non-current portion of deferred income 3BT U A K9 FEENEREE 5 25 17,201 18,364
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFRIBEE 18 2,296 2,033
75,787 111,613
NET ASSETS HERE 1,128,717 1,135,510
Equity Hwa
Share capital FZ N 28(c) 20,987 20,987
Reserves f# & 1,107,730 1,114,523
TOTAL EQUITY #aunm 1,128,717 1,135,510

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24 W -ZT—+F=A -+ HEEE S &M RE

March 2017. FIJEE o
Wu Zheyan Xie Qingmei
REE WiBsE
Chief Executive Officer Chairman
TTEAEE, TE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RSB B

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZT—F+_A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A REZIR)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FNFHRERHE AR

Share Share Exchange Statutory Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve profits equity
2. BinRR ER M EERE REART Ha

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTL AREFL AREFTL AREFL AREFTL AREFTL
(note 28(c)  (note 28(0)()  (note 28(d)(ii)  (note 28(a)iii))

(Wi28c)  (Bi280)))  (Bizt28a)i) (i 28()i)

At 1 January 2015 R-2-1%¥—HF—H 11,053 342,158 4,087 47,291 392,753 797,342
Changes in equity —EI-IEHERENH:

for 2015:
Profit for the year FRER - - - - 43,802 43,802
Other comprehensive income  E 2 Bz - - 3,806 - - 3,806
Total comprehensive income 2z 4248 - - 3,806 - 43,802 47 608
Issue of shares upon placing  BR&E 1Tk A 9934 286,612 - - - 296,546
Dividends approved and BEFEEHER

paid in respect of BERERS

the previous year - (5,986) - - - (5,986)
Appropriations to statutory BT EF EE

reserve - - - 5110 (5,110) -

9,934 280,626 - 5110 (5,110) 290,560

At 31December2015 R-ZE-1f
and 1 January 2016 +ZA=+-Hk

—E2-X§¥-8-H 20,987 622,784 7,893 52,401 431,445 1,135,510
Changes in equity “E-REHREE:
for 2016:
Loss for the year FREE - - - - (22,295) (22,295)
Other comprehensive income £ 2 &z - - 15,502 - - 15,502
Total comprehensive income  2EmgE S R Bz T lewy e
Appropriations to statutory B {EEE
reserve - - - 1,264 (1,264) -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, S 2. SUUUR Lo
At 31 December 2016 RZE-—REF
+-A=1-H 20,987 622,784 23,395 53,665 407,886 1,128,717
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

;\\/T\ fﬁi //ZE%?%

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE —Z—

(Expressed in Renminbi) (A ER#37R)

NETZA=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E—-RE S S
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
HiaE AR®TRT AR#EFT
Operating activities EBEEE
Cash generated from operations REEBRSRS 22(b) 89,640 45,965
Income tax paid AT ETER (101) (13,027)
Net cash generated from BRBFRRR&RHE
___Operating activittes . 89539 3293
Investing activities BEEH
Payment for the purchase of property, TREEME BEK
plant and equipment BN R (89,167) (174,515)
Payment for the purchase of YT AEEREETENR
lease prepayment - (44,356)
Interest received 2FE 5,687 6,036
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash W HEHT B A~ A
acquired R FER S - 5,195
Payment for investment in associates T RREE QB RIRE (9,450) (13,319)
Entrusted loans repaid by third party E=FEEIETER = 30,000
Proceeds for disposal of property, HEWE - BB KEE
plant and equipment FrigsE 12 -
Net cash used in investing BRETHFRARERHE
activities (92,918) (190,959)

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement continues

BAB S RE R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—ZT—F+_A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A REZIR)

2016 2015
ZEB—-RE —E-RF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
HiaE AR®TRT AERBTT
Financing activities MEEE
Proceeds from new bank loans IR ITE RS R 731,255 929,873
Repayments of bank loans EEIRITER (737,926) (946,415)
Increase in pledged deposits [REEE R 76 Yill (10,108) (36,079)
Interest paid ERFE (17,582) (23,780)
Dividend paid to equity shareholders XA RRERFFAARE
of the company = (5,576)
Net proceeds from issue of shares il =R BT TR D B AT 1S
upon placing, net of issuing costs FIEFEE - BB = 258,323
Net cash (used in)/generated from FE;EZE (FA) &
_financing activites =~ =~ =®me®® 0000000 (34.361) 176346
Net (decrease)/increase in cash HARRLEEY
and cash equivalents (M), BmeHE (37,740) 18,325
Cash and cash equivalents R—BA—HWHR&RRE
at 1 January FEY 196,901 174,144
Effect of foreigh exchange EFgmnpE
rate changes 14,825 4,432
Cash and cash equivalents ®+=-RA=+—H1
at 31 December BReRBEeEREYD 22(a) 173,986 196,901
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GENERAL INFORMATION

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings
Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 17 October 2011 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 6 July 2012.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as “the Group”). The consolidated financial
statements were authorised for issue by the Directors on 24
March 2017.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(@) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual IFRSs, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB")
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A summary of
the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group
is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contined)
B R R M5 e

NF
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S &¥HRI)  UAEREZIR)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEASHBE®)
(Continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial (b) B mRmRELE
statements

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
RMB, rounded to the nearest thousand. The
measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that derivative financial instruments are stated at their
fair value (see note 2())).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
IFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

HEGEMBHREDIUARE2E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contined)
BB R R M 5o

;\\/T\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B TSN » LUAREEZITR)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EREFBEm®
(Continued)
(c) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs — effective ) IRMFIE]/ LA T BB B
1 January 2016 BWMEER — —T—RF
—H—BRBEX

B g EREZE S BMHUA TRA
SEERARENAE TR ERERK
K BIBR B F5 s s RS RT AN -

The IASB has issued the following amendments to IFRSS
that are first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group and the Company:

IFRSS (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle BRmEREEN —T-—FE-T-0F
(BFTA) BH FREE
Amendments to 1AS 1 Disclosure Initiative AResElE1:  RREEHE
(BETA)

Amendments to 1AS 16

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of

AR ERIE 163N )

BETERBHNTER

and IAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation F%‘@ S8 Bk
B EATE)
Amendments to IAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants B’R@ SHERIEI6RR BE  AENEY
and 1AS 41 BileS-Fipd]
FNF(BIAR)
Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate BResElE7s ERVBRRTHERDS
Financial Statements CHES)
Amendments to IFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the ARBEREEN  REAEE: ERGAA
IFRS 12 and 1AS 28 Consolidation Exception F10%  EREH  GIMER

Amendments to IFRS 11

IFRS 14

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
in Joint Operations
Regulatory Deferral Accounts

None of these developments have had a material effect

BEEAEDRR
Bl gtz
E28F (B AR)
BR AR SR
ENRETF)
Bl e s 28
145

ARG EPREEN
G
EEELRRA

ZERRENI E L R EN AR X

on how the Group's results and financial position for the BARERCRRIEBRNEERIE
current or prior periods have been prepared or MORER TR EARFE - KEBWE

presented. The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accounting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continea)

rAa

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

B BRI FE @

CE=F-E -l

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Group. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit
or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or
up to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair
value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSS.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which
case the costs are deducted from equity.
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2

BERETHE®)
d) EBEFIEIEEE

BEMBRRBERNERE MR
* o RERRIRIR S RNEBA AR
A RAREBIR 2 % MR R ER S B R
RFREEE  REREBEMIEY
- RIERERGREMHEEEBRE
B MEBERPEREBSE -

FAEBARHENMNBRREED
MARE s HERXEEHE 2B (H
ER)FFAZAEEEKER - M4
A S R R B TS SRR (E
CAEE SRR EAEE M
NAEFTEMRE - -

M B~ B R EB B RAWEEA
B WBRARAEBREE  MEL
BERAREE(ERKETT) T
PRI g B I A ER R E -
P R iR B E R ATAERERE
ZRBBHBN DT EE - A%E
5T A P RE AR YU 77 O ASURE DA MRS B B
HWAFEERE  MATEEWERN
EBERANBEER - AEEARER
RPGBEBRANFEIIZEEREIES
ARERIEEFENLDFERKREBA
T 8 A 7 P B AR R A FE PR B
o RIFFBMBRELERERR
REME 2R - BRIFTHE HMIEE
BRI ARN AR 8 - FTEL KB
MR AR T8 - RIFZFERAR
BITRmTARELS  HUERT
A B R HIRRAEREAC A

TREMERERAE

83



84

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea

=IVAN
IN=

B 15 Rk MY sk o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement
period (@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition
date) about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit
or 0ss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
the subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner as
would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contined)

rAa

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

B BRI FE @

CE=F-E -l

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

©)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(m)).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continea)

n\/T\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 5B RI) » UAARESIR)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

BB SRR T

(Continued)

()

AsSSociates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group's share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see note 2(m)(i)). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's share of
the post- acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group's share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group'’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the
carrying amount of the investment under the equity
method together with the Group's long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

In the Group’'s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(m)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continvea)
A IS RERM s

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S &¥HRI)  UAEREZIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EREFHBEm®
(Continued)
(&) Goodwill (@) mgE
Goodwill represents the excess of: R TIE AT 258 ¢
(i)  The aggregate of the fair value of the consideration () EBERRENLATE  REWE
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling F R IEERES SRR EE
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the (& 5 Al BT+ 1 WU 9 IR R 2
group’s previously held equity interest in the FEMBA

acquiree; over

(i) The net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable (i) FAUEE R EAGT 2 83 E 77 Al
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition BRI EEREBBENDTFE -
date.

When (ji) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised B () EANE()E - At ZREANR

immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain REZERE BB R =ER -

purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment EERKARRFIREBETIER - ¥

losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is BafEENEEFEOREERER

allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash EHFNBRBEEN NS REEES
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the fuskIReEEEMAR - WEFET
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for BRI (RFTEE2(m)) -

impairment (see note 2(m)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any RENNBRSELEBUMHER @ 5718
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in HEEERE RE W E N EME
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal. IHEFE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continea)

BB SRR T

(Continued)
(h) Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries and associates are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair
value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical
asset or liability or based on a valuation technique that
uses only data from observable markets. Cost includes
attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification:

Investments in equity securities held for trading are
classified as current assets. Any attributable transaction
costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the
end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
does not include any dividends earned on these
investments as these are recognised in accordance with
the policies set out in note 2(w).

Investments in equity securities which do not fall into any
of the above categories are classified as available-for-
sale securities. At the end of each reporting period the
fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. As an exception to this, investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted price in an active
market for an identical instrument and whose fair value
cannot otherwise be reliably measured are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less impairment losses (see note 2(m)). Dividend income
from equity securities are recognised in profit or loss in
accordance with the policies set out in note 2(w)(v).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contined)

rAa

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% 5 & #5741

SHTHREM T

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Other investments in equity securities

(Continued)

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see
note 2(m)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in
equity is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are
recognised/derecognised on the date the Group commits
to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement
to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2(my(ii).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour,
the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the
site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs
(see note 2(y)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continea)

U TREM T

;\\/T\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B TSN » LUAREEZITR)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEASHBE®)

(Continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives as follows:

— Buildings The shorter of the unexpired term of
lease and their estimated useful
lives, being no more than 20 years
after the date of completion

— Leasehold Over the unexpired term of lease but

improvement no more than 5 years

— Plant and machinery 10 years

— Furniture, fittings 5years

and equipment
— Motor vehicles 5years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction and equipment pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note 2(m)(ii)). Cost comprises direct costs of
construction and installation during the construction
period. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to property, plant
and equipment when the asset is substantially ready for
its intended use.

No depreciation is provided in respect of the construction
in progress until it is substantially completed and ready
for its intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continea)
B R R M5 e

rAa

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CE=F-E -l

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(1)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in
return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea)
A TR RE I e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B RIN » LA EREEFIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of trade and other receivables
and investment in equity securities

Trade and other receivables and investment in
equity securities that are stated at cost or
amortised cost or are classified as available-for-
sale securities are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

. significant financial difficulty of the debtor,

° a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

. it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation,

. significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

. a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contined)

re R R R MY e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CE=F-E -l

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of trade and other receivables
and investment in equity securities

(Continued)

C UABRBESTR)

2

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:
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For investment in associates accounted for
under the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements (see note 2(f)), the
impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment
with its carrying amount in accordance with
note 2(m)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note 2(m)(ii).

For unguoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial asset and the estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset
where the effect of discounting is material.
Impairment losses for equity securities
carried at cost are not reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continea)

ra

BB SRR T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CEF-E -l

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of trade and other receivables
and investment in equity securities
(Continued)

For trade and other receivables carried at
amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.

For other receivables carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial asset and the estimated
recoverable amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ccontined
e BRI EE e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of trade and other receivables
and investment in equity securities
(Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
receivables included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery
is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade receivables directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or l0ss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications except in the case of goodwill,
that the following assets may be impaired or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

° property, plant and equipment;

e |ease prepayments;

° goodwill;

° non-current prepayments for acquisitions of
property, plant and equipment; and

o investments in subsidiaries in the Company's
statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ccontined
e B ER R M EE e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether
or not there is any indication of impairment.

. Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

° Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), or value in use (if
determinable)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ccontined
e BRI EE e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)
° Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed. A reversal of an impairment 10ss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which
the reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with IAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of
the first six months of the financial year. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year
(see notes 2(m)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity
securities and unquoted equity securities carried at
cost are not reversed in a subsequent period. This
is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would
have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates. Consequently, if
the fair value of an available-for-sale equity security
increases in the remainder of the annual period, or
in any other period subsequently, the increase is
recognised in other comprehensive income and not
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continea)

;\\/T\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 5B RI) » UAARESIR)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

BB HRRM T

(Continued)

(n)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction of an
asset or a group of assets, where the customer is able to
specify the major structural elements of the design. The
accounting policy for contract revenue is set out in note
2(w)(ii). When the outcome of a construction contract can
be estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as
an expense by reference to the stage of completion of
the contract at the end of the reporting period. When it is
probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately. When the outcome of a
construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contined)

rAa

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

B BRI FE @

CE=F-E -l

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(0)

Cconstruction contracts (continued)

Construction contracts in progress at the end of each
reporting period are recorded at the net amount of costs
incurred plus recognised profit less recognised losses
and progress billings, and are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position as the “Gross
amount due from customers for contract work” (as an
asset) under “Trade and other receivables” or the “Gross
amount due to customers for contract work” (as a
liability) under “Trade and other payables”, as applicable.
Progress billings not yet paid by the customer are
included under “Trade and other receivables”. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are
presented as “Receipts in advance” under “Trade and
other payables”.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts (see note 2(m)(i)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect
of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(m)(i)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the
amount initially recognised and redemption value being
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using an effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continea)

;\\/T\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B RIN » LA EREEFIR)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continued)
() Trade and other payables

BB HRRM T

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continea)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

B BRI FE @

CE=F-E -l

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continea)

;\‘/T\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B RIN » LA EREEFIR)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continued)
(U) Income tax (continued)

BB HRRM T

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided that they are not
part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or
in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contined)

rAa

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

B BRI FE @

CE=F-E -l

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

. in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

o in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

e the same taxable entity; or

o different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Company or the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continea)

;\\/T\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 5B RI) » UAARESIR)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

BB HRRM T

(Continued)

v)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or 10ss
as follows:

(i) sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

(ii) Contract revenue

When the outcome of a construction contract can
be estimated reliably, revenue from a fixed price
contract is recognised using the percentage of
completion method, measured by reference to the
percentage of contract costs incurred to date to
estimated total contract costs for the contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that it
is probable will be recoverable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continea)

rAa

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

B BRI FE @

CE=F-E -l

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(W) Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii) Interest income

Interest income from bank deposits is recognised
as it accrues using the effective interest method.

(iv) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are recognised as deferred income that is
recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the useful life of the asset. An unconditional
government grant is recognised in profit or loss as
other revenue when the grant becomes receivable.

(v) Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the period are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continea)

;\\/T\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 5B RI) » UAARESIR)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

BB HRRM T

(Continued)

)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of operations with functional currency other
than Renminbi are translated into Renminbi at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of transactions. Statement of
financial position items including goodwill arising on
consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or after 1
January 2005, are translated into Renminbi at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation with functional currency
other than Renminbi, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that operation with
functional currency other than Renminbi is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued)
& B &y 2R M aE e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S &¥HRI)  UAEREZIR)

rAa

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2

Related parties

@)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

Vi

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third party
and the other entity is an associates of the
same third party or vice versa.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly-controlled by
a person identified in (a).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea)
A TR RE I e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B TSN » LUAREEZITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EABTBE@
(Continued)
(20 Related parties (continued) 2 B8 @)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the b W—EAEBFTE T EMAIE
following conditions applies: (Continued) e AZERHEAEERH

Bt ()

vii. A person identified in (a)(i) has significant Vi, VT A tHEEE
influence over the entity or is a member of TENIEZERE
the key management personnel of the entity (EEEZE SRR E
(or of a parent of the entity). ZEENKE -

vii. The entity, or any member of a group of viil. EELIEAEE I
which it is a part, provides key management WEREBRKE QAR
personnel services to the group or to the SEXEEGRAARHE
group'’s parent. FEEEABRE ©

Close members of the family of a person are those family REANTHIORIEERZERETR
members who may be expected to influence, or be SHBRPHEAETEZBALTHE
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity HY2MREKRBIT BTG :

and include:

i.  that person’s children and spouse or domestic . ZATHFLZREBKERER

partner; o

i. children of that person’s spouse or domestic i. BRAATHEBIEEZHEHN
partner; and T &

ii. dependents of that person or that person’s spouse ii. FmMBAALTHZBATHRBK
or domestic partner. AEBHNRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continvea)
A TR ERE I s

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S &¥HRI)  UAEREZIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continued)

(@a) Segment reporting

BEASHEE@®)

(aa) 7 BEP2 R

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
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environment. Operating segments which are not o AnRE2%K -
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continea)

b2 & BTSSR 2 W e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 5B RI) » UAARESIR)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3
ESTIMATES

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The Group believes the following critical accounting policies
involve the most significant judgements and estimates used in
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(i) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and distribution expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and
historical experience of selling products of similar nature.
It could change significantly as a result of competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles or changes
in market conditions. Management reassesses these
estimations at the end of the reporting period to ensure
inventory is shown at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

(ii) Impairment of trade receivables

Management determines the impairment of trade
receivables on a regular basis. This estimate is based on
the credit history of its debtors and current market
conditions. If the financial conditions of the customers
were to deteriorate, actual write-off would be higher than
estimated. Management reassesses the impairment of
trade receivables at the end of the reporting period.

(iii) Depreciation

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets, after taking into account the estimated
residual value. The management reviews the estimated
useful lives of the assets regularly in order to determine
the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded
during any reporting period. The useful lives are based
on the Group’s historical experience with similar assets
and taking into account anticipated technological
changes. The depreciation expense for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contined)

rAa

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

B BRI FE @

CE=F-E -l

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iv)

(v)

Income tax

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions.
Management carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatments of these transactions are
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes
in tax legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
deductible temporary differences. As those deferred tax
assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available,
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management's
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets, if any, are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Impairment of goodwiill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting
policy. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on fair value less costs of
disposal calculations. These calculations require the use
of estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea)
A TR RE I e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B TSN » LUAREEZITR)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) HET TEAMA RSN F ZHR @)
(vi) Fair value measurement (vi) AFEFHE

S HE R A )

A number of assets and liabilities included in the Group'’s
financial statements require measurement at, and/or
disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial and
non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs
used in determining fair value measurements are
categorised into different levels based on how
observable the inputs used in the valuation technique
utilised are (the “fair value hierarchy”):

° Level 1.  Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

o Level 2:  Observable direct or indirect inputs
other than Level 1 inputs;

o Level 3:  Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived

from market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a
significant effect on the fair value measurement of the
item. Transfers of items between levels are recognised in
the period they occur.

The Group measures a number of items at fair value:
o Financial instruments (note 31((i)).
For more detailed information in relation to the fair value

measurement of the items above, please refer to the
applicable notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contined)

2 A BT SRR M e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% 5 & #5741

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(@) Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing
and sales of outdoor wooden products, engaging in
projects of outdoor wooden products including the
provision of design and installation services, retail sales
of outdoor wooden products through self-operated retail
shops and manufacturing and sales of renewable energy
products.

Revenue represents

(i) the sales value of goods sold to customers less
returns, discounts, and value added taxes and
other sales tax; and

(i) contract revenue derived from projects of outdoor

C UABRBESTR)
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RRERETNTZERE)  FBEEE
%Ee’%ﬁﬁl\ﬁ%aa%&ié&ﬁé%
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WK AE

() EBTFEFELMBEEEERR
B RS EREEMEE
BmE: R

(ih =PI AHRER(BHER
=

wooden products including the provision of design HEFRLERE) AENE
and installation services. BN ©
The amount of each significant category of revenue RIRANTEREZERERRAR
recognised in revenue is analysed as follows: BT :
2016 2015
—E-RE T—FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AER®TR ARBTT
Sales of outdoor wooden products HE P ANREL S 421,761 605,982
Retail sales of wooden products TERER 7,930 11,044
Contract revenue derived from REPINKEFRIER
projects of outdoor wooden ( BERMHET RLER)
products including the provision of I3 &4 £ A
design and installation services 132 200
Sales of renewable energy products  $4& B4 8LTRE @ 12,505 22,773
442,328 639,999
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continea)

ra

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 & 157 4

U TREM T

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(@)

Revenue (continued)
Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2016, revenues from
two customers of the Group's sales of outdoor wooden
products amounted to RMB67,828,000 and
RMB54,749,000 respectively, which each represent 10%
or more of the Group's revenues.

No individual external customers accounted for 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31
December 2015.

Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from these
customers are set out in note 31(a). Further details
regarding the Group's principal activities are disclosed
below.

Geographic information of revenue

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of the Group’s revenue from
external customers. The geographical location of
customers is based on the location at which the goods
were delivered or the services were provided.

C UAAEBESR)

4 WARDHEHR @)

(@)

WA ()

ERXERFNER
BHE-_Z—R"F+-A=1+—HLLF
[E o RAXEEHEEPINRERER
ZE PR B AR 67,828,000 7T
RARS54,749,0007T © & BIHAE
B A B 10% S A o

BE_T-AFt-_A=1+—BL#HF
Z - BEEE RSN R P 1E AR R E WA
B 10% A £ -

FAZERFPERNEFREERRE
HBEHAWME3@ - EEAEEE
DEBHNE—DFBERBLOT -

WA 2 b 35

TR BEAEERE NP
AHHIE( B H)E R o TP RHIRN
BENE R RG RIS

2016 2015

ZE—RE —T-RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT AREEF T

The PRC (place of domicile) R (R FTih) 88,019 298,207

North America 1EEM 273,842 289,756

Europe BOM 44,017 30,367

Asia Pacific (exclusive of the PRC) TARE(TEERRH) 16,160 21,669
Austra &M 2029 -

354,309 341,792

442,328 639,999

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contined)

re R R R MY e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S &¥HRI)  UAEREZIR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting
In a manner consistent with how the Group manages its
business and the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’'s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified four
reportable segments, namely Manufacturing and sales of
wooden products, Retail business, Projects of outdoor
wooden products and Manufacturing and sales of
renewable energy products. No operating segments have
been aggregated to form the above reportable segments.

o Manufacturing and sales of wooden products:
manufacturing and sales of outdoor wooden
products to both domestic and overseas
customers, and trading of timber.

. Retail business: retail sales of outdoor wooden
products through self-operated retail shops.

J Projects of outdoor wooden products: engaged in
projects of outdoor wooden products including the
provision of design and installation services to
domestic customers.

o Manufacturing and sales of renewable energy
products: manufacturing and sales of biomass
pellet fuel to both domestic and overseas
customers.

4 WARDTHERK =)
by HEERR
RREAEEEEE YR RN
X REREESEREBIEAA

SESSERENMZMEN —BH
AR AEECHEELERZ2®RD
M EEEREEARR TEX
% POREBERAREENEE
BARREM - AEBETERSLE
DHEBLAERK E A 2 E -

o  HERHEEAE®: AEAN
EPEERMEPIIKRED R
AHES e

. TEEG: ABAETEET
£ BRI -

o FPHNREMIEAR  HEPINK
HmARE > BREAKNMEFRE
HERET R R IRTS

s HERHEBARREM: L
ENREEEME BRI T E
RINEP ©

HRAEYERBRD A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea)
A TR RE I e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B TSN » LUAREEZITR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

i)

Segment results

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group's senior executive
management monitors the results attributable to
each reportable segment on the following bases:

Reportable segment revenue represents the
revenue derived from the Group's external
customers by Manufacturing and sales of wooden
products, Retail business, Projects of outdoor
wooden products and Manufacturing and sales of
renewable energy products, respectively.

The measure used for reportable segment profit/
(loss) is “profit/(loss) after taxation (excluding the
after tax effect of government subsidies)” of
Manufacturing and sales of wooden products,
Retail business, Projects of outdoor wooden
products and Manufacturing and sales of
renewable energy products, respectively.

A measurement of segment assets and liabilities is
not provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management and accordingly, no
segment assets or liabilities information is
presented.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea

ARE

BRI T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 B4

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(i)

C UABRBESTR)

4 WARDHERE)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) b) DE 23R
Segment results (Continued) iy PHEEE)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable REBEE-_T—XEFR-_Z—H
segments as provided to the Group’s most senior F+-_A=+—HIFE &
executive management for the purposes of BIRDE & ERRFERA
resource allocation and assessment of segment EEseERERENEEN
performance for the years ended 31 December SE T 2RO FEE R w0
2016 and 2015 is set out below: ™~
2016
X%
Manufacturing
Manufacturing Projects of  and sales of
and sales of outdoor renewable
wooden Retail wooden energy
products business products products Total
HERPE FOHRER SERBERE
AR SERE HH HiFER Ehy
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
N & IN: 4 AE®TT AR®TT ARWTT
Revenue derived from the Group's JFEAEENEEE
external customers A 421,761 7,930 132 12,505 442,328
Inter-segment revenue AEEWA 17,453 - - - 17,453
Reportable segment revenue BELGETON 439,214 7,930 132 12,505 459,781
Reportable segment (loss)/profit /\g Eﬂé Y i
(lossyprofit after taxation ( 18)/ &l
(excluding the after tax effectof (1 %W‘ Gl
government subsidies) Brye) (31,866) (2,459) (162) 1,249 (33,238)
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH (23,369) (1,239) (11) (477) (25,096)
Impairment of goodwill EERE (4,300) - - - (4,300)
Changes in fair value of derivative (T4 4B T AL TFES
financial instruments — unrealised  — A& 1,869 - - - 1,869
Written-off of inventories FEME (8,656) - - - (8,656)
EPﬂi%*ﬂx*ﬁ‘lﬂE@? 117
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea

b2 & B A R B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G RN+ UAAREEZTR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)
(i) Segment results (Continued)

4 WARDHEHRE)

(b)

DE 2, ()
() DEEE)

2015
—E-n%
Manufacturing
Manufacturing Projects of and sales of
and sales of outdoor renewable
wooden wooden energy
products  Retail business products products Total
EERHE PORES 4ERFEBRE
e TEXB A WREM @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT  ARBTT  AREBTT  ARETR
Revenue derived from the Group's JEE R EEINBEF
external customers olON 605,982 11,044 200 2,773 639,999
Inter-segment revenue AEBRA 23,426 - - - 23426
Reportable segment revenue DEZ G ON 629,408 11,044 200 0773 663,425
Reportable segment profitiloss)  AI2RHEBET] /()
(profit/(loss) after taxation (BREERN/ (BR)
(excluding the after tax effectof (TR ERFER
government subsidlies)) fit72) 25,720 (2,069) (173) 8183 31,661
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (20,123 (1241) (15) (351) (21,730
Changes in fair value of derivative T4 B T AAFEEH
financial instruments — unrealised  — K EH (2,047) - - - (2,047)

118 | China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contined)

SHTHREM T

/\\/T\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 5B RI) » UAARESR)
4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4

(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)
(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment

WARDEE2H =)

(b) PDECR¥R)

(i) W2HSBRART KD I

revenue and reportable segment (loss)/profit (B518) R R R
2016 2015
—E—RE —T-RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR#¥FT AREFT
Revenue BA
Reportable segment revenue A 2N FWA 459,781 663,425
Elimination of inter-segment revenue %445 2P R4 A (17,453) (23,426)
Consolidated revenue ERE WA 442,328 639,999
(Loss)/profit (E548) &%
Reportable segment (l0ss)/profit REAREEINE PR
derived from the Group's external ~ a] 5 2B (E518) % F
customers (33,238) 31,661
Government subsidies (net of tax) BT AL (FIBRFLIE) 19,458 22,421
Unallocated head office and RAOMEIMER R
corporate expenses NGRS (8,515) (10,280)
Consolidated (loss)/profit RakRTie (EE) a5 H
after taxation (22,295) 43,802
(ili) Geographical information (iii)y HFHER
No geographical segment information is presented REBEMMMERARKREFE
as all the Group's revenue is derived from AREME ([FHEE ) mEE
operations in the People’s Republic of China (the WAAEBMABLINERDE
“PRC") and most of the Group’s non-current assets ELRFE - BiR B
are all located in the PRC. HHERZH ©
RRAEYIERERAT

:"57/\614:‘:‘}&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continea)

ra

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 & 157 4

U TREM T

C UAAEBESR)

5 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET LOSS 5 HMKWAREMEEFHE
(@) Other revenue (@ EAUgA

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—AF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBEFT
Interest income on bank deposits HRITEFHHEMA 5,687 6,036
Government subsidies B Tk 23,029 26,515
Others Hith 592 357
29,308 32,908

The Group received unconditional government subsidies HEZT-—R"F+ZA=1+—HLF

of RMB21,866,000 (2015: RMB25,352,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2016. These government subsidies
were granted to Fujian Zhangping Kimura Forestry
Products Co, Ltd. (“Zhangping Kimura”) and Unicreed
(China) Electronics Company Limited (“Unicreed (China)”).
There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies
attaching to these government grants.

The Group recognised government subsidies as deferred
income which compensates the Group for the cost of its
land use right and the cost of infrastructure development.
RMB1,163,000 government subsidies (deferred income)
(2015: RMB1,163,000) were recognised as other revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2016, which is on a
systematic basis over the useful life of the relevant assets
(note 25).

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea

k2 A B ISR B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 BTSN LUAREEZTR)

5 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET LOSS 5 HMKWAREMERFH®
(Continued)
(b) Other net loss (b) HEEF5E
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—AfF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBEFIT
Net foreign exchange 10ss b B85 R (8,127) (5,778)
Changes in fair value of derivative TESRMIARTEEY
financial instruments — unrealised — REIR 1,869 (2,047)
Impairment of goodwill ! (4,300) -
Written-off of inventories FEM (8,656) -
Others Hi (2,663) 795
(21,877) (7,030)
6 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6 BRBLAT(E5E),EF
(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: BRBIAT(E518) SR MBS BEE
Ho:
(@) Finance costs @ BEKA
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—AF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBEFIT

Interest expense on bank loans and

RITERREFHFBFHX

debentures 17,582 23,780
Less: Interest expense capitalised B BATEETREN
into construction in progress* BEXEF B (8,545) (7,153)
9,037 16,627
* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 3.80% (2015: * HE_Z— R F+_A=1+—BLLFE

4.71%) per annum for the year ended 31 December 2016.

1ﬁ§ﬁk$ﬁhz380%(f T —FfF:
4.71%) B FEKERME o

‘:Fﬂiimﬁﬂxﬁﬁﬁ’&j
B REFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continea)

b2 & B A R B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 & 157 4

6 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

C UAAEBESR)

6

BRBLAT (518), 8 R (@)

(b) Staff costs () BIRKA

2016 2015

ZE—-RE —E-IF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥®TR AREET T

Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMER 35,866 37,723
Contributions to defined contribution  FEE M FURKET S IX

retirement schemes 2,895 4,244

38,761 41,967

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in
the PRC, the Group’s entities in the PRC participate in
defined contribution retirement benefit schemes (the
“Schemes”) organised by the local authorities whereby
the entities are required to make contributions to the
Schemes based on a percentage of the eligible
employees’ salaries during the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015. Contributions to the Schemes vest
immediately. Under the Schemes, retirement benefits of
existing and retired employees are payable by the
relevant scheme administrators and the Group has no
further obligations beyond the annual contributions.

REBEPENEREEIEER - A
SEURTFENER2 ML ERSE
WEE B FR AR MET S ( Fﬁﬁﬁ .:Jr
) Bt FEBRANER
—RFERZE-LF+ A E-i——EI
LEERAERERFMO—Ea S
LemA RRF B R - BA R
TR R BN B 55 8 - 1R A BT
2 BAMRKEERKENBA
M E RSB RFEHRX
Sh o REBEE—FSEE -

(c) Otheritems (c) HMIEH
2016 2015
—RE T—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TRT AREET T
Cost of inventories* (note 19(b)) FERA (B 19)) 394,506 517,542
Depreciation of property, E - BEMEETE

plant and equipment (note 117) (Ktzx11) 23,160 20,126
Amortisation of lease prepayments FAETE kS (At 12)

(note 12) 1,936 1,604
Operating lease charges for properties #%4& LHH 4957 H 680 1,872
Research and development costs B A 16,384 22,332
Auditors’ remuneration % EEN B & 1,114 1,290
# Cost of inventories includes RMB40,180,000 (2015: RMB45,396,000) # BE-_ZT—-—XE+-_A=+—HBItF

for the year ended 31 December 2016 relating to staff costs,
depreciation and research and development costs, which amount
is also included in the respective total amounts disclosed
separately above or in note 6(b) for each of these types of
expenses.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements wcontinues
A IS RERM s

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 BTSN LUAREEZTR)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 ZEBEZRANVAFER
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of () ZEHEZFIKXARIIET

profit or loss represents:

2016 2015
ot —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARBT T

current tax — PRC corporate ENHARRIE — FELEFRER

income tax
Provision for the year FEREE 684 9,573
Over-provision in respect of prior years E33@1t 4 [ /5 B H) FR 5B 3185 (3) -
Deferred tax B R IE
Origination and reversal of temporary E4 k& @ E =8

differences (note 18) (K17t 18) 936 128

1,617 9,701

FREMERERAT | 123
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea

b2 & B A R B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B TSN » LUAREEZITR)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

GEBEZIRANFEHR @)

b) HERAHEFTENHIER
S R i A A ETBR ¢

2016 2015
o L
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBT T

(Loss)/profit before taxation BrRELAT (B518), % 7 (20,678) 53,503
National tax on (loss)/profit before BELRT(EI8), B RERIE

taxation calculated at the rates REATEEEER

applicable in the tax jurisdictions BRI ERE (M)

concerned (note (i) (1,348) 16,196
Effect of PRC tax concession (note (i) = B 7% 12 2 i 822 (5 (i) (1,083) (5,390)
Effect of income reduction (note (iv)) W AR 8952 £ (53 (V) (313) -
Effect of deductible temporary RERIR R EZENTE

differences not recognised (151) -
Effect of non-deductible expenses JEMR S 2 Bl 6,563 1,011
Effect of research and development — #F35IL nst IR RE M B 2

expense bonus deduction (note (i) (K5 (i) (2,048) (2,116)
Over provision in prior years BEFEBERE (3) -
Actual tax expense ERHESH 1,617 9,701
Notes: Kzt -

The Group's PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC corporate income
tax at the statutory rate of 25% unless otherwise specified.

Taxation for subsidiaries in other jurisdictions is charged at the
appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in relevant jurisdictions
respectively.

No provision was made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as the Group
did not earn any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continvea)
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/\\/T\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S B HETRIN » LA REZT)
7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

Zhangping Kimura applied and was approved for the High and
New Technology Entities (“"HNTE") qualification under the PRC
Corporate Income Tax Law and its relevant regulations during
2013, and therefore is entitled to the preferential income tax rate
of 15% for a period of three years from 2013 to 2015 and 2016 to
2018.

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and its relevant
regulations, qualified research and development expenses are
subject to income tax deductions at 150% on the amount actually
incurred.

Income reduction as stated in Article 33 of the Enterprise Income
Tax Law shall refer to the treatment that where an enterprise uses
the resources stipulated in the Catalogue for Comprehensive
Utilization of Resources Qualified for Enterprise Income Tax
Preferential Treatment as its major raw materials to produce
products that are not restricted or prohibited by the State and
satisfy the relevant State and industrial criteria and only 90% of
the income derived shall be calculated in its total income.

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and its relevant
regulations, dividends receivable by non-PRC resident corporate
investors from PRC resident enterprises are subject to withholding
income tax at 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties or
arrangements, for profits earned since 1 January 2008.

Since the Group can control the quantum and timing of
distribution of profits of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC,
deferred tax liabilities are only recognized to the extent that such
profits are expected to be distributed through dividend payment
by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. As at 31
December 2016, temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries to overseas
holding company amounted to RMB342,353,000 (2015:
RMB328,616,000) and deferred tax liabilities of RMB34,235,000
(2015: RM32,862,000) have not been recognised.

GEBEZIRANFEHR 2

(b) =@ M=

aJrEE}]ﬁIEEﬂ
B & 5 Fl A ¥ 8R -

fiat - (%)

EBIANBR-_ZE—=FRERRCE
SRl ERERBERRBU RGN
B (Rt ) mRE:
B BMRZE—=FE_FT—HFR=
E-RFEZT )\ FFHHEEE
B 15% EBEAMERBE -

R BEEEREBUEREBER -
BERMBERXARERELSEN
150% HARRPTSH

(R EEFTISBEE) S 33 5 AT L A FERR T U
ARBIECEINERGAFIALEMRE
HEBEESORENERIEREEZREM
B AEBZGERSIRELIFEER
RITEMBEENERIISHEA - B
12 90% AT A M #2588 -

RIEPECERSREREEMER
FFEAERREERTEARRECERE
ZFTN\FE— F— B AEBREA S F 6 R
W g BIEIR 10% B R BB - M
BB RO L HEL R R R SRR -

H R AN SR B AT R ) 0 I AN R A o B A
B /8 2 ) e M Y 2 BB e B S - BURE
HIEBEEATRHNA R AREBAE
B BIFf B A B YIRS T 2 R AO A B
BMRRER - R_T—R"F+=A
=t+—H FEENTEHBAR LS
SMER AR R D BN EREZREAA
R#3423530007t(=F—A%F : AR
#£328,616,0007T ) bA KR SR IE & fF A
R#34,235000 L (ZE—RF : AR
32,862,0007T) I MEHETR ©
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b2 & B A R B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B TSN » LUAREEZITR)

8 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

8 EEHM

RIBEB R RRPIZE383(1) & R A A (B
EEFRER)ROIE2MWERT  EF

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of FHER ¢
Directors) Regulation is as follows:
2016
ZE-RE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e AR
Exng ENig MWL EHEER #t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
IN: S ARRTT ABRTT ABRTR N S
Executive directors BITESF
Wang Jingjun I3E 82 - - - 82
Wu Zheyan REE 1,903 - 2,210 8 4121
Wu Qingshan RE - - - 7 7
Xie Qingmei Ex 144 - 10 8 162
2,129 - 2,220 23 4,372
Non-executive director FUITER
Wu Dongping RET 144 - 12 - 156
Independent non-executive directors BUFRTES
Lam Hin Chi £B5 103 - - - 103
JinZhongwei 2ER 98 - - - 98
Su Wengiang Y 98 - - - 98
299 - - - 299
2,572 - 2,232 23 4,821
Notes. e -
(i) 0On 23 May 2016, Mr. Wang Jingjun resigned from his position of executive (i) R-BE-—XERA-+=0 TESFL4FTE
director and chairman of the Board. HITEEREETSEFERS -
(i) On 2 April 2016, Mr. Wu Qingshan resigned from his position of executive (i) R-ZE—XEMNA-H  RFUEEBEENT
director. BERE o

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements wcontinues
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S B HETRIN » LA REZT)

8 DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (continued) 8 EEHFM»)
2015
“Z-1fF
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors'  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees inkind bonuses  contributions Total
e RER
EZhe EFlm WERL  BRGEER azr

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ABETR

Executive directors BITES
Wang Jingjun T%E 97 - - - 97
Wu Zheyan REE 965 - 1,032 8 2,005
Wu Qingshan 2FWL 216 - - 8 224
Xie Qingmei HEE 144 - 9 8 161
S e oo T a2
Non-executive directors FHTER
Wu Dongping RAY 144 - 1 8 163
Lee Kong Wai, Conway Bl 600 - - - 600
744 - " 8 763
Independent non-executive directors BUEHITES
Lam Hin Chi EEH 97 - - - 97
JinZhongwei 2EAR 98 - - - 98
Su'Wengiang EYC: 9% - - - 98
B T T T 28
2459 - 1,062 32 3,543
During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, there REBEZE-ZZ-—RERZZFE—RF+=A
were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the directors =T —HLFE AEEHMERZSFHT
or any of the highest paid individuals set out in note 9 below as XHEIMBEM T ARSHMALIAH
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as RRERR - (RRRSIESNERRE
compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement KR MBEARRE R D - KERERH

g RBE-E—AFR-F-HF =
A=+—ALFE ESEMREENR
PERSRE S A B EAH M -

under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B TSN » LUAREEZITR)

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9 EBeHMAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three HE-_FT-—R"F+-A=+—HIFE"
(2015: three) are directors for the year ended 31 December TEaERFMALH ZRAREE(ZT
2016, whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The —RF:=ZR) FENHNK ESH
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other two (2015: BoBRTMBAT(ZZE—RF: WE)H
two) individuals are as follows: FmREnT
2016 2015
—E—RE —ET-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Salaries and other emoluments e R EH A B 791 1,362
Discretionary bonuses E’\] SIE4L 65 282
Retirement scheme contributions RIREF B 24 14
880 1,658

The emoluments of the two individuals (2015: two individuals) MEERRFTMAL(ZZE—RHF : MBAL)

with the highest emoluments are within the following bands: BN T 5 EE -

2016 2015
—E—RE —ZT—RHF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
IN ANE
Nil to RMB1,000,000 Tz AR 1,000,000 7T 2 2
2 2

128 | China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea

2 A BT SRR M e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S B HETRIN » LA REZT)

10 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2016 is based on the loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB22,295,000 (2015:
RMB43,802,000) and weighted average of 2,573,835,000 shares
(2015: 1,545,594,000 shares) in issue during the year ended 31
December 2016, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

10 SR(ER) B

HEZT—R"F+A=1T—HLLFENG
BEAEBEBIEHZ-TE—-~"F+=A
=+ —BLEFENARRRIERERE ARLE
BAREE22295,000T(ZE—HF: AR
43,802,000 ) A }2.2,573,835,0004% 2
BTN (ZT—RF © 1,545,594,000 A A%
172) B NETFHEAE - W T -

EEAR A NI 5
Number of shares
Ein& A
2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—RF
‘000 ‘000
Th TFh%

Weighted average number of ordinary ERERNREE (BB &

shares for the purpose of basic and & A A N T 19 251

diluted (loss)/earnings per share

2,573,835 1,545,594

There were no potential dilutive ordinary shares during the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 and, therefore,
diluted (loss)/earnings per share are the same as the basic
(loss)/earnings per share.

HRBE-ZT-R"ErR-_FT-AF+_-A
St-HUESFEIEEE#EEER K
FREBEE(BR) BINESRELRE
18),/BFIEE -

PREYEZERBRAF
ZEREFR
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NN b ol b

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 & 157 4

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

C UAAEBESR)

1 YE - BERRE

Furniture,
Leasehold Plantand fittings and Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvement machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
HE & RE
#F NERERE BER#ER R RE ERIE #t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ABR%TT ARWFT ARBTT ARBTT AR®TT AR®TT AR®TT
Cost: BE:
At 1January 2015 RZZ-R%—A—-H 167,871 5,643 62,686 4,258 5975 86,286 332,719
Acquisition through business FREBAHEITNE
combination 27,299 - 6,220 146 - - 33,665
Additions AE - 303 31,364 1,536 1,200 124,624 159,027
Transfers B 6,251 - 4,593 74 - (10,918) -
At 31 December 2015 RZE-1F
+-A=1+-8 201,421 5,946 104,863 6,014 7175 199,992 525,411
At January 2016 RZE—"F—A-H 201,421 5,946 104,863 6,014 7175 199,992 525,411
Additions NE 858 6,487 138 946 96,372 104,801
Disposal HE (965) - (14) (88) - (1,067)
Transfers i - 1,678 - - (1,678) -
At 31 December 2016 RIE—RF
+=ZA=+-H 201,421 5839 113,028 6,138 8,033 294,686 629,145
Accumulated depreciation:  RaHFE :
At 1 January 2015 WZZ-hE—F-A 17,882 2,555 12,675 2,250 3422 - 38,784
Charge for the year FERTE 9,192 1,516 7,775 692 951 - 20,126
At 31 December 2015 R-E-1F
+-A=t+-H 27,074 4,071 20,450 2942 4,373 58,910
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~¥-F-B 27,074 4,07 20,450 2942 4,373 58,910
Charge for the year FRTH 9,319 1,438 10,792 682 929 23,160
Elimination on disposal REER - (883) - M (84) (968)
At 31 December 2016 RIE—RF
+=ZA=+-H 36,393 4,626 31,242 3,623 5218 81,102
Net book value: WRESE
At 31 December 2016 RZE-R"F+-A=1—A 165,028 1213 81,786 2,515 2815 294,686 548,043
At 31 December 2015 R=E-RF+=-A=1+-H 174,347 1,875 84,413 3,072 2,802 199,992 466,501

Buildings which are held for own use are situated in the PRC.
At 31 December 2016, buildings with net book value of
RMB82,278,000 (2015: RMB87,593,000), plant and machinery
with net book value of RMB32,054,000 (2015: RMB37,117,000)
and construction in progress with net book value of
RMB14,969,000 (2015: RMB13,603,000) were pledged to banks
for certain banking facilities granted to the Group (see note

24(C)).

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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RFBENEFHEEER R_FT—
F+ZA=T—H EEFEAARE
82278000L( = F — A F: AR K
87,593,0007T) WIEF « lREVFERARE
32,054000( —Z FE — A F: AR
37,117,000 7T) BB 5 R i 28 & AR TE R E 5
ARM14,969,00070 (ZF—HF : AR
13,603,0007T) TEE TR B EA FRITIE
RAEENE TRITREER (FE R
24(C)) ©
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2 A BT SRR M e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S B HETRIN » LA REZT)

12 LEASE PREPAYMENTS 12 HEFENSR
2016 2015
—E—RE I S
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AR#EFTT
Cost: B :
At 1 January n—A—H 106,861 54,605
Acquisition through business combination & 8 2784 0f Ui - 7,900
Additions NE - 44,356
AL31December ~  KYt=A=+—-BH FREEEN 106861
Accumulated amortisation: Rt
At 1 January Rn—HA—H 4,863 3,259
Charge for the year FRZH 1,936 1,604
At3iDecember O RFT=A=t+—-A ) 4,863
Net book value: IREPE -
At 31 December ®w+—-A=+—~H 100,062 101,998
Represented by: Bp:
Current portion BNERER 5 1,966 1,966
Non-current portion JERNEREL 98,096 100,032
100,062 101,998

The lease prepayments represent costs of obtaining the land
use rights in respect of land located in the PRC and the
capitalised costs relating to dredging and leveling of land.
These leases expire between 2047 and 2083.

At 31 December 2016, land use rights with an aggregate
carrying amount of RMB100,062,000 (2015: RMB71,982,000)
were pledged as securities for certain banking facilities granted
to the Group (see note 24(c)).

MEBNFEADSURFEN LML
WEMEMELNRA  URBELHEZ
BRFPBHNERECKAE - WEHER-F
MEFE—TN=FERH

RZE—XRFE+-_A=+—H EELE
AANER100,062000 (=T —HF: A
R#71,982,0007T) 89 T 3b 8 ARER BEA &
Eoe TRATMEEEET (R M FE
24(c)) °

HRAEYERBRD A

:"57/\5144:‘}&
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U TREM T

m
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B TSN » LUAREEZITR)
13 NON-CURRENT PREPAYMENTS FOR 13

ACQUISITIONS OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

The amount mainly represented prepayments for construction
in progress and buildings. An analysis of non-current

WREYI X - BB R REHIFERD
AT K

%

HIZEERIRERETRMNR W

BYWE - BERREOIBBMBENS RS

prepayments for acquisitions of property, plant and equipment NN
is as follows:
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E-FRF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TRT ARBETT
Prepayment for construction of EIEAR A BE A TER R
manufacturing complex (note (a)) (KtzE @) 10,077 28,558
Prepayment for other constructions and ~ E b2 K% - BE &
property, plant and equipment (note (b))  FJE&ITEN (ML D)) 54,090 42,394
64,167 70,952
Notes: Mzt -
(a) On 29 December 2014, Zhangping Kimura entered into a construction (@ RZF-—EF+ZAZTNRE EFARNE—K

contract (“the Construction Contract”) with an independent construction
company (“the Construction Company”) for the construction of production
plants in Zone C of the Group's manufacturing complex of approximately
105,000 square meters for an aggregate consideration of
RMB152,020,000. Zhangping Kimura has paid RMB150,174,000 to the
Construction Company pursuant to the terms of the Construction
Contract, comprising RMB10,077,000 and RMB140,097,000 as non-
current prepayment for property, plant and equipment and construction
in progress, respectively.

(b) In 2015, Zhangping Kimura entered into Equipment Contracts (“the
Equipment Contracts”) with independent third parties (“the Equipment
Companies”) for the purchase of automatic machinery for the production
plants in Zone C (see note 13(a)). As at 31 December 2016, Zhangping
Kimura prepaid RMB54,090,000 (2015: RMB42,394,000) to the Equipment
Companies pursuant to the terms of the Equipment Contracts.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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(b)

BYBEAR(BRERADRRAEEDN
105,000 F 7 K& RSB C IR B A4 E R
EAvEIAR(EIAR]) BRERARE
152,020,000 7 © & F AR B AR ¥ 56 T4 [ 5%
REER A Z A AR 150,174,000 7T © BIEA
R #10,077,000 7T }2 A R # 140,097,000 7T 43 5
FIAME  BEREEAREZITRKNIENETE
E

RZZB—A%F FEPANEBUE=T7(RER
ADFTLREAN(REAHD UERCEMR
EHEE AR (RE130) c =T —X
FHZA=+—0  BEPANRERBEOGER
AR A AT AR B 54,090,000 (ZF—H
F 1 AR 42,394,0007T) ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 &5 51

14 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

C UABRBESTR)

14 REEQRER

2016 2015

—E—-RE I S

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FT ANREET T

Share of net assets FEIEEEFE 23,355 13,970

Details of the Group's interest in the associates are as follows:

REBREERRNERFHBOT

pa)

Proportion of
ownership interest
FREEERLE
Place of Particulars of Group's
establishment paid up effective Held by Principal
Name of associate and operation capital interest a subsidiary activity
FEEDH

BELTER BIREEHE EREFHE ERER BMELRRE IEEH
Jiangxi Lvyuan Trading Co., Ltd. The PRC RMBS,600,000 45% 45% Trading of imported

("Lvyuan”) H ARE timber
TEFRESBRRA (4R 5,600,000 70 BEEOAM
Longyan Deliyuan Biomass Energy ~ The PRC RMB9,450,000 45% 45% Research & development

Co., Ltd. ("Deliyuan”) H ARE and sales of biomass

BEEMENRENERERARF 9,450,000 7 energy

([BHED) EMERROFER

HE

Xiamen Zhonglisheng Trading The PRC RMB9,450,000 45% 45% Whole sale of forestry

Co., Ltd. ("Zhonglisheng”) i ARHE products and
EFHRE HBRAR 9,450,000 7C building material

(Mg MERERREV B E
Note: B -

(i) 0On 19 January 2016, the Group contributed capital of RMB9,450,000 to

Zhonglisheng.

Lvyuan, Deliyuan and Zhonglisheng are accounted for using the

equity method in the consolidated financial statements.

) RZF-RE-AtAE REEAHFE
EE AR 9,450,000 7T ©

ii}h??)? 15 ?'J?)?&EF‘ FEE R AR & B TS R A

‘:Fﬂiimﬁﬂxﬁﬁﬁ’&j
B REFR
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B TSN » LUAREEZITR)

14 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 14 REE QTR @)
Summary of financial information of the associates: ZEENRNMIBERBE
Lvyuan Deliyuan Zhonglisheng
WiF wHiE )2
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016

ZE-RE  “T-1f  ZB-"& ~“T-1F IE-RE
RMB’000 RMB'O00  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ABRRFR ARBTI ARBTR ARETR  ARKTR

Non-current assets FRPEE 115 7 - - -
Current assets REEE 7,022 14,472 10,000 9,449 10,119
Non-current liabilities FErBAE = - o - -
Current liabilities REEE (683) (8,835) (7) - (114)
Net assets EEFE 6,454 5,644 9,993 9,449 10,005
Group's share of net assets of REEREHEATN
the associates EERE 2,905 2,50 4,497 4,252 4,502
Revenue WA 4,201 23,646 209 - 405
Profit or loss from continuing operations &S &k B (286) 44 (6) (1) 5
15 GOODWILL 15 &
RMB'000
ARBT T
Cost: % :
At 1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 RZZE—ARF—A—B8K
T AF+-A=1+—H 4,300
Accumulated impairment losses: RiRESIE :
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—RF—A—H -
Impairment losses recognised during the year FAEERBEEE (4,300)
At 31 December 2016 R _E—RFE+-A=+—8H (4,300)
Carrying amount: IREE :
At 31 December 2016 R-ZB—XFE+ZA=+—H -
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+=-A=+—H 4,300

134 | China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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SHTHREM T

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the group’s cash-generating units (CGU)

AR a
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S &¥HRI)  UAEREZIR)
15 GOODWILL (continued) 15 BEE®)

|

BERENREELEURE
AU,
AERBEENREZEEE

il

AR S E

identified according to operation as follows: HBMT
2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—HF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AE®TRT ARETTT
Research, production and sale of - FEREESERE
intelligent home electronic equipment BT = 4,300

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on
fair value less costs of disposal calculations. The fair value less
costs of disposal of the CGU was determined by an
independent professional valuer engaged by the Company. The
fair value measurement is categorised under Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy. Accordingly, the carrying amount of the CGU
has been written down to the recoverable amount and an
impairment loss on goodwill of approximately RMB4,300,000
was recognised in profit or loss in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Key assumptions used for the determination of the fair value
less costs of disposal of the CGU are as follows:

° All relevant legal approvals and business certificates or
licenses to operate the business in the localities in which
the CGU operates or intends to operate would be
officially obtained and renewable upon expiry; and

° The financial information in respect of the Assets and
Liabilities has been prepared on a reasonable basis,
which reflects estimates that have been arrived at after
due and careful consideration by the Management.

Any adverse change in the assumptions as stated above for
the determination of the fair value less costs of disposal would
result in further impairment losses.

RAeELBEMNAHESERERFER
HERAEEE -REELEUNAF
BERHERATAARRBRZ B EE
HEMEE - A FEFESERATERE
M3 - At - REELBEUHEREE
EMBRERKE SRR BEREBBEOA
R¥ 4,300,000 tTRBE_ZE—RF+_H
=T - AULEFEZEARERERREE

ARETHSELEEMNATERBDEKX
AR EZ/RBLAT

o  HERSELBMKEIBKENINT
REXGOMARBAERLERER
FEEHFAEGICLARSEEDH
BAEY R

s FHEERAGNYBEHCKRAE
EEER HEABELARRERE
REREBRFHE BEMIERMAE o

RREE R FER L EKRAZ L RN
HIBERANES) - G — S RER
e

HRAEYERBRD A

:"57/\614:‘:‘}&
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b2 & B A R B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B #5751

16 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

C UAAEBESR)

16 HtteREE

2016 2015
—E—RE T—FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREF T
Available-for-sale equity securities: T &£ XS :
Unlisted equity securities, at cost R ETBRAES - KA 2,495 2,495
The above financial assets represent investment in equity L eMmEEENTREEEEEF ML
securities of a PRC local bank in Zhangping City, Fujian RITHRAFEHFIGE - ZREHNART

Province. The investment does not have a quoted price in an
active market for an identical instrument and whose fair value

cannot be reliably measured.

17 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries are set out below. The class of

shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

AMERERmSTEREREATEE

SRR ST -

17 RAHB AR ER
BRMBATNEEHIINT - B SAF
RSN - T AR A 2 AR

Attributable
equity interest
held by the Company
Place and date of Particulars of b IS
incorporation/ issued and paid up/ i 33
Name of company establishment registered capital Direct  Indirect Principal activities
ERITRME
H/EMEF
LFER ok 3 B ME IEEH
Green Oceans Investment Holdings - The British Virgin 10 shares of 100% - Investment holding
Limited USD1 each
7 November 2011
Green Oceans Investment Holdings 10RER1ETHRR REER
Limited ((EBRRES])
“Z2——4%1+—AtH
King Wood (Hong Kong) Holding 10,000 shares of - 100%  Sales of outdoor
Limited HK$1 each wooden products
K (B BRERAR 10,000 HEPIRER

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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A IS RERM s

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 BTSN LUAREEZTR)

17 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17 RMIBLARMER %)
Attributable
equity interest
held by the Company
Place and date of Particulars of b YN[ 3
incorporation/ issued and paid up/ s
Name of company establishment registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
BERITREME
#MaI B g% /EMEE
LFER BhERAH :ofed B Mz TERH
Fujian Zhangping Kimura The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Manufacturing and
Forestry Products Co. Ltd 17 December 1995 RMB380,000,000 sales of outdoor
(notes (i) and (i) wooden products
BREETANHEBRAA HE HRIEEN EERHEPIRER
(Brz () % () “WNEFTZATER AR 3800000007
Zhangping Kimura Merry The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Engaged in projects of
Garden Wooden Structure 12 June 2010 RMB1,000,000 outdoor wooden
Design and Installation Co., Ltd. products including
(notes (i) and (iii)) the provision of
design and
installation services
BEFIANEBREARERRE HE HRIEEN wEPMBERIESR
ZRBRDR (M) R (i) Z2-TFXATCH AE#1,000,0007C BERMEHRH R
ZERH
Merry Garden (Shanghai) The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Retail sales of outdoor
Household Co., Ltd. 24 February 2012 RMB1,000,000 wooden products
(notes (i) and (iii)) through self-operated
retail shops
ZEFR (LB REERAT HE FfER BREETEESE
(Brz () & (i) “E-—F-A-+WA  AKRE1,0000007T PR
Merry Garden (Xiamen) The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Retail sales of outdoor
Household Co., Ltd. 14 November 2012 RMB5,000,000 wooden products
(notes (i) and (iii)) through self-operated
retail shops
ZEFRE(EM)ZEBRAA HE HRIEEN BRERTEETE
(R () & i) “E-ZF+-A+TEA ARES50000007T POMKER
EF%‘#E%*E{EBE’A?

—NEFEH

-z
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B TSN » LUAREEZITR)

17 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17 RBARNRER &)
Attributable
equity interest
held by the Company
Place and date of Particulars of FLATIFRE
incorporation/ issued and paid up/ Eh R
Name of company establishment registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
BERITREME
30T oA % /EMEE
LFER BhERAH ke B Mz FERH
Merry Garden (US) Inc. The United States of 100 share of - 100%  Sales of outdoor
America USD1 each wooden products
10 January 2013
Merry Garden (US) Inc. EHBEREE 100 % HEPIMER

“T-=%-AtH 1 ETRA

Zhangping Merry Garden Import ~ The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Trading of timber and
and Export Co. Ltd. 27 February 2013 RMB30,000,000 sales of outdoor
("MG Import and Export”) wooden products
(note (ii) and (iif)

BImEBRREL DGR HE FER AHBHRHEEP
((XBREELO)) ZT-ZHZAZ+EA AR30,0000007T A&

(Hfzt (i) & (i)

Merry Garden Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1 share of - 100%  Investment holding
(note (v)) 3 August 2016 HK$1 each

FEFRIERERAT BE 1RERETRR REER
(Hizt0) ZE-~"FN\A=H

Merry Garden Biomass Energy Hong Kong 1 share of - 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited 10 October 2014 HK$1 each

FEFEENERRERERAR  BE 1RERETRG RamR

“E-WETATH

Zhangping Merry Garden Biomass ~ The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Manufacturing and
Energy Development Ltd. 31 March 2014 RMB80,000,000 sales of renewable
(notes (i) and (iv)) energy products

BImEBXEENERR HE AR EERHERE
FREBRAR (M0 EW) “Z-WE=A=+—H  AKFS80,000,0007 RER

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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17 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BRI T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 &5 51

C UABRBESTR)

17 RBARIMVRER (@)

Attributable
equity interest
held by the Company
Place and date of Particulars of AT
incorporation/ issued and paid up/ P4 R i
Name of company establishment registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
BRITRBE
BMEL B g%/ gMEF
LT B R B B B M IERH
Unicreed Holdings Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of - 100%  Investment holding
20 January 2011 HK$5653.39 each
HNREEEERAR ) 10,000 REER
—E——5-fZ1H % 5653.39 B TR
Unicreed (China) Electronics The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Manufacture and
Company Limited 10 June 2011 USD7,850,000 sales of electronics
(notes (i) and (i) products
BNRAI(PE)EFERAA HE FER EERHEETER
(Hta () & i) —T-——F5:ATH 7,850,000 57T
Notes: it -
(i) These entities are wholly foreign-owned enterprises established in the (0} ZEERRNPEKZNIIEBERE -
PRC.
(ii) These entities are limited liability companies established in the PRC and (i) ZEBERARTEKINBRETARKEFEA
are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Zhangping Kimura. e 2 ENBAR -
(iif) The English translation of the company names is for reference only. The (iii) ZERBMKZEBEMR—S2E  HEXZBEUAF
official names of these companies are in Chinese. NRHE o
(iv)  This entity is a limited liability company established in the PRC and is a vy ZERR—HRTEXNIZERARAREER
wholly-owned subsidiary of MG Import and Export. E#HOMN2EMBEAR -
(v)  This entity is a limited liability company established in Hong Kong and is a V) ZEBANBERINEREERR AN (F

wholly-owned subsidiary of King Wood (Hong Kong) Holding Limited.

B ERBERARNZENBAT -

‘:Fﬂiimﬁﬂxﬁﬁﬁ’&j
B REFR
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& By R M aE e

/T\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (fr 5 G TIN » UAREEZITR)
18 DEFERRED TAXATION 18 ELEBIIE

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised ERERNREHIBEENEBE

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised FRRERE HM%H):/R%% RERER ) EER
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the BEE/(ABE)BHRESHIT
movements during the year are as follows:
Unrealised
gainon PRC
Unrealised  derivative dividend
Deferred  profits on financial  withholding Interest
income inventories instruments tax capitalisation Total
i
FRE 1AW FEER
BEHGA  RERAN  RERKE FOR HREFRL &5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR ARETR
Deferred tax arising from: BERERA :
At 1 January 2015 RZZ-1f-F-A 5172 185 57 (1,707) (343) 3,364
Credited/(charged) to profit or ERVACIEN b33
loss (note 7(a) (Wz76) (291) (10) 250 - 7 (128)
At 31 December 2015 R-E-RF+-A=1-H 4,831 81 307 (1,707) (326) 3236
At January 2016 R-F-7F-A-B 4,881 81 307 (1,707 (326 323
Credited/(charged) to profit or AN/ (8 BER
loss (note 7(a) (M 7) (290) (76) (587) - 17 (939)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-RE+ZA=+-H 4,591 5 (280) (1,707) (309) 2,300

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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BB HRRM T

/T\

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 G575 -

18 DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised

UABRREZTR)

18 EEFIE (&)

EfRHELERAZEER ARG

(Continued) (&)
Reconciliation to consolidated statement of financial position: WiEE RN R P ERET -
2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AER®TT AREBTIT
Net deferred tax asset recognised in RERE BT AAR R P RERR
the consolidated statement of FERIEEEFE
financial position 4,596 5,269
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in RS B TSR R R R e
the consolidated statement of FERIESREEE
financial position (2,296) (2,033)
2,300 3,236
19 INVENTORIES 19 ﬁ-ﬁ
(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement @ REEFBMRARFOF
of financial position comprise: BEE -
2016 2015
—E—-RE —ET—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBT T
Raw materials R 167,927 181,157
Work in progress EES 43,691 52,935
Finished goods BIRK 107,882 102,317
319,500 336,409
FRREYIERERAT

S i
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19 INVENTORIES (continuea)

C UAAEBESR)

19 BEE@#®)

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories b)) ERRSAX LT AER
recognised as an expense and included in WEFEEITOT
profit or loss is as follows:
2016 2015
—ZE—RE R
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBT T
Carrying amount of inventories sold B &7 EMEREE 394,506 517,542
20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20 EZ R EHMEWFIE
2016 2015
—E—RE R
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBT T
Trade and bills receivables Z G REE ﬁ&ﬂgqﬁzﬁcﬁ 128,400 183,678
Trade receivable from associates JEWEE LN FIHE B 3,510 10,270
Amount due from a related company ez NCIE O
(note 30 (c)) (KaE30(c) - 1,007
Total trade receivables B SR GRIEEEE 131,910 194,955
Prepayment for raw materials B RIE S 86,497 80,162
Derivative financial instruments PTESBMITA
(note 31 (f)(ii)) (HaE31(0(3i) 9,561 3,064
Gross amount due from customers EWERF&RTELREE
for contract work (note (i) (B1EE3)) 708 708
Other receivables Hh e U R 11,210 11,636
239,886 290,525

142 | China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contined)

2 A BT SRR M e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S B HETRIN » LA REZT)

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 20

Note:

(i) The aggregate amount of costs incurred plus recognised profits less
recognised losses to date, included in the gross amount due from
customers for contract work at 31 December 2016 was RMBNil (2015:
RMB1,108,000). This balance includes retention receivables at 31
December 2016 of RMB708,000 (2015: RMB420,000), of which
RMB708,000 (2015: RMB420,000) was expected to be recovered after
more than one year.

All of the trade and other receivables, apart from those
balances specified in (i) above, are expected to be recovered
or recognised as expense within one year.

As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables with carrying value
of RMBNil (2015: RMB2,812,000) were pledged to banks for
certain banking facilities granted to the Group (see note 24(c)).

(@) Ageing analysis
As at 31 December 2016, the ageing analysis of trade and
bills receivables (which are included in trade and other
receivables), based on invoice date and net of allowances
of doubtful debts, is as follows:

ESRHEMERTE %)

it

0] RZB—ARF+ZA=1t—HNEBKEFART
REBNEEEEERANERDENREE
HOEHRERE At ARBEL(ZE— 3:‘@
AR%1,108,0007T) © ISR BIEN =T —RF
TZ A=+ —He9RE IR IA A R 708,000
T(ZF—RF: AR#4200007T)  EPAR
#708,0007C( =& —H 4 : AR 420,0007T)
FEEHH R —F R -

B EX() IR Z S0 JBAPTBE
5 R E MU IEAS R — F AU @ kiR
RFX -

R-ZT—XRE+_A=+—8 EEEA
REBEZEx(ZE—HF : AR¥2812,000
L) B S EVGRIBEEER FRITIEALTSE
EEENE TRITRENER(RMTE
24(C)) °

Z

(@) ERER DT
MmN+ A=4—0 - 5%
= QG REE R E S R
BREKEE(DHAESREME
WERIE) BREEA AT EN T -

E

2016 2015
—e—xE  —T-af
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Within 1 month R1EAA 36,499 69,438
1to 2 months 1221@AR 23,305 31,024
2 to 3 months 2Z2318A 13,181 14,539
Over 3 months BiE31E A 58,925 79,954

131,910 194,955

Trade and bills receivables are normally due within 90
days to 180 days from the date of billing. Further details
of the Group'’s credit policy are set out in note 31(a).

B IR FIA N EREE RN A

BEHHRF90RAZE 180 AR EIH] -
BERASBEEERRNE—FSFEHR
TABTEE31(8)

HRAEYERBRD A

:"57/\5144:‘}&
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20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(b) Trade debtors that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to be

impaired are as follows:

20

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea)
A WIS RR N

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B TSN » LUAREEZITR)

ESRHEHMERTE %)

(b) TERMERE 5 UK

I A8 5| 2 KRR ERE R E 5 LUK
FIARBREEREDITOT

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—AF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR AEBTT

Current BN EA 77,526 137,203

Less than 1 month past due BEILR1EAR 2,059 28,174

1 to 3 months past due BmE1 = 31E A 896 29,308

More than 3 months but less than wEREBAEIEABRLR

12 months past due 1218 A 41,024 90

More than 12 months past due 0 AR R 12 16 10,405 180
Amountspastdue @R 54384 57,752

131,910 194,955

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was

no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group

does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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21 PLEDGED DEPOSITS 21

Pledged deposits with banks have been placed as security for
banking facilities and derivative financial instruments issued by
banks to the Group (see note 20, notes 23 and note 24(c)).

22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22

(@ Cash and cash equivalents in the
consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated cash flow
statement comprise:

[SEGE LR

IR FIRITNFAE AERITRAIA LR %
HIRTRERITES R T AMIKE (R
20  fi7E23 &M aE24(c)) °

fﬁ,ﬁ)}iﬁ%gﬁ%

@ REEFBRAKRKRES
fﬁi/}\bi%ﬁqmiﬁiﬁfﬁ
TEEBYEIE

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—AF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETE

Deposits with banks and other $R1T R E A B 75
financial institutions HIET 121,194 130,290
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERS 52,792 66,611
173,986 196,901

At 31 December 2016, cash and cash equivalents in the
amount of RMB142,178,000 (2015: RMB160,661,000) are
denominated in RMB and are deposited in the PRC in the
ordinary course of business. RMB is not a freely convertible
currency and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is
subject to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

R-B—RE+-A=1+—0 " A%
AR#142,178,000L(ZF — R F :
AR #160,661,0007T) K38 & K1
SEEBMIHUAREE  XHBE
EBBERFHAFE - AREIIE
EBRLBNER  (rEEHES
JA R BT AR A ) SN B 1A B
EIRPIR ] o

‘:Fﬂifi%?*ﬂxﬁl‘ﬂ’&j
B REFR
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22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

22 BERBEEEY &)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to (b) Br B AT & F EL 48 & S S BT
cash generated from operations: FRESYEK -
2016 2015
—E—RE —T-AfF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
iopEa N S ARBFIT
(Loss)/profit before taxation BB AT (B518) i A (20,678) 53,503
Adjustments for: HATSEELAE -
Interest expense FEHZ C) 9,037 16,627
Depreciation e 6(c) 23,160 20,126
Amortisation of lease THETB T
prepayments 6(c) 1,936 1,604
Amortisation of deferred RIS O3]
income 25 (1,163) (1,163)
Net foreign exchange loss HNEEIBIFE 4,245 2,020
Interest income FLEMA 5(@) (5,687) (6,036)
Net loss on disposal of HEME - BE Rk
property, plant and equipment HEEEFE 88 -
Share of losses/(profits) of FEMLEE S ARIETE,/CaRl) -
associates, net of tax MERFE 65 (20)
Impairment of goodwill EERE 15 4,300 -
Changes in working capital: BEECE
Decrease/(increase) in inventories &4/ (3 10) 16,944 (34,521)
Decrease/(increase) in trade B 5 R EAEWGRIE
and other receivables md,/(HEm) 60,094 (5,789)
Decrease in trade and other g 5 & E IR
payables w (2,701) (386)
Cash generated from operations TSR G 89,640 45,965
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23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

C UABRBESTR)

23 BESREMENRE

2016 2015
—E—RE —AfF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBF T
Trade payables (note 23(a)) B 5 RE I (B3 23(3)) 6,892 8,749
Receipt in advance FEUTRIE 3,138 483
Receipt in advance from an associate B — & A R GRIE 230 -
Derivative financial instruments PTHESRIA
(note 31(9)(ii) (KaE31(03i) 7,692 5,112
Amount due to a director e —REERE 17 16
Amount due to a related company JE < A ESE & Bl 5R1E
(note 30(c)) (Kta30(c) 283 -
Other payables and accruals EAth EFRIE K
(note i) FEETE R (M) 15,077 13,818
33,329 28,178
Note: st -

Balance mainly represents salaries, wages, bonus and other accrued
benefits, and payables for the purchase of property, plant and equipment.

All of the above balances are expected to be settled within one

year or repayable on demand.

(@ A maturity analysis of the trade payables is

as follows:

As at 31 December 2016, the maturity analysis of the

trade payables balance is as follows:

BHREBEHE  TE  EAREMERETIA
LEBEME - BERRBOENUR -

PrB LTRSS — FRENRIRE
K&

F"a

@ ESZENFEMEHAD
MR
W-ZE—<E+-—A=1+—HB &5
R REMEIE AT

2016 2015

ZE—RE —T-RHE

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TFT ARET T

Due within 1 month or on demand TEARDHESSKIZERKER 4,410 8,164
Due after 1 month but within 3 months 1{& 81412 3@ B R E| 83+ 2,482 585
6,892 8,749

EFﬂi%?*ﬂx*ﬁ‘Bﬂ’&?

B REFR
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24 BANK LOANS

F UARESZT)

24 BITEXN

(@) At 31 December 2016, the bank loans were @ N—ZZEE—XXF+ = H
repayable as follows: =+—HB - BEEENRTT
BT
2016 2015
—E—XE —T—HE
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBFT
Wwithin 1yearorondemand ~ —fFAsEEx 340072 322,459
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFNR 56,290 47,932
After 2 years but within 5 years MERERAFNA = 26,528
86290 74,460
396,362 396,919
(b) At 31 December 2016, the bank loans were b R=F—-X"F+_-A
secured as follows: =+—8B BEHRTE
B (TN

2016 2015
—E—XE —T—FHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AB"TT ARBTFT

Bank loans (note 24(c)) IRITER(Kat 24(c))
— secured — HiKH 371,362 255,420
— unsecured — R 25,000 141,499
396,362 396,919
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24 BANK LOANS (continued) 24

() The amounts of banking facilities available
to the Group and the utilisation at 31
December 2016 are set out as follows:

RITER &)

© R=B—RE+=A=+—
B - A E AT AR RITRY
4 RADBERMT ¢

2016 2015
—E—-RE —T—RH4EF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥®TR AREET T

Banking facilities available AIEE A ERITREE
— secured — Bk 507,021 471,300
— unsecured — EI 25,000 181,567
532,021 652,867

Amounts utilised BEEAeE

— bank loans —RITER 396,362 396,919

The secured banking facilities were secured by the

HEBBITRE A TIIEENREE

following assets with carrying values as follows: YRR
2016 2015
ZE—RE ZE—hF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBT T
Pledged deposits (note 21) EAERER (K 21) 140,515 128,983
Buildings (note 11) BF (K1) 82,278 87,593
Plant and machinery (note 11) RS R w B (H7E 11) 32,054 37,117
Construction in progress (note 11) TR (M) 14,969 13,603
Lease prepayments (note 12) HETEN R (T 12) 100,062 71,982
Trade receivables (note 20) B 5 el 208 (HE20) - 2,812
369,878 342,090

FRREYIERERAT

S i
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BB HRRM T

CEF-E -l

24 BANK LOANS (continued)
() The amounts of banking facilities available

to the Group and the utilisation at 31
December 2016 are set out as follows:
(Continued)

During 2016 and 2015, all of the Group's banking facilities
were subject to the fulfilment of certain covenants, as
are commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the
covenants, the drawn down facilities would become
payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants.

The Group has an unsecured bank loan with a carrying
amount of RMB12,567,000 at 31 December 2015. The
loan agreement contains certain ratio covenants for
which the Group did not meet the net profit ratio of not
less than 20% and inventory turnover ratio of not less
than 2 during 2015. The loan was repaid on 27 January
2016.

The Group has two secured bank loans with carrying
amounts of RMB10,000,000 and RMB32,580,000 with
maturity date on 12 November 2016 and 29 October 2018
respectively. The loan agreements contain certain ratio
covenants for which the Group did not meet the current
assets turnover ratio of not less than 1 during year 2015.

The Company complies with its obligation to pay and will
repay the principals when they fall due. The Bank
considered it not necessary at present to exercise its
rights given by the loan agreements upon the Group not
meeting the abovementioned ratio covenant prior to the
respective maturity dates of the loans in 2015.

Except for the above, the Company has fulfilled the
covenants relating to drawn down facilities during 2016
and 2015. Details of the Group’s management of liquidity
risk are set out in note 31(b).
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24 BITER®

©

RZE—REFE+-_A=+—
B ANEEERAEITE
ENEFBBIBERAT 8

RZEBE-—RFRZZE—HF A5E
WP ERITRIE X BT S BkiE
FIVHBEERHFR —REANETR
KPR - MASERE L - Al
XBHEEREREREE - KEE
TEHBS R R B P A2 -

AEER-_Z—RF+=A=+—H
HEREEEAAR 12,567,000 LH
IR RTER - BRmEia s T
b4 EAREER T —RFER
BEIFHFETER20%BARGTE
FEETMER20ER - ERR =T
—A"F-AZt+LHEBLEER -

REEHERBHAINR=_T—X F+—A
TZARZE-N\FTAZFNABE
HOMEEEMRITEN - HEAE
2 Bl A AR 10,000,000 7T B A R
32,580,0007C - EX IS BE TIL
K}*@iﬁ EAREER-_ZT—AFXRE
ERRBEEREETMERINER -

ARBEFTENBREERSRNEHE
REHRFEERNE - BEAEEN
E-HFEREBIHARIREEER
AL R - IEIRTTR S B ATHZA
TTEERBHEER T T EEF -

br Lalioh  RZTE—RERZ

F AR EELEX%EE&HSL@Q%;@
H o FRAEEERERDE SRR
FHIEERMIEE31(D)
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24 BANK LOANS (continued)

24

(d) Included in secured and unsecured bank loans of the
Group as at 31 December 2015 were bills discounted
with recourse totalling RMB7,929,000 and RMBNil

C UABRBESTR)

RITER &)

R

R=+—8B &%

EAER R EERRTESREREAL

REBRBAEED

Al EFARE

respectively. 7,929,000t R A REEZIT ©
25 DEFERRED INCOME 25 EZEWA
The movements of deferred income are as follows: RIEW A E T -
2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—HF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AE®TRT ARETTT
Balance at 1 January HN—A— B84 19,527 20,690
Government grant recognised in profit RiBREER ﬁ,ﬁﬁ@qﬁz AH
or loss as other revenue (note 5(a)) BRI Bh S (M3t 5(@)) (1,163) (1,163)
Balance at 31 December RTZA=+—ANEH 18,364 19,527
Represented hy: Bp :
Current portion BNERES 5 1,163 1,163
Non-current portion FERNERER 17,201 18,364
18,364 19,527

Deferred income represented government subsidies that
compensated the Group for the cost of its land use right and
the cost of infrastructure development which are recognised in
profit or loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the

assets.

There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attaching

to these government grants.

EEWABBF/ME - ARBEAEERN
o b f5F R A AR AN K B axmé’ééfﬁﬁ S
BEMAFEAFHANE RGN EBRERRA

EERL, °

BB & I B SR TR IE N HAE

I8 o

HRAEYERBRD A

ZEREFR
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26

27

DEBENTURES

The Group has entered into agreements with two individual
third parties issuing unsecured debentures with principal
amounting to HK$20,000,000. The debentures are bearing
interest at 5% per annum, unsecured and repayable on 29
August 2017

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 4 May 2015, the Group signed an agreement to acquire the
entire shareholding of Unicreed Holdings Limited (“Unicreed”)
together with its wholly-owned subsidiary (collectively known
as the "Acquired Subsidiaries”), from an independent third
party at a consideration of HK$63,333,000 (approximately
RMB49,303,000) which shall be satisfied by payment of
HK$13,833,000 (approximately RMB11,080,000) in cash and
allotment and issue of 66,000,000 shares by the Company
(the”Consideration Shares”) at an issue price of HK$0.75 per
share. The acquisition was completed on 13 May 2015 upon
which the fair value of the Consideration Shares were HK$0.723
per share. The principal activity of the Acquired Subsidiaries is
research, production and sale of intelligent home electronic
equipment. Taking control of the Acquired Subsidiaries enabled
the Group to effectively facilitate intellectualisation of the
Group's timber house products, constituting a more value
adding business to the Group.

In the seven months to 31 December 2015, Unicreed
contributed revenue of RMB13,047,000 and loss of
RMB1,250,000 to the Group’s results. If the acquisition had
occurred on 1 January 2015, management estimates that
consolidated revenue would have been RMB644,337,000 and
consolidated profit for the year would have been
RMB44,882,000 respectively. In determining these amounts,
management has assumed that the fair value adjustments,
determined provisionally, that arose on the date of acquisition
would have been the same if the acquisition had occurred on 1
January 2015.
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26

27

&%
AEECEMBE=FEATLRZE &
17 78 & #820,000,0007% JT 8 X I B 5 -
HREREFRFRS%TE - RERAAER
—E—+FNAZTHhHEE-

W BB B B A R
R-E—AFAAMB  AEECDELH
BUAMBLIE=FHESNRAIEEGR
REI([HBNAEAD REEEMNB AR (518
BIBWERBAR O ERE  EE
#63,333,0005% 7t (41 B A R ¥ 49,303,000
L) BEFR AAQAREBIMNES
13,833,000 7T (43 A R ¥ 11,080,000 7T ) I
ZETES RSB LY BE R EIT
66,000,000 A% f& 3 (R BB 1) 77 AT
S WERENR = -RAFRA+=AH
AR BRERERERDOAFE
AER0.72387T - CRBHBARINES
EBEHAME FERHESEREE
TRE EHEWEHNBARSAEES
BiREREBEAREEMNBERILER A
REBEERAFE SIGEMNETE

WZE—RAF+=ZA=+—HtEA
HNEEIRAE BN ZEFRBAARE
13,047,000 7 X & 18 A K # 1,250,000 7T °
WEWEEEN _Z—AF—A— %%
EEEMABRAERABTAARE
644,337,000 7T R R FER LA BB A A
R 44,882,000 - REEZEHKBE -
EEEERTABIESFEABRMEENA
TEAZ(TRET) BRKEEER -
—RF—A—BEERER -
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BRI T

27 ACAQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

(@)

Consideration transferred

The following table summarises the acquisition date fair
value of each major class of consideration transferred.

C UABRBESTR)

27

WKEME AT @)

(@ BEENRE
TRBTSEBEZCERR BRI
BAEMATE -

2015

—E—RF

RMB'000

ARBFIT

Cash e 11,080
Equity instruments f&As T A (66,000,000 B2 I 88 A% )

(66,000,000 ordinary shares) 38,223

Total consideration transferred BN ERE 49,303

Equity instruments issued

The fair value of the ordinary shares issued was based on
the listed share price of the Company at 13 May 2015 of
HKDO0.723 per share.

Acquisition-related costs

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of
RMB201,000 on legal fees and due diligence costs. These
costs have been included in ‘administrative expenses’ in
2015.

BBITRATA
EETEBROAFENENARF
ELEmROR-_F-AFHA+=H
EREFAR0.723BTEE °

(b) WEBFREIR A
AEBESRRERARRENAS
e AR BB B AR AR M5 201,000 © 3%
ERATN =B~ AEHA FTHR
%]

‘:Fﬂifi%?*ﬂxﬁl‘ﬂ’&j
B REFR
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27 ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 27 WEEKEB Q= @)
(c) Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities ) WEAHANEENEKESR
assumed &
TREERA U BRI E AL
ERCABAENSHE -

The following table summarises the recognised amounts
of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of

154

acquisition.

Pre-acquisition Recognised
carrying Fair value values on
amounting adjustments acquisition
g1
YRR EE DFEEAE BRERE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETTT ARETFT AEETTT
Property, plant and equipment M WERE 35,033 (1,368) 33,665
Lease prepayment HEBNMH 8,186 (286) 7,900
Inventories & 4,360 4,360
Trade and other receiveables B 5 &k H MW EIE 3,879 3,879
Cash and cash equipments HeRBELEEY 16,275 16,275
Bank Loans BITER (16,143) (16,143)
Trade and other payables Z 5 MEMEMNTE (4,933) (4,933)

Total identifiable net BUEERI R FEERE
assets acquired 46,657 (1,654) 45,003
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27 ACAQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 27 WEBHELE )

(¢) Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities € WEHNEENEESR
assumed (continued) B ()
(i)  Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash () WEHWEBLR  HIRMERS
acquired
2015
—E-hF
RMB'000
ARBF T
Cash Consideration transferred DEERSRE (11,080)
Cash acquired FrER & 16,275
Net of cash acquired MBRAERE 5,195
(d) Goodwill d mE
Goodwill arising from the acquisition has been WHEE A B AT

recognised as follows.

2015
—ET—RF
RMB'000
AREBTIT

Consideration transferred DEEAE 49,303
Fair value of identifiable net assets AHFEENATE (45,003)

Goodwill i) 4,300

il

PREYERBRAT | 155
B NEER
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 28 EX - #ERRE

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances BEASEGEERS DY AR

of each component of the Group's consolidated equity is set MREBH RN G EEREB K - AR A

out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details EREBEPORFVNRFROEDFIFN

of the changes in the Company’s individual components of T

equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set

out below:

(@) Movements in components of equity @) HEEILOMED)

The Company AAT

Share Share  Exchange Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve losses equity

k& EiER ER 0 RHER faea
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AERTRT  ARBTRT  ARRTR  AERTR  ARBTR

BalanceatJanuary2015 ~ R-$-RE-A-AMRR nes s ot O30 3BAB
Changes in equity for 2015: “T-IEMEREn:
Loss for the year FRER - - - (8,008) (8,008)
Qther comprehensive income Hi2mE - - 30,152 - 30,152
Tota comprefierisie icome fo te year FSEMmE®E T T opz B8 2\
IsUe of shares upon placing RERHRA 9,934 288,039 - - 297973
Dividends approved and paid inrespect of BEEECRHER

the previous year ERRE - (5,98¢) - - (5,986)

Balance at 31 December 2015and R-Z2-Ef+-A=+-HR

Manvary2te —$-AF-R-RBRR 987 ewnt Gl T LT .
Changes in equity for 2016; “E-REMERER:
Loss for the year FRER - - - (4,685) (4,685)
Other comprehensive income E2EYE - - 43877 - 43877
Toid comprenensive ncome for e year Fremkas® R T wa ety B2
Balance at 31 December 2016 ZE-XE+-A=+-H

o3 20,987 624,211 68,862 (22,259) 691,801
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continvea)
& B &y 2R M aE e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 BTSN LUAREEZTR)

rAa

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 28 EX - REERKRE @)
(Continued)
(b) Dividends b)) B

0]

Dividends payable and proposed to equity
shareholders of the Company attributable to the

year:

() RTIFERNEEZZRALR
AR A ANRENREF

%
2016 2015
L
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETE

No final dividend proposed after
the end of the reporting period
(2015: Nil)

BEHFERRILERE
IR 3 R R RS
(ZZ—H%F:8)

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial year,

approved and paid during the year:

(i)  RAFEHMERNR E—1E
MBRERENAARIERTA

ABE -
2016 2015
—E—-RE —ET—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTT ARETT

Final dividend in respect of the
previous financial year, approved
and paid during the year, of HK$NIl
(equivalent to approximately
RMBNIl) per ordinary share
(2015: HK$0.005 (equivalent to
approximately RMB0.004)
per ordinary share)

AN [E LA R A
AR EERRE
RESREBREET
(HHERHOARBZT)
(ZZ—hFE 8’
3B A% 0.005 78 T
(HEEROARE
0.0047T))

= 5,986

‘:Fﬂiimﬁﬂxﬁﬁﬁ’&j
B REFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continvea
& B &y 2R M aE e

ra

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 B #5751

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

C UAAEBESR)

28 BEX - RERKRE @)

(¢) Share capital €) R
Authorised and issued share capital EERBBETERAE
2016 2015
Z-R%¥ “E-1F
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
BirEA &F RiH#A 2
'000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
T FHET T TiEx
Authorised: EE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at W-A-BRT-A=1t—-8H
1 January and 31 December SHRAEEN AT LER 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000
2016 2015
ZZ-R%¥ “E-1F
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
Bi®A &F R #A °F
'000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
T FHT T FHL
Ordinary shares, issued and £iER - BTRER:
fully paid:
At 1 January R=A- 2,573,835 25,738 1,365,000 13,650
Purchase of own shares on RZ%- i A+ZA
12 January 2015 (note (iv)) BESIRM (W) - - (2,000) (20)
Issue of shares upon placing on RZZ-RFERAT=H
13 May 2015 (note (i) REBRTIRG (H0) - - 66,000 660
Bonus isste on 17 July 2015 R=Z-nFtAt+tA
ARET = = 14,290 143
ISsue of shares upon subscription on EA— T-1F/\AHA
5 August 2015 (note (i) DEBLIRO (W) - - 272,600 2,726
Issue of shares upon open offer on R=E-RF+-A=1-H
21 December 2015 (note (i) PRABERETRG (W) = = 857,945 8,579
2,573,835 25,738 2,573,835 25,738
Equivalent o (RMB'000) HERARETT) 20,987 20,987
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements wcontinues
A IS RERM s

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 B4

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

Authorised and issued share capital (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

On 13 May 2015, an aggregate of 66,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued at a price of HK$0.75 per share. The net
proceeds would be paid for the acquisition of Unicreed Holdings
Limited. The shares issued rank pari passu with other shares in
issue in all respects.

On 5 August 2015, an aggregate of 272,600,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each were conditionally issued to not less than six
placees, who and whose ultimate beneficial owners are
independent third parties, at a price of HK$0.55 per share. The net
proceeds would be retained for capital expenditure to increase
production capacity of the Group’s products, and as general
working capital of the Group. The shares issued rank pari passu
with other shares in issue in all respects.

On 21 December 2015, an aggregate of 857,945,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each were issued to public, at a price of HK$0.2
per share. The net proceeds would be retained for capital
expenditure to increase production capacity of the Group's
products, and as general working capital of the Group. The shares
issued rank pari passu with other shares in issue in all respects.

Purchase of own shares

(iv)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the company
repurchased its own ordinary shares on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited as follows:

C UABRBESTR)

28 BEX - RERKRE &

(©

e &NE )
EERCBITRA(E)
Fiat -

0] RZFTE-—AFRAA+=ZH &#
66,000,000 % & A% 1 18 0.01 7 7T 1) % 38
BBEREGR0TSETMERET - FE
REFEMBE KRB IZNE A EE
BIRAF - EBRTRONMAETEED
FITHMBRN ZERFHA

h

(ii) WZZ-—AFNAAA &2
272,600,000 % & A% E (B 0.01 8 7T & i
B R E055E LM ER BRI
FALRRBERA (RERRE L &K
EnlA ANORBILE=T) - FiisHE
FEBREREEMAEELEER
AAAXRAREN —REEES B
BTN ATE T EED BITE MRS
ZHREMA -

(iii) R-Z-—AF+=-A=-+—A  &#
857,945,000 A% & A% EI 1B 0.01 B T i) &
BEZETROBILHBERETTAR

FRSFURF R RE MIEE A EE A
EERMNEAHX RASEN —REE
B CEITRONMAATMEDET
Hitfin =B RFHA -

piil

WEE KR

(vv REE-ZT-—RF+_A=1+—HLIF
R $AETE@%E}%H¥EX%P)?€F‘EAE
BEIEE S @A BT

Number of Highest price paid Lowest price paid Aggregate price

Month/Year shares repurchased per share (HK$) per share (HK$) paid (HK$'000)

B B Y S AN BftaE

R/E &t # 8 &=EGET) HIEE &L (F#&7x)
January 2015

—hF—A 2,000,000 0.76 0.75 1,519

PRAEYERERAT
B REFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continea)
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BB SRR T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CEF-E -l

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

)

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the par value of the shares of the
Company and proceeds received from the issue of
the shares of the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company would be in a position to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
currency differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of the entities with
functional currency other than Renminbi. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(x).

Statutory reserve

Transfers from retained profits to PRC statutory
reserve are made in accordance with the relevant
PRC rules and regulations and the articles of
association of the Company’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC and were approved by the
respective boards of directors.

The subsidiaries in the PRC are required to
appropriate 10% of its after-tax profit, as determined
in accordance with the PRC accounting rules and
regulations, to statutory general reserve until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made
before distribution of a dividend to shareholders.

Statutory general reserve can be used to make
good prior years' losses, if any, and may be
converted into paid-up capital provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25%
of the registered capital.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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C UAAEBESR)

28 EX - BEERRE (®)

(d)
(M

(i)

(iii)

FEmEIEE LA/

R4 EE

P tn s B A A B Aty HE
SREETT AR R PTUCER PR A5
FIAZ EHER -

RERSBEBRRE AR
Hﬁfﬂuﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ’]ﬁﬁTTﬁ“Aﬁ
TARBKERR - RS
DIRACE AR - RNRRZAR
MEN—REHBRETD BN
&7 °

BE 5
E)?LFH%E%L‘A/\EMLM\\E’U

DR EBRERHERBY KR
RIFEENMEINEZE - &
FEBIIRBEM 20 E e &
AR BEHE ©

EEME
BREENERERBIEAER
1 TIAR B AR R P BAR Al R AR B
VAR AR 2% B 7E o B AR 32 69 BT
NEMERERMAETT X
CEEEEESE -

R EIAY BB A BB B H 10% 8
BREeEF(EDREPRS
STRARRGIEE) E—RE
ERE EEfHEsERm
BEARE50% A 1E o EEE
BT AIRR R 7 IRAR B RTHETT ©

—EERBAUARFEERT
FEBE(NE)  WAeEhs
BERA HEBRERENG
BABENFME AR 25% o
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

©)

Distributable reserves

The aggregate amounts of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company were
RMB670,814,000 (2015: RMB631,622,000).

After the end of the reporting period, the directors
proposed no final dividend (2015: proposed no final
dividend).

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurate with the
level of risk and by securing access to financing at a
reasonable cost.

The Group defined “capital” as including all components
of equity. Trade balances and short-term bank loans that
arise in the course of ordinary business are not regarded
by the Group as capital. On this basis, the amount of
capital employed by the Group at 31 December 2016
were RMB1,132,291,000 (2015: RMB1,135,510,000).

The Group manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns that
might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustment to the capital structure
in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the
Group.

Except for the banking facilities which require the
fulfilment of certain covenants as disclosed in note 24(c),
neither the Company nor any of the subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements in
either prior or current year.

(= BHETIN - UARIEZTR)

28 EX - REERKRE @)

)

A 9k

A AARRIEREE AR EHEE
EAaARE670,814000T(—E—H
F: ARME631,622,0007T) ©

RS HRERE  EFUEEZRKR
BRBBRB(ZZT—0F  BEEHK
TARHRR) -

BEARER

AEBEEBEANTEZEIZEFEAM
R FEE UCER A E A K BRI TE B i
BIRAERARERE - REAEE
STIBCEMEE D IMEEBLEE AR
R REIHR KL AHERFE BT R

o

Bl

AEBRHEA] TR ADIEMARE
wED o AEBE—REBKBIEFE
EEE B R RIRTT BT ER
BER B EE AEEARZT
—ANFTZA=Zt+—BEBENELRS
A AR #1,132,291,000( = &
—HF : AR¥1,135,510,0007T) °

ARETRLEALE  EHTES
R E BRI - S E R LA
FEBMIEEREEERRRHFAS
POEE RARRS + A B A E i
BHOR S B A AT B -

BRI RE24(C) T BB 5 T 22
MERITEEIN REFEALXF
B ARBHAFMERRHBEE
SMEBIEINE AT H o

HRAEYERBRD A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea

BRI T

/T\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G RN+ UAAREEZTR)
29 COMMITMENTS 29 A

(@)

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 @ RUEFHFEETBEHRERAR
December 2016 not provided for in these ERBEAENR T —XRF
consolidated financial statements were as +-—A=+—HBHKEZ
follows: BAERENT ¢
2016 2015
—E—RE —ZE—hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TE ARETFT
Contracted for (note (i) EHENCEIO) 23,402 74,970
23,402 74,970
Note: Hiat -
(i) Capital commitments are mainly related to construction of 0} BAREBEEFEEBREFAN RISGRE
factories for zhangping Kimura and Unicreed and purchase of BIES MR DA R B B Rk
equipment.
At 31 December 2016, the total future b RZE—RF+-_A=1+—

minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of
rental of offices and retail shops are
repayable as follows:

H BEERAERZTEEM
TH ARG L EAIET
AEENRRFERERNK
MR

2016 2015

—E—RE —ZT-RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT AREFT

Within 1 year —FR 398 728
After 1 year but within 5 years —FEAFR 478 24
876 752

The leases typically run for an initial period of one to five
years, with an option to renew when all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases include contingent
rentals.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements wcontinues
A TR ERE I s

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S B HETRIN » LA REZT)

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 30 EXFEBARS
TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the related party information disclosed in notes 8, Bt S4RE M MAMES 91420
9,14, 20 and 23 of these consolidated financial statements, the 23PTHE FRE RO RARE T B RN REBRPTTR
Group entered into the following significant related party FERIN NINERNBB RS °

transactions during the years presented.

(@ Name and relationship with related parties (@) FAES 5 A N BB 5 /Y
EaLES

During the years presented, the directors are of the view RIIRER - EE2RA - AEEHE

that related parties of the Group include the following BT BRI EEE

entity:

Name of party Relationships

FABS &8 Ff%

Zhangping Jiupengxi Ecological Tourism A private company controlled by Wu Zheyan.
Development Company Limited (“Jiupengxi”) Wu Zheyan is a director of the Company.

BEEMAMSRERREERARETAT (MR REAEEHNLERT - REE/ADAES -

Jiangxi Lvyuan Trading Co., Ltd. An associate of the Group.

AFEIRE S AR AR REE 2B N E]

Longyan Deliyuan Biomass Energy Co., Ltd. An associate of the Group.
BEEMEFREMEIRBR AR REEZHE AT o

Xiamen Zhonglisheng Trading Co., Ltd. An associate of the Group.

ERIPFEESERAF REE B ERT] -

The English translation of the name is for reference only. WIGEREHSE  HEEBANIE

The official name of these related parties is in Chinese. AT AR SR -
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b2 & B A R B e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B TSN » LUAREEZITR)

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

30 EXBEBEARS (&)

(b) Significant related party transactions (b)) BEXEBAIRZS
Particulars of significant related party transactions during FIRFERNERBE T ZH0FED
the years presented are as follows: T
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-hEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBEFT
Sales of wooden products to Lvyuan RIAR IR SH & R & @ 4,616 16,068
Sales of wooden products to and MANEEHEARE @&
contract revenue of outdoor wooden RENMERFIMRE R
products projects derived from Jiupengxi 18 B & #9U A - 3,554
Sales of wooden products to Deliyuan [AEFIREYEARE G 272 -
Sales of wooden products to Zhonglisheng m = 5% 84 & R % S 472 -
The directors confirm that the above sales and purchase EERED FRSESS A ERE
transactions are entered into with trading terms similar R = IS RIS SIS ERET ST
to those with third parties.
(c) Amounts due (to)/from a related company () (FER) /FEUR A N T =
8
RMB'000
AREEFIT
Amount due (to)/from Jiupengxi (FERF), e A IR RRIR
Balance at FEERR
— 1 January 2015 ——ZT—h%—A—H (283)
— 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 — :?fﬁiwL —A=+—H
E—F—XRF—A—H 1,007
— 31 December 2016 ——Z— /\E—I—fﬂ_-&— =] (283)
Maximum balance outstanding SISE N R
— during 2016 —RZE—RE 1,007
— during 2015 —RZZE—AF 2,875

The amount due (to)/from a related company was arisen
from normal sales transactions. It was unsecured,
interest-free and expected to be settled according to
credit term which is similar to that with third parties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea

/\‘/T\
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 BTSN LUAREEZTR)
30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 30

BRI T

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest
paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as follows:

BEXBHAERS &)

(d) TBEEREASHH
AEEEEEREABFH (2EH
HERMEINFIRBENENAAR
EENETREFRENFDMT -

2016 2015
ot —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARBT T

Short-term employee benefits LHEERT 5,613 3,821
Retirement scheme contributions RIRE B 47 46
5,660 3,867

Total remuneration was included in “staff costs” (see
note 6(b)).

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

None of the above related party transactions fall under
the definition of connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

BMEM I ATE TARA] (R
6(b)) °

(e) BAEXRFZEMZ EMHRA

B R B TER E RIS
1AATE FT RE ORI R 5 S5 AR
25
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b2 & BTSSR 2 W e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (f 5B RI) » UAARESIR)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31
VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency and
commodity price arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to these credit risks is monitored on an ongoing
basis.

In respect of cash and cash equivalents, the Group only
places deposits with major financial institutions, which
management believe are of high credit rating.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group
usually requires upfront payment for sales of goods to
new customers. For export sales, the Group generally
requests settlement by letter of credit issued by financial
institutions or by wire transfer for certain customers with
good trading history. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all new customers requiring credit over a
certain amount and are also performed on existing
customers on a periodic basis. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and may take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. The Group offers 90 days of credit to export
sales customers with good trading history and offers 180
days of credit to the existing domestic sales customers.
Generally, debtors with significant overdue balances are
requested to settle all outstanding balances before any
further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contined)

rAa

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

BB HRRM T

CE=F-E -l

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the customers
operate and therefore significant concentrations of credit
risk primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. At 31 December 2016,
1% (2015: 4%), of the total trade and other receivables
was due from the Group's largest customer and 15%
(2015: 7%), was due from the five largest customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance. The Group does
not provide any guarantees which would expose it to
credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
set out in note 20.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

C UABRBESTR)

31 sRiIABEERAFE®R)

(@)

FEERR @
AEEFEYOERRR  TERE
EEMEGIFMAYE - HLIRE

BEPAMSEMITESAMENER - B
I EAEEEEHERNEFPHENRR
B BELARESEHHNEERR - ©
—E-RFE+ZA=+—H E5K
HiEYRIERER B 1% (ZE—H
F:4%) BIEEBAERSEREFPHR
o MIS%(—ZFE—HF:7%) B A
ERAREFHRE

A AR BB R ERRBIEE MR ER
HEREGER  SREMEENGREY
BIRR R RORRE{E © AR B HEIE
HEA < EAEEERBRAER -

BRASERE S RUGRAZNGE
SRBEE —TE(CHE - SN
20 °

//|b@]§ﬁ

AEBENEEATHESLRDES
B R A EREOEE A
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C UAAEBESR)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31 SRiEKREERAIFE@E)

VALUES (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continuea) b) mEERR @
The following table details the remaining contractual TRANANEBEMAARENTES T
maturities at 31 December 2016 of the Group’s and the BER_T—R"E+-A=+—H0HK
Company's non-derivative financial liabilities, which are FIAE MR  ZEemBENER
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including SHARMBRERE(BEEHAEL
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, IR ek (fW)F &) ¥R S B 45 R B
if floating, based on rates current at the end of the WATREFTHE ORI B R) A RAE
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group and the ERAARWEREE N FEENR
Company are required to settle these liabilities. FHHMmME -
2016
k- e
Within More than More than Total
1year 1yearbut 2yearshut contractual Carrying
oron less than less than undiscounted  amount at
demand 2 years 5 years cash flow 31 December
—ERE g% BAzE fTHRER ®+-A=+-A
BEX BIRZE BIREE  REREHE HIREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARRTR AE®TR ARRTR AERTR
Bank loans BITER 346,443 57,865 - 404,308 396,362
Debentures &% 18,470 - - 18,470 17,890
Trade and other payables ZHREMENTE 33,329 - - 33,329 33,329
398,242 57,865 - 456,107 447,581
2015
ZZ-nE
Within More than More than Total
1 year 1year but 2 years but contractual Carrying
oron less than lessthan  undiscounted amount at
demand 2 years 5years cashflow 31 December
—ERE BiE—F BBE-F AHRER RTZA=T-H
REX BIR=E ELRRE  RenEEE WEREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTL AREFTL AREFT AREFT AREFT
Bank loans RITER 331,825 51,401 27,607 410,833 396,919
Debentures &% 838 17,594 - 18,432 16,756
Trade and other payables B REMENTIE 28,178 - - 28,178 28178
360,841 68,995 27,607 457,443 441,853
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S B HETRIN » LA REZT)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31 £REMREENRAFE &)
VALUES (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (© H=EEP
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from AEENMERBEBREER - 1%
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and at FENF R R EEN RS SHNERS
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate AREETRReREFNEAR R A
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The FEMERER - MEREEAER - K
Group's interest rate profile as monitored by SEERFRAR DI T ()
management is set out in (i) below.
(i) Interest rate profile M RMERR
The following table details the interest rate profile TERHAIN-ZF-X"F+=A
of the Group’s total borrowings at 31 December =+ HARRBESAROR
2016 A
2016 2015
—Z-RE§ “Z-RF
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
ERfE &# BIRF|x 8
% RMB'000 % RMB'000
ARBTR AREFT
Fixed rate borrowings: TEREH:
RMB, HKD and USD AR¥ ETRET 0.15%— 264,790 1.06%— 257,975
bank loans BITER 6.31% 6.69%
Unsecured debentures BEAES 5% 17,890 5% 16,756
Variable rate borrowings: iz 8 {5 :
RMB, HKD, EUR and USD ARE BT Bk 0.72%- 131,572 2.29%— 138,945
bank loans ETRITER 7.04% 8.51%
Total net borrowings BIERTE 414,252 413,676
Net fixed rate borrowings as &8 %?m%ﬁfﬁﬁ@
a percentage of total net ERFENED
borrowings 68% 66%
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31

BB HRRM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CEF-E -l

VALUES (continued)
() Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
have decreased/increased the Group's profit after
tax and retained profits by approximately
RMB1,118,000 (2015: RMB1,181,000). Other
components of equity would not be affected by the
changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group's profit after tax
(and retained profits) that would arise assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to re- measure those financial instruments
held by the Group which expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk at the end of the reporting
period. In respect of the exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk arising from floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the Group at the end
of the reporting period, the impact on the Group’s
profit after tax (and retained profits) is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense or
income of such a change in interest rates. The
analysis at 31 December 2015 has been performed
on the same basis.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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MWIERT » FIREE AT
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[ ) ik R 12 028 1) B AR BB 02 R
L/ #angg AR % 1,118,000 7T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contined)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S &¥HRI)  UAEREZIR)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31
VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk d BEE=RkE
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through AEERENEERR  FTEAUE
sales and purchases which give rise to receivables, B EMUINEE BN B (£

cEEMREER AR E R

payables and cash balances that are denominated in USD
and EUROQ, currencies other than the functional currency
of the entity to which they relate.

The Group is also exposed to currency risk associated
with the bank borrowings as the Group's borrowings are
denominated in RMB, USD, HKD and EURO.

TREITFENHEE RRE(EE
FEWRRIR - BN RIBNIR S 4E8R)
TTEMEE =R -

MR AEEOERTTAARE - X
T BTUMETEHE - EAEE TR
EERIRITREREENEE AR -

During the years presented, the Group entered into FIRFEA - ANEEEAR B REE
foreign currency forward contracts with major state- BIRITEIUINERIENBEAARE
owned banks in the PRC mainly to acquire RMB to ARSI LAZE ST ~ BT MBUTEHER E
mitigate against currency risk on receivables WER R EHE B - FTARBINES
denominated in USD, HKD and EURO. All of the forward AR B HAR RS R —F AR o

exchange contracts have maturities of less than one
year.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had foreign currency
forward contracts with their fair values recognised as
derivative financial instruments (assets) of RMB9,561,000
(2015: RMB3,064,000) and derivative financial instruments
(liabilities) of RMB7,692,000 (2015: RMB5,112,000) and are
included within “Trade and other receivables” (note 20)
and “Trade and other payables” (note 23) respectively.
The changes in fair value of the foreign currency forward

RZE—XRF+-_A=+—H8 &%
EINE R NN A TFERITES R
TE(EE)ARKE9IS61,000L(=ZF
—HF : AR¥3,064,00070) KIHTE
eI A(EE) ARY7,692,0007T
(ZZ—H4F : AR®5,112,0007T)

R WDRIETATE S REMEK
FIE] (HM7320) R [B 5 REA RN

contracts were recognised in the consolidated statement FIE| (MIFE23) - INEERHIE XM A
of profit or loss (note 5(b)). FEEZF A GEBRETER (N
FE5(0) °
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31

U TREM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 & 157 4

VALUES (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at
31 December 2016 to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown
in Renminbi, translated using the spot rate at the
end of reporting period. Differences resulting from
the translation of the financial statements of the
entities with functional currency other than RMB
into the Group's presentation currency are
excluded.

The Company does not have any significant
financial assets or liabilities denominated in

C UAAEBESR)

EEEMREER AFE R

(d) BEERR @

() E¥EE
TRAVNAEBRZ_ZE—RF
+*H:+—EI§%M%%

BN E AR Y ED

ERREENAEMEENE
Rk - BHERY) - ERE
AARMESR - {5 A #Hks 81
ERERFERE - HEFUA
REELLIMNOTI 8L E KT BR RO &
BUBREBRENTEENE
P E W EERZERERIRIN o

ARBABEFAEREBEE
HABEAEDREEE AN E

currencies other than its functional currency and it BEEtE - MEAZEREER
is not exposed to significant currency risk. % o
2016 2015
ZE-RE “Z-1fF
Usb Euros HK$ RMB usb Euros HKS RMB
ET B ®T  AEW e B BT ARE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000
AERTT ARMTE ARMTR ARMTR ARETI ARETL ARETT ARETI
Trade and other EHREM
receivables feliznE 35,455 - - - W7 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RR4%EY 29,721 2 - 289 2775 2 1 123
Bank loans FER (57,770)  (78,767) = - (1877 @877 (24799 -
Trade and other EHREM
payables JERFE (422) = = - (19 - - -
Grossexposurearising  ERRBER
from recognised assets & H)
and liabilities B 6,990  (78,765) = 289 60786 (28769)  (24,798) 123
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31 £RiEREERAFE %)
VALUES (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continuead) d) EEERR )
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (i) BRBREDH
The following table indicates the instantaneous TRFIT A H AL b S BN
change in the Group's profit after tax (and retained ERERAT  AEERRREE
profits) that would arise if foreign exchange rates to i F) (AR B s F ) B 2R 2 2R
which the Group has significant exposure at the ERIFE S B (AREBEER I
end of the reporting period had changed at that BHYRZENRR) MEED
date, assuming all other risk variables remained BV A8 o #e s A H Ath 3B 9
constant. Other components of equity would not IZINEERF TR
be affected by changes in the foreign exchange
rates.
2016 2015
—E-RE “ET-TF
Increase/ Increase/
Increase/  (decrease) Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit (decrease) in profit
in foreign after tax and inforeign  after taxand
exchange retained exchange retained
rates profits rates profits
R Bﬁﬁﬁéiﬁéﬂ
SUEE RGERT SN TE & aa/mﬂ
R/ (TR)  L#/(FR)  EA/(THK) iﬁ/
RMB'000 RMB'OOO
ARBTRT AREFTL
USD £7T 5% 297 5% 2,568
(5)% (297) 5% (2,568)
EURO B 5% (3,348) 5% (1,223)
(5)% 3,348 (5% 1,223
HKS$ against RMB BILANRE 5% - 5% (1,054)
(5)% - (5)% 1,054
RMB against HK$ ARERBT 5% 12 5% 5
(5)% (12) (5)% ()
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31

VALUES (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued)

C UAAEBESR)

(d)

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Results of the analysis as presented above
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the Group entities’ profit after
tax and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into RMB at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of reporting period
for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rates had been applied to
remeasure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of reporting period. The analysis
excludes differences that would result from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group's presentation currency.
The analysis at 31 December 2015 has been
performed on the same basis.

(e) Commodity price risk

The major raw materials used in the production of the
Group's products include, fir and pinewood. The Group is
exposed to fluctuations in the prices of these raw
materials which are influenced by the global market as
well as regional supply and demand conditions.
Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials could
adversely affect the Group's financial performance. The
Group historically has not entered into any commodity
derivative instruments to hedge the potential commodity
price changes. The Group monitors its commodity price
risk by widening its supply base and performs bulk
purchase when the price of raw materials is low.

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ccontined
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(f) Fair values

(i)

(ii)

Financial instruments not measured at fair
value

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
include loans and receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables, pledged
deposits, trade payables and other payables,
debentures and bank loans.

Due to their short term nature, the carrying value of
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, pledged deposits, trade payables and
other payables, debentures and bank loans
approximates fair value.

Financial instruments carried at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the end
of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

(= BHETIN - UARIEZTR)

31

cEEMREER AR E R

(f)

AFE

(M

(ii)

REDATFEFENEMTA

REAFEAENERTAR
BERRERFE Re kR
EEFEY  EHREMEUK
B BEBER - BSREM
BN RIR - BHFRIRITER -

NEEHNE  AekRe
BY - B85 K EME YRR
B BEAER - BHREM
e IR B RIRITERZ
FREEREQFERS -

B S
jaray
=5

BAVEIIRNERIA
RFEFRHE
TRENAEEHS R T AR &
& HIRE A R A A I B
ENATE XHEAREEY
ISR FE35 - AFER
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31

BB HRRM T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CEF-E -l

VALUES (continued)
(f)  Fair values (continued)

(i)

Financial instruments carried at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail
to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

As at 31 December 2016 the Group’s derivative
financial instruments assets and liabilities
amounting to RMB9561000 and RMB7,692,000
respectively (2015: assets and liabilities of
RMB3,064,000 and RMB5,112,000 respectively)
(notes 20 and 23) were carried at fair value, and
these instruments fall into Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy described above.

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015, there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.
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B BRI FE @

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

CE=F-E -l

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(f)  Fair values (continued)

(ii)

(i)

Financial instruments carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation technigues and inputs used in Level 2 fair
value measurements

The fair value of forward exchange contracts in
Level 2 is determined by discounting the
contractual forward price and deducting the
current spot rate. The discount rate used is derived
from the relevant government yield curve as at the
end of reporting period plus an adequate constant
credit spread.

There were no other financial assets or liabilities
carried at fair value as at 31 December 2016 and 31
December 2015.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
not carried at fair value

The carrying values of the Group's financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at
31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

C UABRBESTR)

31

cEEMREER AR E R

(f)

NFE(E)

(i)

(iii)

BRAFEIRNERTA ()

BB TEAEBRANGE

TR B A B
“REORBINEEHAFE
TyiE B E A KR BB RN
BRIZARVEF R mEE - Ffe
FABRER R IR TR 45 B R 45 R I
HERNESFZESXRMNEHE
EEESEMTEST -

F_E-—REFE+=-A=1+—

B - #EH A iR N AR
CREENAE-
ARAFEIRNEHEER
EENAFE

785 [ 22 AN B SE PR AR B 1) B
e TARAERFSEN -
E-RER-ZE-LF+H
=T HOAFELEERE
2o

HRAEYERBRD A

ZEREFR

177



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuea)
A TR RE I e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5B RIN » LA EREEFIR)

32 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 32 REIEEUBHMRREK
FINANCIAL POSITION

2016 2015
—NE —E—AEF
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
Kt et AR®TT ARETIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries ~ RM@EAESEE 0 7 . 676257 670,169
current assets B E
Deposits and other prepayments e MEMTENR 400 583
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE P BB R B3R IE 33,927 -
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RESEEY 785 557
7777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 35,112 1140
Current liabilities mERE
Other payables H b e F0E 1,678 1,944
beventres & 2 1780 .
19,568 1,944
Net current assets/(liabilities)  Zm®&/ (Af)®@ 15544 = (804)
Total assets less current EE#ERRE
assets/(liabilities) =E/ (AfE) 691,801 669,365
Non-current liabilities ERBDAR
Debentures &5 26 - 16,756
NET ASSETS HEEBE 691,801 652,609
Equity Ba 28(a)
Share capital [2WIN 20,987 20,987
Reserves #E 670,814 631,622
TOTAL EQUITY HanE 691,801 652,609
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on RoT—+FE=A -t HEEEe &
24 March 2017. MR -
Wu Zheyan Xie Qingmei
REE E b
Chief Executive Officer Chairman
TTIABE, =
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (S B HETRIN » LA REZT)

33 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING

PARTY

At 31 December 2016, the directors consider the immediate
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Green Seas
Capital Limited, which is incorporated in BVI. This entity does
not produce financial statement available for public use.

33

34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the IASB has issued a number of amendments and
new standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2016 and which have not been adopted in the
consolidated financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

34

HEERKEERA

EERE WZZT—XRFt+=ZA=1+—8"
NEEEE R & &ERT &Green Seas
Capital Limited * % A AR EBREZE ST
AL o W E R EMERAFIHEHRE -

BE-_Z—R"E+=ZA=+-—
BIFECBEMERERNE
A WA ERARRENTRER
=

HENERAVBHREEMRZE  EEREE
FHEREE G MM L IBISE] RATET AR
HRBEZZT—A"F+A=1+—ALHF
[EMARAEMN - BWARRERE B HIRE AR
W BEREETIAEEAEEE@ENS
15 :

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RTIBEMRRNZE
SRR EN

Statement of Cash Flows (Amendments to IAS 7)
Rensk (B ERIE7REBRIAN)

Income Taxes (Amendments to IAS 12)
Frisii (BB & st RIS 1257 85T AN)

Share-Based Payment (Amendments to IFRS 2)
VAR A7 45 Z B <7 30 (B R B 75 S 5 2B RI 28 2 SR A AT AR )

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments
BIFR BT S iR EERIE 95 - @RI T A

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
BB EREERE 155 - BEEAHKES

Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Amendments to IFRS 15)
REA#HNE (B E3RE 2ERISE 1557185 48)

IFRS 16, Leases
BRI mEERF 165 - HE

1 January 2017
—ET—+F—H—H

1 January 2017
—=2—+F—HF—H

1 January 2018
—ZE-N\F—H—H

1 January 2018
—E-N\F—HA—H
1 January 2018
—E-N\F—H—H

1 January 2018
—=2—-N\F—A—H

1 January 2019
—ET-NF—H—H

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

(Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28)
KEEHEBRENFNEECECHANEELEXHE
(BIPR B 75 5 22 RI 28 10 5% M BB = 5 2R RIS 28 SRS RT AX)

To be determined*
e ==

FE

HRAEYERBRD A

ZEREFR
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B TSN » LUAREEZITR)
34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 34

35

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (continued)

Note:

* The amendments were originally intended to be effective for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The effective date has now been
deferred/removed. Early application of the amendments continues to be
permitted.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether these new
pronouncements will result in substantial changes to the
Group's accounting policies and financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

On 24 January 2017, the Company entered into the
Subscription Agreement with the Subscribers pursuant to
which the Subscribers have conditionally agreed to subscribe
for and the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and
issue a total of 514,500,000 Subscription Shares at the
Subscription Price of HK$0.13 per Subscription Share.

The Subscription Shares represents approximately 16.66% of
the total issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by
the allotment and issue of the Subscription Shares. Please refer
to the announcement dated 24 January 2017 and 13 February
2017 for further information. The subscription of Subscription
Shares has been completed on 10 February 2017.
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